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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual results for the year ended
31 March 2025 of Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”’) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) on behalf of the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company. The Group is
a maritime services provider in Hong Kong with over 20 years
of operating history. Services of the Group include (i) vessel
chartering and related services; (i) ship management; (iii) marine
construction; and (iv) trading of machineries and equipment related
to construction and marine industries.

During the year, the Group continued to develop new sources of
customers for the vessels chartering services and strengthen our
fleet to satisfy the increasing demand of vessel chartering in the
future. The Group has established a trading business arm which is
principally engaged in trading of machineries and equipment related
to construction and marine industries. The Group is going to tap
into the marine construction and trading of construction and marine
related machineries and equipment business through Yun Lee (Tim
Kee) Marine Construction Limited (‘YLTK") and Sanlee New Energy
Limited (“Sanlee”) and it is expected they will be the growth driver
of the Group’s revenue and profits.

The Group’s financial position is solid, and will continue to maintain

our leading position in the industry, and expand our opportunities in
new projects.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 3§

The Group’s success this year relies on the efforts made by all ~AEERFANKEERFEETEBEIR
our staff and the management team during the past year. | would ~ B EBEBRBE—F 287 - KA
like to express my sincere gratitude on behalf of the Board to the ~ WL H#E&ZEREXEETE  HAEEZERE
management and staff for their tremendous efforts and valuable REEBINBE-—FHNEHZBHEZ N
contribution in the past year and hope that we will continue to ~ NMEBEBRBUAGE - FERKEEE
receive all your support in the future. We will continue to join hands B AKRZ#F - HMIKGEBRREF - 8
with the shareholders and staff members to turn to a new and TMWEEF  RERKEHE  EME

brighter future. RINE)—H ©

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REEFE

Wen Tsz Kit Bondy BASEEEZERERA
Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited B

Chairman P a3

Hong Kong B

26 June 2025 S N g A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a maritime services provider in Hong Kong with
over 20 years of operating history. The principle activities of the
Group are provision of (i) vessel chartering and related services;
(i) ship management services; (iii) marine construction services;
and (iv) trading of machineries and equipment related to marine
and construction industries in Hong Kong. The Group’s vessel
chartering and related services include (i) time charter services; (i)
voyage charter services; and (i) other related services, such as
provision of crew members, maritime consultation services and
vessel repair and maintenance services. The Group provided its
time charter and voyage charter services through its vessel fleet,
which comprises (i) 57 self-owned vessels and (i) vessels chartered
from third-party vessel suppliers from time to time. The Group’s
marine construction services include marine construction and
engineering services provided mainly to contractors for marine
construction projects in Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company had successfully listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 18 March 2019 (the “Listing”).

During the year, the Group provided its vessel chartering and
related services mainly to the marine construction contractors
of several marine infrastructure projects in Hong Kong, including
the Three-Runway System project in the Hong Kong International
Airport (“3RS Project”) and Integrated Waste Management
Facilities Phase 1 project in Shek Kwu Chau (“IWMF Project”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB wES T

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

As there are numbers of high-profile development projects and
infrastructure projects related to marine construction works initiated
by the government of Hong Kong which reached their final stage
in recent years, management of the Group expects the demand of
the Group’s vessel chartering and related services for these marine
construction projects would diminish gradually. On the other hand,
for marine construction services, the acquisition of 34% equity
interest in YLTK (the “Acquisition”) allows the Group to capitalise
on the majority of the duration and revenue of two subcontracts
marine construction agreements (the “Sub-contracts”) with
contract sum of approximately HK$540 million, providing the Group
with a long-term, stable and major customer until March 2027
which are expected to contribute to the Group’s revenue in the
future.
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Group has established a trading business arm for the trading of
machineries and equipment related to marine and construction
industries (the “New Business Activities”). The New Business
Activities will complement the existing businesses of the Group by
providing different products to its clients, which will diversify the
Group’s revenue streams. It is expected that the New Business
Activities will potentially generate additional revenue growth and
operation returns to the Group from time to time, which is in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
Group intends to fund the New Business Activities with its internal
financial resources. The Group is currently exploring a potential
cooperation with an independent business entity which is engaging
in the production and sales of machineries and equipment for
construction industry.

The Group will continue to invest in its vessel fleet and identify other
opportunities in order to capture such business opportunities.

Hong Kong has a long coastal line and the Government of Hong
Kong SAR (the“Government”) is dedicated to improving the
infrastructure of Hong Kong. As a result, the Directors believe
that the long term outlook of the local marine construction market
remains promising. The Company is in constant contact with
the relevant departments within the government setup and are
constantly being updated on the Government’s directions.

Overall speaking, management of the Group is cautiously optimistic
about the on-going growth of revenue and profits from the Group’s
vessel leasing and related services, ship management and marine
construction business in the short coming future.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s total revenue increased by approximately 11.5%,
from HK$334,604,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 to
HK$373,187,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025. Such increase
was mainly attributed by a net effect of (i) the decreased revenue
of vessel chartering and related services a result of decrease in
the demands for the Group’s overall vessel chartering and related
services from other short term marine services projects during the
year; and (i) the increased revenue of marine construction services
as a result of improved progress of certain sizeable projects during
the year.

Cost of revenue

The Group’s cost of revenue primarily consists of vessel chartering
costs, staff costs and related expenses, subcontracting fees, repair
and maintenance expenses, fuel costs, depreciation expenses,
and other costs. The cost of revenue increased by approximately
12.0%, from HK$245,194,000 for the year ended 31 March
2024 to HK$274,623,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025,
which was mainly represented by a net effect of (i) the decreased
vessel chartering expenses payable to third-party vessel suppliers
and other costs related to services rendered to short term
marine services projects; and (ii) the increased construction and
engineering costs of the marine construction projects as a result of
improved progress of certain sizeable projects during the year.

Gross profit and gross profit margins

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately 10.2%,
from HK$89,410,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 to
HK$98,564,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025. Meanwhile, the
Group’s gross profit margin decreased slightly by approximately
0.3 percentage point from approximately 26.7% for the year ended
31 March 2024 to approximately 26.4% for the year ended 31
March 2025, which was mainly due to combined effect of (i) the
aforesaid decrease in the provision of third-party owned vessels,
which generated relatively lower gross profit margin than the
Group’s self-owned vessels; and (ji) the lower gross profit margin of
approximately 13.7% contributed by marine construction services
segment after the Acquisition as a result of significant upfront costs
incurred during the earlier stage of the Sub-contracts during the
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EHEERmEAS T

Other income

The Group’s other income increased by approximately 49.3%, from
HK$2,667,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 to HK$3,983,000
for the year ended 31 March 2025. The increase was mainly due
to (i) increase in bank interest income of HK$341,000; and (ii)
increase in compensation income from insurance refund covered
by insurance policies of HK$669,000 during the year.
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Other gains and losses, net

The Group’s other gains decreased from other losses of
HK$11,203,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 to other
gains of HK$1,771,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025. Such
decrease was mainly due to (i) absence of one-off gain on deemed
disposal of equity interest in an associate for the acquisition and
business combination of YLTK and its subsidiary recognised in the
year ended 31 March 2024 of HK$11,900,000 during the year; (i)
increase in fair value gain on a financial asset liability at fair value
through profit of loss of HK$10,314,000 during the year; and (iii)
impairment loss recognised on goodwill for the acquisition of equity
interest of YLTK of HK$8,414,000 during the year.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased slightly by
approximately 0.5%, from HK$68,413,000 for the year ended 31
March 2024 to HK$68,782,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025.
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Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased from HK$824,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2024 to HK$708,000 for the year ended 31
March 2025, which was attributable by a combined effect of (i)
the recognition of interest expenses from the new leases on lease
liabilities; and (i) decreased interest expenses of bank and other
borrowings as a result of gradual repayments of bank and other
borrowings during the year.

Share of result of an associate

The Group recorded share of loss from an associate of
HK$107,000 during the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: share
of profit of HK$277,000). Such change mainly represented by the
share of profit of Eastlink Marine Services Limited.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Income tax expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s income tax
expenses were HK$1,368,000 (2024: HK$5,095,000), and the
effective tax rate was approximately 4.0% (2024: approximately
14.7%). The decrease in effective tax rate was mainly due to a
combined effect of (i) over provision of tax in prior year; and (i)
successful application of tax concession of using half tax rate at
8.25% for ship management segment.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company decreased by approximately
37.3%, from HK$31,584,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 to
HK$19,807,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025. Basic earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company decreased from
approximately HK3.16 cents for the year ended 31 March 2024 to
approximately HK1.98 cents for the year ended 31 March 2025.
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Dividend

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2025 (2024: HK1.0 cent). The proposed final
dividend which totals HK$10,000,000 (2024: HK$10,000,000), if
approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting, will be paid
on 26 September 2025 to the shareholders on the register of
members as at 3 September 2025.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s trade and other receivables increased by
approximately 18.0%, from HK$71,837,000 as at 31 March 2024
to HK$84,756,000 as at 31 March 2025.

The Group’s trade receivables turnover days increased from
approximately 58.2 days for the year ended 31 March 2024 to
approximately 66.8 days for the year ended 31 March 2025.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB wES T

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group had net current assets of HK$167,793,000 as at
31 March 2025 (2024: HK$128,305,000). The Group’s current
ratio increased from approximately 2.0 as at 31 March 2024 to
approximately 2.5 as at 31 March 2025.

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the interest bearing borrowings
excluding lease liabilities divided by total equity and multiplied by
100% at the respective reporting date. As at 31 March 2025, the
Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 2.40% (2024: 7.23%).

Following the Listing, the Group’s operations were mainly financed
by internal resources including but not limited to existing cash and
cash equivalents, cash flow from its operating activities and the
net proceeds generated from the Listing. The Board believes that
the Group’s liquidity needs will be satisfied. With strengthened
liquidity position, the Group is able to expand in accordance with
its business strategy.

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group incurred capital expenditure of HK$4,564,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: HK$2,748,000), mainly
represented the addition of leasehold improvements and vessels.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2025, save as disclosed elsewhere in this report,
the Group had no significant capital commitments (2024: nil). For
details, please see note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group did not
conduct any significant investment, material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2025, save as disclosed elsewhere in this report,
the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities (2024
nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 March 2025, bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities of HK$3,826,000 (2024: HK$5,470,000) are secured by
mortgages over the equipment with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$3,991,000 (2024: HK$5,457,000).

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group had no other
material pledge of assets at 31 March 2025.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there were no significant
events affecting the Company nor any of its subsidiaries after
the end of the reporting period and up to the date of this report
requiring disclosure in this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENCSHREEEREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy, aged 57, an executive Director, the
Chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer of the Company
and one of the Controlling Shareholders. He is the co-founder
of the Group. He is also a Director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Wen is the spouse of Ms. Chan Sau Ling Amy and the
son of Mr. Chow Wai Ming’s cousin.

Mr. Wen has over 30 years of experience in the maritime services
industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Wen founded Yun Lee Tug Boat
Company Limited, being the subsidiary of the Group with the
longest operating history, with his father in November 1994 and
has been responsible for the overall management of the Group’s
operations and business development since then.

Mr. Wen has been a Committee member of The Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Tenth Beihai Committee since
September 2016. He has been a member (Launch & Excursion
Vessels’ Operations) of The Local Vessels Advisory Committee of
the Marine Department since December 2016. He was a member
of Election Committee of Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2021. He was the President of Hong Kong
& Kowloon Motor Boats & Tug Boats Association Limited from
August 2017 to July 2023 and became its Life President since
August 2023.

Ms. Chan Sau Ling Amy, aged 54, an executive Director. Ms.
Chan was appointed as a Director on 7 March 2018 and was re-
designated as an executive Director on 7 March 2018. She is also
a Director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Chan is the
spouse of Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy.

Ms. Chan has over 30 years of experience in the maritime services
industry in Hong Kong. She obtained a national diploma in hotel,
catering and institutional operations issued by Tresham College in
the United Kingdom in June 1992. Ms. Chan joined the Group in
April 1995 and has been responsible for the overall management of
the Group’s finance and administrative matters since then.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chan Hei Ting, aged 32, an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company, a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. She is primarily responsible for
providing independent judgment on the Group’s strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Ms. Chan has practiced as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong since
2019. Ms. Chan obtained her double-degree of Bachelor of Arts
in English Studies and Bachelor of Education in English Language
Education in 2015 and Degree of Juris Doctor in 2017 from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Ms. Chan obtained Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws in 2018 from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. She was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2019.

Ms. Hong Ting, aged 39, an independent non-executive Director,
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company, a member
of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. She is primarily responsible for providing
independent judgment on the Group’s strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct.

Ms. Hong obtained a Bachelor of Business degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2008. She is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong. She worked
for an international audit firm and has over 16 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, taxation and financial consulting.

BAEMITES

REEFELL 325 REUFATE
= ARAFHZESEIE ARAITE
HEEERRAZEERE - REER
ERASENRE XE - BRETR
VR I8 H T -

RELTE T NLFERBEREAR
oMt -_Z—HAFEFSESFTX
REXBL(REBEXHAE) RHEEL
(ZREBEXHEEEML YR _F—+
FERBARABPXARBEZE LM - R
HEIRNZT-N\FEBSFERXKEEA
BEEXIFE - RN T -NFERFR
BB ALEED

HERT 395 REUIFRTES -
RRAPMEREREGLIE ARFREE
EelFMEEeKE - RETEBAR
AREBOREE - 248 - BRMEITRER
Ve B S H -

BEETR_ZFZN\FREBEHXAER
CREELEMN RRBASHANAE
BERGENBENEGHEN - REXE
REFARER  XREE - FA W
BRM @A EERR 16 FRER -

Annual Report 2025 &%



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hong is currently the managing director of a certified public
accountants firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Hong is also currently an
independent non-executive director of World Houseware (Holdings)
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange,
stock code: 713), an independent non-executive director of Jingrui
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1862) since 31 December 2024, an independent non-executive
director of Yinsheng Digifavor Company Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3773) since 12 May 2025, an
independent non-executive director of Ermest Borel Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1856) since 29
May 2025 and an independent non-executive director of Qingdao Gon
Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002768) since 6 June 2025. Besides, Ms. Hong was
an independent non-executive director of Wai Chun Bio-Technology
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 660)
and a non-executive director of Alco Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 328), an independent non-
executive director of C&D Newin Paper & Pulp Corporation Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 731).

Mr. Ng Simon, aged 51, an independent non-executive Director,
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. He is primarily responsible for providing
independent judgment on the Group’s strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Ng, has over 25 years of experience in the financial industry,
focusing on corporate finance advisory, fund raising, direct
investments and brokerage operations. Mr. Ng is the Chief Strategy
Officer of Unity Group Holdings International Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the
issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code:1539). Mr. Ng was a member of the board
of director, the chief executive officer and a responsible officer
of Hooray Securities Limited (&f Z:& 5 EBR A R]), a corporation
licensed to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and Hooray Capital Limited (4F
BRE B A7]), a corporation licensed to carry out Type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activity under the SFO.
Mr. Ng obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours Economics) degree
from Wilfrid Laurier University, Canada in 1996 and a Master of
Economics degree from The University of Hong Kong in 1997.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheung Tai Kee, aged 71, a director of MKK Marine Services
Limited (“MKK Marine”). He joined the Group in August 2014 and
is primarily responsible for the overall management of the Group’s
ship management services.

Mr. Cheung has over 30 years of experience in the marine industry.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science in Maritime Business from
Polytechnic South West (now known as Plymouth University),
United Kingdom in July 1991. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Cheung was a licensed Senior Harbour Pilot of Hong Kong
Pilots Association Limited from November 1994 to July 2015.
He previously held the Certificate of Competency (Deck Officer)
Class 1 (Master Mariner) issued by the Government of the United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland in January 1987,
which was later replaced by the Certificate of Competency issued
under the Provisions of The International Convention on Standards
of Training, Certification and Watchkeeping for Seafarers 1978, as
amended in 1995, issued in August 2003. Mr. Cheung is currently
an authorised surveyor pursuant to section 7 of the Merchant
Shipping (Local Vessels) Ordinance for a period of three years from
October 2017.

Mr. Chow Wai Ming, aged 59, a senior manager of the Group and
a director of MKK Marine. He first joined the Group in November
1994 as a manager and was subsequently promoted to senior
manager in January 2009, is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Group’s vessel chartering and related services.
Mr. Chow is the cousin of Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy’s father.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow has 30 years of experience in the maritime services
industry. He has been examined by the Marine Department and
has been considered competent to take charge of a motor over
150 B.H.P. from March 1995. He also holds the Local Certificate
of Competency — Coxswain and Pleasure Vessel Operator
Certificate of Competency, both issued by the Marine Department,
in December 2013 and January 2014, respectively. Furthermore,
Mr. Chow holds (i) a Certificate of Training for Shipboard Crane
Operator Safety Training Course issued by Origin Production
Limited T/A The Hong Kong Safety Training Association in
December 2015, which indicates that Mr. Chow could operate
crane types one to five; (ii) a Certificate of Training for Works
Supervisor Safety Training Course issued by Origin Production
Limited T/A The Hong Kong Safety Training Association in April
2016, which indicates that Mr. Chow could supervise shipboard
cargo handling work; and (i) a Certificate of Competent Person
and Certified Worker issued by Occupational Safety & Health
Management Institute in April 2016. Mr. Chow has also been the
Honorary President of The Institute of Port Facility Security Officers
(Hong Kong) since May 2016.

Mr. Lo Kwun Kit, aged 36, joined the Group as the financial
controller and company secretary since 30 October 2023 and is
primarily responsible for accounting and financial management,
company secretary, tax, treasury, internal control and other finance
related matters of the Group.

Mr. Lo has over 11 years of experience in the relevant experience.
From 2013 to 2023, Mr. Lo served as an auditor in several
professional firms including two of the big four international
accounting firms in Hong Kong as well as financial controllers
and company secretary of three main board listed companies
in Hong Kong. Mr. Lo obtained a bachelor degree of Business
Administration with major in accountancy and minor in finance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2013 and has
been an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 2016 and
2023, respectively.
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The Board hereby presents this corporate governance report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2025.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving high
corporate governance standards. The Board believes that good
corporate governance standards are essential in providing
a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business
strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability. The Company has adopted the principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
as the basis of the Company’s corporate governance practices

In preparation for the Listing, the Company engaged an
independent internal control adviser (the “IC Adviser”) to perform a
review of the procedure, system and control (including accounting
and management systems) of the Group. Based on its internal
control review, the IC Adviser recommended certain internal control
improvement measures to the Group and the Group has adopted
them. The Directors were of the view that the internal control
systems were adequate and sufficient in the circumstances.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODES COMPLIANCE

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of
the CG Code and has complied with the CG Code for the year
ended 31 March 2025, except in relation to provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code which requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy, an executive
Director, is both the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company. With over 30 years of experience in the
maritime industry in Hong Kong, Mr. Wen has been responsible for
the overall management of the Group’s operations and business
development and has been instrumental to the Group’s growth and
business expansion since November 1994. The Board considers
that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person is beneficial to the management of the Group. The
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprises experienced
and high-calibre individuals. The Board currently comprises two
executive Directors (including Mr. Wen) and three independent
non-executive Directors and therefore has a strong independence
element in its composition.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions (the “Securities Dealing Code”)
by the Directors and employees who, because of his office or
employment in the Group, is likely to possess inside information of
the Company.

In response to specific enquires made by the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the Securities Dealing
Code for the year ended 31 March 2025.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company is not aware of

any incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code by
the relevant employees
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and should take decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board consists of five directors, comprising two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Sau Ling Amy

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Chan Hei Ting

Ms. Hong Ting

Mr. Ng Simon

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 18 to 22 of this annual report.

The relationships between the Directors are also disclosed in the
respective Director’s biography under the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to 22 of
this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a
year involving active participation, either in person or through
electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors. The
attendance record of each director at the Board meetings, Board
Committee meetings and general meeting held during the year
ended 31 March 2025 is set out in the table below:

EEZRZEEAENHELHF

EFSerHigdREsEL82TmA
ARBAZEERFLE - HBEBEFBA
FERBLHE - REEHENRBEZ
—HEZA=THILFERTZES
eEF EFESZEeERRRRRE

ZAREREN K ¢

Attendance/Number of Meetings

il V- Ve |

Nomination Audit  Remuneration Annual general

Board Committee Committee Committee meeting

Name of Directors E=pg EEE RE¥ZEE ERZEE yHMzEe RRAFAE
Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy BFREE 4/4 N/A T A N/A T N/A TN 111
Ms. Chan Sau Ling Amy RAERTL 4/4 N/A NER N/A NEF N/A NEF 1N
Ms. Chan Hei Ting RAEBIL 4/4 1 3/3 2/2 N
Ms. Hong Ting Bt 4/4 11 3/3 2/2 17
Mr. Ng Simon mtREE 4/4 11 3/3 2/2 17

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FEEITBAER

Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy, an executive Director, is both the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company.
With over 30 years of experience in the maritime industry in Hong
Kong, Mr. Wen has been responsible for the overall management
of the Group’s operations and business development and has
been instrumental to the Group’s growth and business expansion
since November 1994. The Board considers that vesting the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is
beneficial to the management of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors, representing
at least one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to renewal after
the expiry of the then current term.

The Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) provides that all Directors appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment.

Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company
and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board approved and adopted the dividend policy (“Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders
to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to retain
adequate reserves for future growth.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company proposed to commence
paying a dividend in each financial year to shareholders of the
Company, the amount of which will be determined by the Board
after taking into account the factors set out below over the next few
years. Thereafter, the Company will likely seek to adopt a dividend
payout ratio based on its core earnings, details of which will be
announced by the Company as and when appropriate.

While the Company intends to declare and pay dividend in the
future, the amount of any dividend payment for any financial year
will be subject to, among other things:

(@ the Company maintaining an optimal capital structure to
ensure that adequate capital resources are available for
business growth and investment opportunities;

(b)  the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

(c) the availability of dividends received by the Company from its
subsidiaries;

(d) the Group’s cash flow and liquidity position; and

(e) prevailing economic and market conditions and other factors
that may impact the business or financial performance of the
Group.

In addition, the declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is further subject to compliance with applicable laws
and regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s articles of association.
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The Board will take the above factors into account when it
evaluates the merits, amount and timing of future dividend
payments. The Company in general meeting may declare dividends
but no dividends shall exceed the amount recommended by the
Board.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed by the Board from time to
time and there is no assurance that dividends will be proposed or
declared in any particular amount for any given period.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management
of the Company are delegated to the management under the
supervision of Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy, the Chairman.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and sKills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be
arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be provided to
Directors where appropriate.
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TEERRE

Directors have participated in the following trainings during the year
ended 31 March 2024:

HE-_ZSE-_WNF=A=+—HILFE "
BEp2E B

Type of training’“*

Name of Directors EENA 1IN R
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy BT E B
Ms. Chan Sau Ling Amy PRFER LT B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHBITESE
Ms. Chan Hei Ting PR 22 & A&B
Ms. Hong Ting HiFZ+ A&B
Mr. Ng Simon At s A&B
Notes: BisE -
Types of Training: HIEER
A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, expert briefings, A HEEFBEFSER)ERE N E  HAag -
seminars, conferences and workshops @R TENEEIIRE
B: Reading relevant journals, rulebooks, guidelines and relevant updates and B: HMEAHESHT - BAFM - ESIULREER
publications BB KR
BOARD COMMITTEES EEERETE
The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit EFgERE—\FALAZ+HKT
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nominaton =AZE&€ DR ABZEZE S - H
Committee on 20 September 2018, for overseeing particular ZEBENRZZE S UERARQ AR

aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under the
section headed “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this annual
report.
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Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the Company’s financial information, overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems, reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the
internal audit function, scope of audit and making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of external auditor, and reviewing
the arrangements for employees of the Company can use to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to discuss the audit planning with the auditors and
to review the annual financial results and reports for the year ended
31 March 2024, the interim financial results and reports for the six
months period ended 30 September 2024 and significant issues
on the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls,
the effectiveness of the risk management, appointment of external
auditors and relevant scope of works.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management; and establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review and made recommendation
on policy and structure for Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration; to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the corporate goals
and objectives of the Board; and to review and determine on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board
and the Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring the
implementation of the Policy. In assessing the Board composition,
the Nomination Committee would take into account various
aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out
in the Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, or professional experience etc. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions which may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Nomination Committee
held two meeting to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
the Policy, and made recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and to review and make recommendation to the Board on re-
election of retiring Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Securities
Dealing Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this corporate governance report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the remuneration paid/
payable in respect of the services provided by the Group’s external
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out below:
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Amounts HK$’000

Type of services PRiEER SETER
Annual audit services F S EIZARTE 1,100
Total 4Bt 1,100

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company currently does not have an internal audit department,
and has engaged an independent professional internal control
consulting firm (“Internal Control Reviewer”) to review the
Group’s internal control system, policy and procedures and report
to the Audit Committee their findings and recommendations. The
Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and
is of the view that in light of the size and nature of the business
of the Group, instead of setting up an internal audit department,
it would be more cost effective to appoint external independent
professionals to carry out evaluations on the internal control
systems, and the risk management system of the Group on an on-
going basis. The Board will review at least annually the need for
setting up an internal audit function.

The Board concluded that in general, the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate. The Board
will continue to assess the effectiveness of risk management and
internal controls by considering reviews and recommendations
made by the audit committee, senior management and Internal
Control Reviewer.
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MAIN FEATURES OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main responsibilities
of each level of the structure are summarised below:

The Board is responsible to determine the business strategies and
objectives of the Group, and evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives; ensures that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems; and oversees management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to
perform its responsibilities of risk management and internal control
systems; overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis; reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems at
least annually, and such review should cover all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance control; ensures the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions; and considers major findings on
risk management and internal control matters, and reports and
makes recommendations to the Board.

Senior management of the Group designs, implements and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; identifies, evaluates and manages the risk that
may potentially impact the major processes of the operations;
monitors risk and takes measures to mitigate risk in day-to-day
operations and provides confirmation to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

In addition to the Board’s oversight responsibilities, the Company
has developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks and to resolve material internal control
defects. Senior management of the Group is responsible for the
annual risk reporting process. Independent external consultant
meets with various members of the senior management to review
and assess risks and discuss solutions to address material internal
control defects, including any changes relevant to a given year.
Risks are compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation plans are
documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by certain members
of the senior management and presented to the Audit Committee
and the Board for their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and the Group’s senior
management based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on
the Company’s financial results; and (i) the probability that the risk
will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks as
follows:

- Risk elimination — the Group’s senior management may
identify and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

- Risk mitigation — the Group’s senior management may
implement a risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an acceptable
level.

- Risk retention — the Group’s senior management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable for
the Company and that no action is required. The risk would
continue to be monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not increase to an
unacceptable level.
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INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure policy
(the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) which sets out the
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside information
with a view to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective
dissemination of inside information and ensuring shareholders and
the public are provided with full, accurate and timely information
about the activities and the financial condition of the Group. The
Inside Information Disclosure Policy covers the following:

e setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and
escalating potential inside information to the Board;

* gsetting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information, escalating upwards any
such potential information and cascading down the message
and responsibilities to relevant staff; and

e dentifying who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons
and their responsibilities for communications with
stakeholders of the Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant staff
regarding the implementation of the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard the
Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure obligations
in respect of inside information are in place.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

The statements of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 114 to 120 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Lo Kwun Kit, who
fulfils the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Lo are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. During the year ended 31 March 2025, Mr. Lo has
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

WHISTLEBLOWER SYSTEM

The Company has a whistleblower system through which our
stakeholders can report their knowledge or reasonable doubt
of fraudulent acts, misconduct or non-compliance with laws or
internal policies relating to our Group.

Our Board is responsible for overseeing the system and following
up on all valid reports filed in goodwill. While we welcome filings in
confidence, we undertake to protect goodwill whistleblowers from

being retaliated.

Whistleblowers shall file their reports in address to our Chairman of
the Board by ways of:

- by mailing to our registered office in Hong Kong or,

- by emailing to whistleblowing@yunlee.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions should be proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Directors. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall also be convened on the requisition of one or
more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two calendar months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders of the Company to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders of the Company
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph. As regards proposing a person
for election as a director of the Company, please refer to the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as
a Director” of the Company which is posted on the Company’s
website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders of the Company may send written enquiries to the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Flat D, 31/F., Billion Plaza Il,

10 Cheung Yue Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: info@yunlee.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available
to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at www.yunlee.com.hk as
a communication platform with the shareholders and investors,
where the financial information and other relevant information of the
Company are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted by a special resolution the second
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
on 30 August 2022. For further details, please refer to the circular
of the Company dated 28 July 2022 and the announcement of
the Company dated 30 August 2022. The Company’s second
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, there was no change to the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association during the
reporting period.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or “we”),
is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG”) Report (the “ESG Report” or “This Report”) for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 (the “Reporting Period”).

This ESG Report has been meticulously prepared in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guidelines (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) set forth in Appendix
C2 of the Main Board Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Our commitment to
transparency and accountability is reflected in this Report, which
outlines our strategic approach to Corporate Social Responsibility
(“CSR”) and provides a comprehensive summary of our initiatives,
programs, and performance in the realms of environmental
stewardship, social responsibility, and governance practices.

Throughout the Reporting Period, we have undertaken various
initiatives aimed at promoting sustainable development within
our operations and the wider community. This Report not only
highlights our achievements but also addresses the challenges we
face, demonstrating our unwavering commitment to continuous
improvement in our ESG performance. By aligning our business
objectives with sustainable practices, we aim to create long-term
value for our stakeholders and contribute positively to society and
the environment.
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REPORTING SCOPE

The Group is a maritime services provider in Hong Kong with an
operating history of over twenty years. This ESG report covers
the Group’s overall performance in two subject areas, namely,
Environmental and Social aspects of the business operations in
Hong Kong from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 (the “Reporting
Period”), unless otherwise stated. The business operations include
provisions of the following services, there are no significant
changes in the scope of This Report from the reporting period of
the previous year (1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024):

» vessel chartering and related services, including:

o the provision of vessels, crew members, maritime
consultation services, vessel repair and maintenance
services; and

»  ship management services, including:

o the daily operations, as well as repair and maintenance
services for third-party-owned vessels.

During the Reporting Period, the following are the 3 main
operations included in the reporting scope:

»  Cheung Sha Wan Office
»  Mong Kok Office
»  Kwai Chung Office.

The information contained in This Report has been collected and
collated from a variety of sources, including but not limited to the
Group’s internal control policies, some factual evidence of the
implementation of ESG-related measures, business data and
annual financial data from the Group’s actual operations, as well as
data derived from relevant internal statistical reports, administrative
documents and other reports.
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REPORTING STANDARDS AND PRINCIPLES

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide, ensuring accurate and transparent disclosure of
the Company’s ESG performance. The following core principles
have guided our reporting process:

>

Materiality - We conducted a structured materiality
assessment in collaboration with senior management and key
stakeholders to identify the most significant ESG issues for
the Reporting Period. The results, detailed in the “Stakeholder
Engagement and Materiality assessment” section, ensure our
reporting focuses on topics critical to the Group’s long-term
sustainability and stakeholder interests.

Quantitative - Key performance indicators (“KPI” s) have been
established and are measurable and applicable to make valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions; information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions, and/or calculation
tools used, and sources of conversion factors used, have
been disclosed when applicable.

Balance - Performance of the Group was presented impartially,
avoiding choices, omissions or presentation formats that may
unduly influence readers’ decisions or judgements.

Consistency - Consistent statistical methodologies and
presentation of KPIs have been used to allow meaningful
comparisons of related data over time.
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THE BOARD STATEMENT

The Board holds comprehensive responsibility for steering the
Group’s ESG strategy and ensuring robust reporting mechanisms.
It maintains a tight oversight of the Group’s day-to-day activities
by holding periodic meetings and engaging in in-depth discussions
with the management teams across various business units. This
vigilant approach enables the Board to stay abreast of both the
Group’s business achievements and its ESG performance metrics,
including meticulously reviewing the progress toward meeting
ESG-related targets. In an ever-evolving landscape, the Board
is committed to regularly re-evaluating and updating its policies
and refining its ESG strategies to align with the latest industry
regulations and government-mandated ESG requirements.

The Board is convinced that adopting a holistic ESG management
framework can significantly reduce business, environmental, and
social risks, while simultaneously boosting the Group’s value. By
ensuring strict compliance with laws and regulations, this approach
paves the way for the Group’s long - term sustainable growth. As
such, the Group has made it a priority to incorporate sustainability
principles into its decision - making processes for ongoing business
operations.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department (or an external professional
agency engaged by the Board of Directors and the audit
committee) takes on the crucial role of assessing and identifying the
Group’s environmental, social, and governance risks on an annual
basis. Their responsibility also encompasses verifying that effective
environmental, social, and governance risk management and
internal surveillance systems are in place. Furthermore, the Internal
Audit Department is tasked with providing assurance to the Board
regarding the effectiveness of these systems.
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The Board actively cultivates close relationships with industry
organizations and plays a proactive role in relevant trade
associations. The Group is a member of the Hong Kong &
Kowloon Motor Boats & Tug Boats Association (“MBTA”), and
the Group’s Chairman serves as the president of this association.
Leveraging our membership in the MBTA, the Board actively
promotes knowledge sharing, builds strong connections, and
fosters collaborations with other industry bodies. Participation in
the association enables the Board to stay informed about the latest
updates in environmental and safety regulations and to obtain
practical guidance and support on accident insurance. The Board
then disseminates this valuable industry-related information to
employees through online communication channels. Additionally,
the Group’s executive directors keep a close watch on the Group’s
daily operations and participate in meetings with the management
of each business unit to monitor the Group’s business performance
and ESG-related matters.

Furthermore, the Group is committed to delivering high-quality
products and services to its customers. To guarantee the safety
and seaworthiness of the vessels, the Group has engaged
chartered surveyors to conduct annual inspections of the fleet and
to ensure the proper maintenance of its operating licenses. All
crew members are required to strictly adhere to the requirements
outlined in the Code of Safe Working Practice, thereby ensuring the
Group’s full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

To propel the Group’s sustainable development strategy forward,
it is imperative that we delve into our stakeholders’ views and
expectations concerning the Group’s growth trajectory and success
benchmarks. Such comprehension equips us to more accurately
gauge the potential environmental and societal ramifications of our
prospective business undertakings.
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Throughout the Reporting Period, the Group has taken the
initiative to engage with a broad spectrum of stakeholders.
We have meticulously taken measured steps to not only fortify
existing relationships but also to foster positive and collaborative
partnerships. This proactive approach underscores our
commitment to understanding the diverse needs and concerns
of those who have a stake in our success, which in turn helps
us to align our business practices with broader societal and

environmental goals.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERHE

REEREHAR - NEBTHEEAF D
FEB - RARERINEEREAZER

BRA% - AR EERRNSIERHRIE -

i B E TR T RAE A SERETNZ
BACHERRBEN TR - e E BRI
BPNEBEREE RN ERRERF
1Rt

Stakeholders Key issues Communication Channels
BHE BREE BERE
Customers e Better services and support e  Company website

e Quality and Safety of Vessels ®* Phone and emalil

e Protection of customers’ privacy e  Communication with staff

* Reputation and experience e  Customer comment cards
BP o BRI KX o NAEABUA

s MMEERZE o THENEH

o REFFEML e HWMBETHEMD

o BERNKR s EPERR
Suppliers * Fair and Open Purchasing e Open Tender

e Environmentally friendly e Standardized Procurement

* Anti-corruption Procedures

* Face-to-face meetings and site visits
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e IRIR o BEMEKERF

e REF s HYHEHEREHMER
Shareholders e Corporate Governance Structure and  ®  Annual/Extraordinary general

and Investors

RihERREE

system

Business Strategy and Performance
Transparency and Reputation
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EBRBERE

FRENEE

meetings

Annual reports and announcements
Company website and email
BREBEE HRIRE
FEBRERASE

YNSIEERp e

Annual Report 2025 &%

45



&

‘ ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

L RIE - HEREARE

Stakeholders Key issues Communication Channels
FE BEERE BERE
Employees * Remuneration and compensation e Employee training
e  Career development and training * Performance reviews
e Occupational health and safety
=] o HREMKHE o [EEEII

Government and

o BEITREF
s BEXREEREZLZE

e  Compliance with laws and regulations

o REFAE

* Routine reporting and disclosure

Regulatory e Safety Standards *  Announcements
Agencies e Environmental Protection ® Press releases
BUR M BB s o EBTERBER o PIITMEREE
o LHRIRE s NnE
o IRIERE o MR
Communities e Community environment e Community activities
e Community Engagement e Employee voluntary activities
® Infrastructure Development e  (Charitable donations
it s HERIRE o HEEEF
e HEBH e EEEIEF
o HMRHMER o HERE
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEEHTE

The Group maintains continuous engagement with its stakeholders
to gain deeper insights into their expectations and perspectives
on ESG issues. Through diverse communication channels—
such as regular meetings, and written exchanges, the Group
actively involves investors, shareholders, employees, customers,
and suppliers in discussions and reviews of key focus areas. This
collaborative approach not only supports the Group’s potential
growth but also equips it to navigate future challenges effectively.
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In the preparation of this ESG Report, the Group conducted
targeted engagements with key stakeholders, including the Board
of Directors, senior management, frontline staff, customers,
and suppliers. These interactions were integral to the materiality
assessment process, aimed at identifying and prioritizing ESG
issues critical to the Group’s sustainable development during the
Reporting Period. The materiality issues identified in the Reporting
Period have been reconciled to be largely convergent with those of
financial year 2023/24, and the relevant materiality issues continue
to be the focus of our work. The outcomes of this assessment,
along with a consolidated list of material ESG aspects, are detailed
in the accompanying matrix and table, respectively.
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and international diverse stakeholders to
sustainability guidelines,
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Integration

Based on the assessment
results, the Group established
a matrix of ESG - related issues
by combining two aspects:

the "Materiality of ESG Issues
to External Stakeholders" and
the "Materiality of ESG Issues
to the Group." This process
determined the priority of the
18 identified issues.
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Materiality of Different Topics from Stakeholder Engagement
BRESERMNTREBENES Y

Materiality to internal stakeholders ¥ REPIHHENES M

LOWER &

LOWER E&

Materiality to external Stakeholders
HIMPIAENEEY

The 18 identified issues are all key to the Group’s sustainable
development. Among them, those in the upper right quadrant of
the matrix have greater significance. During the Reporting Period,
we found 7 issues needing the most attention, which are as follows:
o  Product/Service Quality

0  Anti-corruption

o  Customer satisfaction

o  Customer information and privacy

0  Occupational health and safety

o  Selection and monitoring of suppliers

o  Preventing child and forced labour
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The above 7 issues are categorized as the key elements that drive
the Group’s sustainable business and are further elaborated in the

following sections of This Report.
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Product/Service Quality
Em/ REEE

Anti-corruption
KRES
Customer satisfaction

EFREE

Customer information and privacy

EFPERKETL

Occupational health and safety

BxEELLE

Selection and monitoring of suppliers
HERBEREE

Preventing child and forced labour
B IEZE T Rog s T

Training (including anti-corruption training)
Il BEREFEI)
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Materiality Classification
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Energy and water use

BEIR K 7K

Employee remuneration, benefits and rights
(e.g. working hours, rest periods, working
conditions)
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Environmental social risks of the suppliers
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Air emissions

BERBEIR

Use of materials (e.g. packaging, raw materials)
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Greenhouse gas emissions
BERIBBEN

Climate change
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Waste production

EEMEL

Observing and protecting intellectual property
rights
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Community support
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STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its ESG approach
and performance. Suggestions and views can be sent via email at
info@yunlee.com.hk.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group remains steadfast in its commitment to operating in
an environmentally responsible manner. While delivering favorable
returns to its shareholders, we place a strong emphasis on
integrating environmental sustainability into its core operations.
To uphold this commitment, the Group rigorously adheres to
all pertinent local laws and regulations related to environmental
protection and pollution control, as mandated by the Marine
Department and the Environmental Protection Department of Hong
Kong, including:

» Merchant Shipping (Local Vessels) Ordinance, Chapter 548 of
Law of Hong Kong;

»  Shipping and Port Control Ordinance, Chapter 313 of Law of
Hong Kong;

» Merchant Shipping (Prevention and Control of Pollution)
Ordinance, Chapter 413 of Law of Hong Kong;

» Merchant Shipping (Prevention of Oil Pollution) Regulations,
subsidiary legislation under Chapter 413 of Law of Hong
Kong;

» Merchant Shipping (Control of Pollution by Noxious Liquid
Substances in Bulk) Regulations, subsidiary legislation under
Chapter 413 of Law of Hong Kong;

» Merchant Shipping (Prevention of Air Pollution) Regulation,
Chapter 413P of Law of Hong Kong;
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»  Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Chapter 311 of Law of Hong
Kong;

»  Air Pollution Control (Fuel for Vessels) Regulation, Chapter
311AB of Law of Hong Kong;

»  Air Pollution Control (Marine Light Diesel) Regulation, Chapter
311Y of Law of Hong Kong;

» Dumping at Sea Ordinance, Chapter 466 of Law of Hong
Kong; and

» Water Pollution Control Ordinance, Chapter 358 of Law of
Hong Kong.

The Group remains dedicated to minimising its environmental
footprint across all operations. We ensure strict compliance with
environmental legislation in every jurisdiction. The Group has not
yet established written policies on emissions and greenhouse gas
emissions (“GHG”), discharges to water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. We have integrated eco-
conscious practices into our daily workflows, such as emissions
tracking, waste reduction initiatives, and water conservation
measures. During the Reporting Period, the Group was fully
compliant with all relevant environmental laws and regulations. We
did not violate any laws and regulations that could have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to air and GHG, water and land
discharges, and the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Air pollution and GHG

The Group has been actively committed to environmental
sustainability. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s vessels
and vehicles were widely used for daily business operations and
commuting of employees, which inevitably led to the emission
of certain pollutants, including nitrogen oxides (NOXx), respiratory
suspended particles (RSP) and sulphur oxides (SOx), as well as
GHG. The GHG emitted directly by the Group were from the use of
petrol and diesel in vehicles and vessels, and its indirect emissions
mainly came from purchased government electricity.
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These pollutants and GHG can have adverse effects on both
the environment and human health, such as contributing to air
pollution, acid rain and respiratory diseases. To better understand
and manage the environmental impact, the Group has carefully
monitored and recorded the emission data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s business operations
gave rise to the emission of GHG of 5,209.37 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (“tCOzeq.”), primarily comprising carbon dioxide,
methane, and nitrous oxide. The Group’s GHG emission intensity
stood at 13.96 tCOzeq./million Hong Kong dollars when referenced
to the Group’s total revenue. Owing to the nature of its business,
the Group consumed substantial amounts of light diesel oil for
vessel operations, as well as petrol and diesel for vehicles. These
fuel-related activities were the dominant source of the Group’s
overall GHG emissions, accounting for a staggering 96.5%.

In the financial year 2023/24, there were some omissions in data
collection. To ensure comparability and accuracy, the data for the
previous period has been restated in This Report. As shown in the
table below, there was a slight decrease in the intensity of GHG
emissions in the current year compared to the previous year. The
revision not only corrects the data discrepancies but also provides
a clearer and more reliable basis for assessing the Group’s
environmental performance.

The specific numbers of each type of emission during the Reporting
Period are presented in the table below. By analyzing this data, the
Group can gain insights into its emission sources and levels, which
serves as a basis for developing more effective emission reduction
strategies. The Group is also actively exploring various measures
to mitigate these emissions, such as upgrading to cleaner
technologies and optimizing transportation routes. These efforts
reflect the Group’s commitment to reducing its environmental
footprint and contributing to a healthier and more sustainable
future.
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Type of Emission Indicators Unit 2024/2025 2023/2024
—BCNE ZBZ=F)/
Eeb: 1R By —E-HF CBCNF
Air Emissions' NOx kg 276.24 241.78
FESRBER AEtm T
SO« 1.04 0.80
k=R let7)
RSP 20.01 17.51
CILUN SE2ves
GHG Emissions >  Scope 1 tCO2eq. 5,028.36 4,515.85
BERBHER:  HBE1 WE—S(LIREE
Scope 2 172.93 165.17
HE2
Scope 3 8.08 4.45
#HE3
Total GHG emissions® 5,209.37 4.685.47
BRERBHHRES
Total emission intensity * tCO2eq./HK$'m revenue 13.96 14.0

M CiXE 8 BEETRE

Air emissions are emissions from the combustion of unleaded petrol and
diesel fuel in a moving vehicle, which are calculated with reference to the
Stock Exchange’s “How to Prepare an ESG Report - Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. In addition, the air emissions from vessels
were not reported since the information on vessel activity was not readily
accessible.

GHG emissions are attributed to the combustion of unleaded petrol, diesel and
marine light diesel in vehicles and vessels (Scope 1), the purchase of electricity
(Scope 2), the disposal of wastepaper in landfills, as well as the business air
travel of employees (Scope 3) during the Reporting Period. All of the above
data has been calculated in accordance with the Stock Exchange’s “How to
Prepare an ESG Report - Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” and “Lifecycle GHG Emission Intensity Calculation and Certification
Guidelines for Marine Fuels 2023”,

The annual absolute amount of the combustion of fuels for vessels were used
for calculating the GHG emissions and energy consumption rather than using
the annual average amount in the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group'’s revenue amounted to HK$373.2
million (2023/24: HK$334.6 million). GHG emission intensity was calculated by
dividing the total GHG emissions by the sales of the Group (in millions of Hong
Kong dollars).
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Measures to Mitigate Emissions

Navigation Sources

During the Reporting Period, the Group was committed to
controlling emissions from its vessels. In line with the Air Pollution
Control (Marine Light Diesel) Regulation (Chapter 311Y of Law
of Hong Kong), the Group adopted ultra-low sulphur diesel
(with a sulphur content not exceeding 0.05%) for its vessel fleet.
Compared to conventional fuels, this cleaner fuel reduces SOx
emissions by 90% and PM emissions by 30%, as the lower sulphur
content allows for the application of advanced emissions control
technologies that substantially lower the harmful emissions from
diesel combustion.

In addition to using cleaner fuels, the Group ensured that all
rental vessels complied with relevant laws and regulations. These
vessels were required to pass ship inspections and obtain license
renewals issued by the Marine Department. To further control
emissions, the Group implemented strict measures to regulate dark
smoke emissions from its vessels. The vessels were operated by
experienced personnel and underwent professional maintenance
to ensure optimal performance and minimize emissions. Chartered
surveyors inspected the vessel fleet regularly to ensure the proper
operation of engines and compliance with emission standards. The
Ringelmann Chart was utilized to measure dark smoke emissions,
ensuring that no excessive dark smoke (i.e., dark smoke as dark as
or darker than shade 2 on the Ringelmann Chart for 3 minutes or
more continuously at any one time) was emitted from the vessels in
Hong Kong waters. These comprehensive measures demonstrated
the Group’s dedication to environmental protection and its active
role in reducing the environmental impact of its operations.
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Road Transportation Sources

The Group has implemented a comprehensive approach to reduce
its environmental impact by meticulously measuring and analyzing
its fuel consumption patterns. This data-driven strategy not only
enhances operational efficiency but also serves as a foundation for
developing targeted emission reduction measures.

In addition to optimizing fuel use, the Group actively promotes
environmental awareness among its employees by encouraging
the use of public transportation. To facilitate this, the Group has
introduced a series of initiatives, such as providing subsidies
for public transport fees, offering incentives for carpooling, and
organizing environmental protection campaigns to educate
employees about the benefits of sustainable commuting
choices. These efforts aim to foster a culture of environmental
consciousness within the organization and reduce the carbon
footprint associated with employees’ commuting.

Furthermore, the Group places great emphasis on proper vehicle
maintenance as a crucial means of reducing smoke emissions. A
strict maintenance schedule has been established to ensure that
all vessels and vehicles undergo regular inspections and servicing.
This includes checking and replacing air filters, oil filters, and spark
plugs, as well as monitoring the performance of emission control
systems. By maintaining vehicles in optimal condition, the Group
can significantly reduce the emission of harmful pollutants such
as particulate matter and nitrogen oxides, thereby minimizing the
potential adverse effects on the surrounding environment and
public health.
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Progress on GHG emissions controls

Committed to sustainable development, the Group endeavors to
consistently deliver sustainable business performance. Originally,
the Group set the financial year 2021/22 as the baseline for
emissions and established a 10 - year target of reducing carbon
emissions. However, in the financial year 2023/24, the Group
added a new office in Kwai Chung as a result of acquisition of
marine construction business. To more accurately measure
the emissions, the Group decided to revise the baseline to the
Reporting Period (the financial year 2024/25). Nevertheless, the
overall target period remains as the 10 - year span starting from
the financial year 2021/22. As of the Reporting Period, there are 7
years remaining to achieve this target. Within this timeframe, the
Group aims to achieve a 5% decrease in GHG intensity, measured
in tCO2eq per million Hong Kong dollars of total revenue, using the
baseline data from the financial year 2024/25 for comparison.

Waste management

Hazardous Waste

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection
and adheres to the principle of sustainable development. The
Group adopts a comprehensive and stringent waste management
approach throughout its operations, effectively minimizing the
generation of hazardous waste. As a result, the Group’s business
operations did not generate a large amount of hazardous waste
during the Reporting Period. The small amount of hazardous
waste generated was handled in strict accordance with the law
and environmental standards to ensure that the impact on the
environment was minimized. In view of the fact that no large
amount of hazardous waste was generated, and the small amount
of hazardous waste was handled appropriately, the Group does
not present specific details about hazardous waste in This Report.

Non-hazardous Waste

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not generate a
significant amount of non-hazardous waste. Hence, no such
information is presented in this report.
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Wastes Handling and Reduction Initiatives

During the Reporting Period, the Group implemented a series
of measures for waste handling and reduction. Used lubricating
oils, classified as hazardous waste due to their properties, were
promptly sent to eligible waste handlers for proper disposal.
Alternatively, the Group established a general practice of
transferring waste oils to its business partners for beneficial reuse.
This approach not only ensures compliance with environmental
regulations but also promotes resource recycling.

Wastepaper was the major non-hazardous waste generated. The
Group collected wastepaper at designated points and encouraged
the reuse of single-sided printouts for notes and as scrap paper.
Furthermore, the Group continued to explore paperless office
solutions, such as promoting paperless meetings and electronic
documentation. These initiatives aim to further minimize paper
consumption and reduce the environmental impact of office
operations.

The Group did not dispose of a significant amount of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste through its business activities, and its
effect on the environment was considered minimal. As such, no
specific hazardous and non-hazardous waste reduction targets
were set during the Reporting Period. However, the Group
continues to advocate for the reduction of waste at the source and
actively promotes greater reuse of materials that might otherwise
be wasted during its business operations. This includes raising
employee awareness of waste reduction practices and encouraging
sustainable behaviors in daily operations.

Use of resources

While the Group has yet to formulate standardized policies for
resource utilization efficiency enhancement, it has actively fostered
a culture of resource conservation. Through ongoing initiatives
and guidance, employees are encouraged to adopt eco-friendly
practices in their day-to-day routines and across all business
operations.
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Energy Consumption

To maintain consistency and accuracy, the previous reporting
year’'s (2023/24) consumption data presented in this section has
also been restated like data of Air pollution and GHG. This ensures
that all comparisons are based on uniform and reliable information.

In terms of energy consumption, the Group’s business operations
consumed a total of 19,879.5 MWh from diverse sources, including
electricity, marine light diesel for vessels, and diesel/petrol for
vehicles, this equates to an overall energy intensity of 53.27
MWh/million Hong Kong dollars when based on the Group’s total
revenue, a slight reduction from 2023/24.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s use of resources is
shown below:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERHE

BEFHMEE

MR — B RN - ARSI E—
WEFE(ZB= /ZF) 2 HEREEIE
MEZERS R SREREBEIBERETD -

BRI A LR ERN G — LA A
o

MR EFEEMS @ NEBEKELEHE
%E ﬁm H19,8795 K F ks - BIEE
- MAEE S RARBERALSH, R

S %B’S$§€I BURERET - RSN
REEAL3.27TKERE A8 BT B
T—= /~ PUERSIRIR o

BEHRR NEEWERERN T

|

N
7

Resource Unit 2024/2025 2023/2024
—BoNES ZBZ=H/

&R By —E-EHF —EB-MEF

Direct and indirect energy consumption

EENEEERERE

Petrol MWh 436.7 398.7

YU KEFs

Diesel and marine light diesel 18,999.4 17,137.87
S5 K i R E S

Electricity 443.4 423.51

B

Total energy consumption 19,879.5 17,960.08

BRI ERES

Energy intensity ° MWh/HK$'m revenue 53.27 53.68

SRR

KR, B8EBTRE

° During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to HK$373.2
million (2023/24.: HK$334.6 million). Resource use intensity (direct and indirect
energy consumption) was calculated by dividing the total consumption by the
total revenue of the Group (in millions of Hong Kong dollars).
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Water Consumption and Efficiency Initiatives

Regarding water management, the Group’s water supply and
discharge are administered by the building’s management office,
with the associated costs incorporated into the management
fees. During the Reporting Period, the direct water consumption
attributed to the Group’s business activities was relatively limited.
Consequently, water usage was deemed minimal, and no specific
water efficiency targets were established for the Reporting Period.
However, this does not imply a lack of attention to water resource
management.

The Group remains steadfast in its commitment to water
conservation and resource management. Even though the
water usage of its operations is minimal, the Group continuously
implements water-saving measures to minimize its environmental
footprint. Throughout the Reporting Period, the Group did not
encounter any significant challenges in securing an adequate and
reliable supply of water suitable for its operational needs. Looking
forward, the Group will continue to monitor its water usage and
explore opportunities for further improvements in water efficiency.

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group actively promotes and prioritizes sustainable
procurement practices through its office operations. Initially, The
Group has set the energy use efficiency target as reducing 5%
of energy consumption intensity in MWh/million HKD revenue
within 10 years, of which the financial year 2021/22 is the base
year. However, in the financial year 2023/24, the Group added
a new office in Kwai Chung as a result of acquisition of marine
construction business. To more accurately measure the energy use
efficiency, the Group revised the baseline to the Reporting Period
(the financial year 2024/25). The overall target period remains the
10 - year span starting from the financial year 2021/22. As of the
Reporting Period, 7 years remain to achieve this target.
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Within this timeframe, the Group aims to achieve a 5% decrease in
energy consumption intensity, measured in MWh per million Hong
Kong dollars of total revenue, using the baseline data from the
financial year 2024/25 for comparison.

In our ongoing efforts to conserve energy, the Group adopts a
multifaceted strategy. When acquiring new office equipment,
the preference is unequivocally given to models that boast
superior energy efficiency ratings. These products are chosen
not merely for their operational capabilities but also for their
reduced environmental impact over their lifecycle. Furthermore,
the Group actively regulates its office environment to optimize
energy consumption. During the summer and winter months, the
air conditioning systems are carefully maintained at predetermined
optimal temperatures. This deliberate temperature management not
only contributes to energy savings but also fosters a comfortable
and productive workspace for employees.

Packaging Materials

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Group did not utilize any
packaging materials in its business operations. Consequently, no
related data is included in This Report.
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Significant impacts on the environment and natural resources

The Group is dedicated to mitigating the environmental impact
of its vessel chartering and maritime transportation services. We
have developed and implemented management policies that align
with the government’s emission control strategy. These policies
ensure robust environmental protection and full compliance with all
relevant environmental legislation during our vessel operations.

To reduce air pollution and enhance the marine environment, the
Group has adopted several key measures. We strictly enforce
the use of low-sulphur compliant fuel across our vessel fleet to
minimize harmful exhaust emissions. Our standardized operating
procedures and routine maintenance schedules not only prevent
excessive dark smoke emissions but also ensure safe and efficient
vessel operations. These practices help extend the lifespan of our
vessels and optimize their performance.

Crew training is another critical component of our environmental
strategy. Regular sessions are conducted to raise crew members’
awareness and encourage proactive environmental stewardship.
Additionally, the Group has established comprehensive in-house
rules for the disposal of waste oil, chemicals, galley waste, and
garbage. Crew members are required to strictly comply with these
rules as well as relevant Hong Kong ordinances, such as the
Merchant Shipping (Local Vessels) Ordinance (Chapter 548) and
Shipping and Port Control Ordinance (Chapter 313). The regulatory
requirements detailed in our Crew Handbook further guide crew
behavior and help prevent environmental damage, including
excessive emissions and oil discharge into waters.
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Strategies to address climate change

The Board concentrates on addressing the risks arising from
climate change. We integrate ESG factors, particularly climate-
related issues, into the corporate governance framework, enhances
board-level oversight, and directs management to handle climate
risks within current business processes and their impact on the
Group’s overall strategy. Climate-related risk management is
embedded in the Group’s risk management system. The Board is
tasked with collaborating with interdisciplinary working groups to
monitor the effectiveness of climate risk management. It discusses,
reports, and devises relevant measures during the risk management
process, such as in Board meetings, and formulates emergency
plans based on identified risks. This strengthens the Group’s ability
to combat negative impacts from extreme weather emergencies.
The Group aims to ensure normal production and operations, and
safeguard public security as well as employees’ lives and property.
For more details on the Group’s ESG matters, please refer to the
“Board Statement” section.

Climate change presents both risks and opportunities for the vessel
leasing business. The Group has not yet established a written policy
related to climate change, but to address these challenges, the
Group will develop effective risk management strategies, such as
enhancing extreme weather forecasting and response capabilities,
optimizing fleet structures with eco-friendly vessels, and training
crew members in environmental protection. At the same time, the
Group can seize climate-related opportunities by investing in green
technologies and exploring new business models. Keeping abreast
of regulatory changes and adjusting operational strategies ensures
long-term stability. By doing so, vessel leasing businesses can
achieve sustainable development in an environmentally-conscious
market.
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RIE - HEREARE

Climate-related Risks Management

An ESG risk assessment was performed, categorizing each
identified risk into high, medium, or low levels based on its
likelihood and potential impact. Following this evaluation, the overall
risk levels for these ESG factors were then determined as high,
medium, or low, taking into account the assessed possibility and

impact.

SRR E bR E I
AEBEEETRE L MELERT
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Risk levels Definition of the overall risk levels

B 4R AR AR BINER

High Risks at this level may lead to significant consequences, potentially impacting the Group and
hindering its ability to achieve strategic goals.

= LERRE RIS MR ERR PR AEEERTE  EHABREAKIMER

Medium Risks at this level may either have serious consequences with a lower likelihood of occurrence,
or minor consequences with a higher probability of occurrence.

Gy bR RIS AR ERR - BRI AT REMEIE - SirTaeEEENIE
REFENHRERS -

Low Risks at this level pose limited harm and consequences for the Group'’s strategic goal
achievement, with a low probability of occurrence.

1K AN ERE A EEERBREEENEENERAR  HENBEREER -

The Group’s Climate-related Risks identification

A warming planet introduces a wide spectrum of business risks,
spanning disrupted supply chains, increased insurance costs,
and workforce challenges. As climate change intensifies—
posing physical threats, altering market dynamics, and shifting
consumer preferences toward eco-friendly offerings—the financial,
reputational, and strategic risks become increasingly pronounced.
These climate - change - related risks will likely remain a significant
concern for the Group and its industry in the foreseeable future. To
address these challenges, the Group has systematically identified
climate-related risks and opportunities through the following matrix.
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B
Climate-related

Risk Time Horizon Potential financial impacts Risk level
KRR AR RS KRR BENBEE [ B% % &
Physical Risks
ERERR
Extreme weather e Short-term * \essel leasing businesses face disruptions Low to Medium
and long- from extreme weather like typhoons and
term storms, which can damage vessels, delay

shipping, and increase operational costs.
Ports are also vulnerable to sea-level rise
and severe weather, potentially hindering
vessel operations and safety.

* From a broad perspective, the financial
performance of the Group remains neutral
as typhoons are temporary. The vessel
chartering operations may be affected by
the typhoon, but special chartering services
offered by the Group and demanded by
customers, such as towage services to any
vessels/equipment at sea or near the coast,
are billed at a higher rate.

e Crew members are exposed to greater risk

during the time of a typhoon.
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B
Climate-related

Risk Time Horizon Potential financial impacts Risk level
KRR AR RS KA BENBEE R BE % &
Transition Risks
BE R
Tightening of Long-term ® The shift to a low-carbon economy leads to Low
climate-related stricter emissions regulations from bodies
policies like the IMO, compelling vessel leasing

companies to upgrade or replace fleets
to meet new standards, thus increasing
operational costs.

RARMEBABUR W B 5 o [AMEMRACEEEMEE IMO ZHBINETENR K
RE - BEMMAEER AR E B
ATE & FETIRE - MBI ERR »

Cost to transition Long-term e Confronted with shifting customer Low
to lower preferences and more stringent
emissions environmental policies, the Group has
technology expended considerable funds on vessel

repairs and maintenance aimed at reducing
dark smoke emissions. This initiative not
only addresses emission issues but also
extends the operational lifespan of the

vessels.
e KK B A Al KH e EHEEFFPRUEENHAEEEHNRER (K
BIER AR K AEEERAREESRHMEER

RETHE - SR BIEHM - AT ES
BERHEREIE - INEEM MBS

AN
ap °
Changing customer Medium and e Should the Group fail to meet stakeholder  Low
behaviour long-term expectations regarding climate risk

management and targets, it could trigger

shifts in customer and user behaviour and

preferences, ultimately resulting in declining

customer loyalty and reduced revenue.
BEFTRARRES fHA N R HA o fREEMERNEHRIERAREREERL K

AR BEFIAPTTAEKRANESHEE

BEFBWE T RKAEL -
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Potential financial impacts Risk level

BEUEZE B E R

Transition Risks

BERE

Reputation Risk Long-term

The change in customer or user preferences Low
may elevate the likelihood of receiving

negative feedback from stakeholders

regarding the existing services. Such

feedback could potentially damage the

Group’s reputation.
BEFRAFRANZE AT IR NFENLE K
HEARBHEMRE - AEARBEREE
EREEBE -

Market Risks Medium and
long-term

miE R PN R

Growing environmental awareness drives  Low
demand for green shipping. Failing to

transition vessels accordingly can result

in lost competitiveness, reduced market

share, and higher insurance costs as

insurers adjust premiums for high-risk

vessels. Technological Risks: Adopting

new low-carbon technologies like hydrogen

or ammonia fuels, and carbon capture

systems can be costly and require new
operational skills, posing challenges if
companies lag in technological adaptation.
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Measures to mitigate climate-related risks

The Group acknowledges the causes of climate change and is
committed to doing its utmost to mitigate emissions and embrace
sustainable business practices in an effort to slow this global
phenomenon. Below are some of the measures we have adopted:

Safety First During Typhoons

The safety of our staff is always our top priority, especially during
typhoons when crew members face heightened risks. We have
communicated to our customers that their safety is paramount,
and as such, we will postpone services if the weather poses a
safety hazard to our staff. For instance, when a No. 8 typhoon
signal is hoisted, we will suspend towage services and only
resume operations when weather conditions are deemed less
risky. This policy not only ensures the safety of our crew but also
demonstrates our commitment to responsible business operations.

Proactive Response to Environmental Policies and Energy - Saving
Measures

We strive to stay ahead of the curve by promptly responding to
the latest environmental policies and continuously advancing our
energy-saving initiatives. This includes upgrading our equipment
and technologies to enhance energy efficiency, as well as
implementing strict energy management systems to monitor
and reduce energy consumption. Additionally, we regularly train
our employees to raise their awareness of energy conservation
and environmental protection, encouraging them to adopt eco -
friendly behaviors in their daily work. Through these comprehensive
measures, we aim to minimize our environmental footprint and
contribute to a more sustainable future.
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Climate Change Opportunities

Growing Service Demand: There is increasing market demand for
environmentally-friendly shipping services. Customers are more
likely to choose vessel leasing companies that implement eco-
friendly measures. Additionally, industries requiring specialized
transport conditions, such as cold chain logistics, offer new market
expansion opportunities for companies with advanced vessel
equipment and technology.

Cost Savings and Efficiency Gains: Implementing energy-efficient
technologies like hull optimization, energy-efficient engines, and
advanced route planning can reduce fuel consumption and
operational costs. This also cuts carbon emissions, helping meet
regulations and enhancing the company’s reputation.

Green Finance Incentives: The global focus on green finance offers
vessel leasing companies access to green loans, green bonds,
and government subsidies for eco-friendly upgrades. These
incentives can reduce financing costs and support sustainable fleet
modernization.

Metrics and Targets

To assess the extent and impact of the Group’s climate-related
risks, the Group monitors relevant metrics and indicators to ensure
effective and quantitative evaluation. With close tracking and
regular review of Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 GHG emissions
(in tCO2eq), and GHG emission intensity (in tCO2 eg/million HKD
revenue), the Group gains a clear picture of its environmental
footprint. For detailed data on GHG emissions and information on
target setting, please refer to the “Air pollution and GHG” section of
This Report.
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B. SOCIAL

Employees

The Group rigorously adheres to all relevant laws and regulations
concerning employment and labor rights, specifically including, but
not limited to, the following:

e Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of Law of Hong Kong;

e Employment of Children Regulations, Chapter 57B of Law of
Hong Kong;

e Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Chapter 480 of Law of Hong
Kong;

e Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Chapter 487 of Law of
Hong Kong;

e Family Status Discrimination Ordinance, Chapter 527 of Law
of Hong Kong;

* Race Discrimination Ordinance, Chapter 602 of Law of Hong
Kong;

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Chapter 486 of Law of
Hong Kong; and

e Minimum Wage Ordinance, Chapter 608 of Law of Hong
Kong.
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The Group sets forth its standards and expectations in the Code of
Conduct and related policies outlined in the Employee Handbook,
which are communicated to all employees, including office staff and
crew members. The handbook is readily accessible to everyone
and covers a wide range of topics to ensure comprehensive
guidance. It includes detailed information on employment
processes such as recruitment, probation, transfer, promotion,
termination, and retirement. It also specifies work schedules,
including hours of work, rest days, statutory holidays, and early
release arrangements. Furthermore, the handbook provides clear
details on remuneration packages, various leave policies, employee
benefits, and training opportunities, along with other labor-related
policies. This ensures that employees are well-informed about their
rights and responsibilities, fostering a transparent and fair working
environment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance with employment laws and regulations
in areas such as compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
diversity and anti-discrimination.

Employee rights and benefits

The Group values its talented workforce, considering it the
cornerstone of its success. When recruiting, the Group focuses on
candidates’ capabilities, performance, and the relevance of their
experience.

Beyond statutory holidays, employees are granted various types of
leave, including annual, sick, compensation, maternity and paternity
leave, as per the Employment Ordinance and the Employee
Handbook. Additionally, the Group offers employees mandatory
provident funds, group insurance, and business travel allowances.
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To foster strong communication and team cohesion, the Group
engages in a two-way dialogue with employees through networking
activities and feedback sessions. Employees can directly report any
concerns regarding potential misconduct to the Human Resources
department. Furthermore, the Group annually hosts a dinner for
all staff and organises regular dinner get-togethers. These events
aim to strengthen the bond between management and employees,
creating a more cohesive and motivated work environment.

Equal opportunities

The Group envisions a work environment free from discrimination.
As an equal opportunity employer, we emphasizes fairness,
objectivity, and non-discrimination in employee recruitment,
advancement, transfer, termination, and compensation, as well
as in other business activities. The Group ensures that employees
are not discriminated against or deprived of opportunities due to
gender, age, ethnicity, background, religion, color, marital status,
family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy, or any other factors
prohibited by relevant laws and regulations. Selection and decisions
are based solely on an individual’s abilities, qualifications, and
performance.

Appraisal System

The Group has established a systematic appraisal system to
comprehensively evaluate employees’ work performance and
capabilities. Based on these assessments, the Group conducts
regular reviews of employees’ salaries and discretionary bonuses,
taking into account factors such as individual performance, labour
supply conditions, and market demand trends.

Furthermore, the annual performance appraisal serves as a
valuable platform. It provides all staff members with the opportunity
to engage in meaningful discussions with their managers regarding
career development and to identify areas for further growth and
improvement. This process not only helps employees enhance their
professional skills but also enables the Group to align individual
career aspirations with organizational goals, fostering a more
motivated and high-performing workforce.
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Number of employees

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

As of 31 March 2025, the Group employed a total of 263
individuals (2023/2024:234), all of whom are based in Hong Kong.
The breakdown of the workforce by employment type, gender,
age group, and employee category are presented below. Our
employees form a diverse and dedicated team, playing a crucial

role in driving the Group’s success and growth:
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As of
Types March 31, 2025
BE-ZT-a#F
BE =A=+-8
By Gender =145
- Male - 5 235
- Female - T 28
By Employment type ZEEER
- Full-time - 2B 207
- Part-time —  GRE 56
By Age HERR
- Between 18 and 25 — 18E25m% 7
- Between 26 and 35 — 26%35m% 31
- Between 36 and 45 — 36ZE45%3% 40
- Between 46 and 55 — 4B6E55B% 63
- 56 or above — 56mEA L 122
By Employee categories mETHER
- Senior Management - BHRER 13
- Middle Management — hRER 26
- Frontline and Other Staff — PIFEKEMET 224
Total B 263

Annual Report 2025 F & 73



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - HEREAHRE

Turnover Rate

The Group firmly believes that the ongoing enhancement of its
employment system is crucial for achieving long-term business
growth. During the Reporting Period, a total of 45 employees
(2023/2024: 61) left the Group. The overall employee turnover rate
stood at 18.1%, representing an 8.0% decrease compared to the
previous reporting period (2023/2024: 26.1%).

To gain insight into the reasons behind employee turnover, the
Group conducts exit interviews with resigning staff members.
This practice allows the Group to address the concerns of current
employees and implement necessary improvements. By doing so,
the Group aims to reduce future turnover rates and ensure the
continuity of its strong business performance.
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Employee Health and Safety

The safety and well-being of employees is the core concern of the
Group. As such, the Group complies with all applicable laws and
regulations in relation to occupational health and safety (“OH&S”) in
Hong Kong, including but not limited to the followings:

Regarding the safety survey of local vessels:
e Merchant Shipping (Local Vessels) Ordinance, Chapter 548 of
the Law of Hong Kong.

* Merchant Shipping (Local Vessels) (Certification and Licensing)
Regulation, subsidiary legislation under Chapter 548 of the
Law of Hong Kong.

e Merchant Shipping (Local Vessels) (Safety and Survey)
Regulation, subsidiary legislation under Chapter 548 of the
Law of Hong Kong.

Regarding OH&S operations:
e Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance, Chapter 59
of the Law of Hong Kong.

e (Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, Chapter 509 of
the Law of Hong Kong.

e Shipping and Port Control (Works) Regulation, Chapter 313X
of the Law of Hong Kong.

* Merchant Shipping (Local Vessels) (Works) Regulation,
Chapter 548l of the Law of Hong Kong.

e Merchant Shipping (Local Vessels) (Compulsory Third-Parties
Risks Insurance) Regulation, subsidiary legislation under
Chapter 548l of the Law of Hong Kong.

* Merchant Shipping (Safety) (Signals of Distress and Prevention
of Collisions) Regulations, subsidiary legislation under Chapter
369 of the Law of Hong Kong.
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e Merchant Shipping (Safety) (Load Line) Regulations, subsidiary
legislation under Chapter 369 of the Law of Hong Kong.

e Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, Chapter 282 of the
Law of Hong Kong.

e Dangerous Goods Ordinance, Chapter 295 of the Law of
Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed no instances
of non-compliance with these legal requirements that could
significantly impact its ability to provide a safe working environment
or protect employees from occupational hazards.

In office settings, the Group ensures a clean and healthy
environment through quarterly cleaning of air conditioning systems
and carpets. Air purifiers are installed and regularly maintained to
ensure optimal air quality.

For vessel operations, the Group has established a robust system
of internal policies and procedures to enhance health and safety
on board and mitigate occupational risks. These include a detailed
Code of Safe Working Practices for crew members, covering
officers and engineers, as well as comprehensive work safety rules
outlined in the Employee Handbook. The Code provides essential
health and safety information, an organizational chart illustrating
crew positions and responsibilities, and detailed procedures for
various aspects such as equipment safety, vessel maintenance,
safe operating procedures, emergency response, and contingency
planning. Furthermore, the Group ensures that annual surveys of
vessel conditions are conducted to guarantee the safety and well-
being of crew members.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited EF /&= £ EiE AR A R

o FHBZEDIFECOEMBENKEM (%
2)(FEHRD) -

o EHEEDIFE 282 B(EEMERH]) -

o HBEMDIFE 205 BERmMIFH)

RIREHAA - N5 B W AR 3 4 2 3R (X ]
REFLZBENBR  SHAIEBRER
EXKERERZE2 TIFRIRAIRERE
XBEEENES

o Fﬁu

ERMRGHA - AEEEFEHERELGS
K BEITIER - ﬁ@%hf — (BB R
FEIRE - AEBENNLZEREHREER
FeEs - HRTEREERE -

MAEETE - AEE D HETENAE
BURHIE MARF - Ui EM ERERE
2UWREREERR - REEME - ARED
%Eﬂ’ﬁé(@?ﬁ%%&ﬂ%ﬁ%%&lﬁﬁﬂﬁ)%‘liﬁ

ANZE2THEEHRTH IRETFMHA
ZEBUE T TEZ2MRA o & TRIHAR

ARk Z2ERN  WHEBHASAEER
THMEBUNMEE  TEIIRELZE M
EZE%* C RERERRF - BRREMER

HERFTENFEER © Uho - NEBERE
REFETHARRRE - ARRKED
LENEFER



Key Measures in the Code of Safe Working Practices:

Vessel Operation Safety: Crew members are required to
strictly follow safety instructions for vessel operations,
including procedures for vessel berthing and unberthing, and
to wear necessary safety suits and protective equipment while
on board.

Emergency Procedures and Fire Precautions: The Group
has established in-house emergency procedures and fire
precautions, which include evacuation procedures, locations
of life-saving equipment and fire extinguishers on each vessel,
and their operating instructions.

Safety Training: Regular safety training sessions are conducted
for crew members, covering fire safety, sea safety, and rescue
simulator training, to enhance onboard safety awareness and
preparedness.

Prohibition of High-Risk Activities: Crew members are strictly
prohibited from engaging in alcohol consumption, tobacco
use, drug use, gambling, and other high-risk activities while on
duty and upon boarding vessels.

The Group also conducts regular safety surveys and inspections of
its vessel fleet to ensure that all vessels are seaworthy and safe for
crew members. Additionally, the Group provides ongoing OH&S-
related training to crew members and evaluates their understanding
of the training material to ensure effective knowledge retention and
application.
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RIE - HEREARE

Work-related Fatality and Injury:

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any
work-related fatality. However, there were 7 work-related injuries,
resulting in a total of 549 lost days. The affected employees
received immediate and appropriate medical attention. The
Group remains committed to implementing comprehensive safety
measures to prevent such incidents in the future and to further
enhance the safety and well-being of its workforce.
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Indicators 2024/2025 2023/2024 2022/2023
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EZ —E-RHEF —E-NEF —EB-=HF

WORK-RELATED FATALITY THTE 0 0 0

WORK-RELATED FATALITY T T SEM = 0% 0% 0%
RATE

WORK-RELATED INJURY EREZR=_HNIE 7 2 1
CASES > 3 DAYS

WORK-RELATED INJURY BREDRK 0 0 1
CASES < 3 DAYS ER=ZBNIE

LOST DAYS DUE TO ETEmELR TIERE 549 416 7
WORK INJURY

Development and training % R e

The Group places a high priority on the development and training
of its employees. It firmly believes that training is not merely about
imparting essential knowledge and skills; it also plays a crucial role
in enhancing employees’ perception, attitude, and learning abilities.
By fostering a culture of continuous learning and improvement, the
Group aims to create a workforce that is not only competent but
also highly motivated and adaptable.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s commitment to employee
development was evident in the substantial investment made in
training programs. A total of 6,486 training hours were conducted,
reflecting the Group’s dedication to providing comprehensive
and diverse training opportunities. This included a wide range of
courses and workshops designed to address various aspects of
professional and personal growth.
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On average, each employee, including those who left the Group
during the Reporting Period, received 25 hours of training. This
figure underscores the Group’s inclusive approach to training,
ensuring that all employees, regardless of their tenure or position,
have access to valuable development opportunities. HRESEER

Trained employees
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The Group meticulously designs and organizes a comprehensive
suite of training programs tailored to meet the specific needs of its
employees, ensuring they possess the skills necessary for efficient
daily business operations. For all new recruits, an orientation
training program is conducted to familiarize them with the
Group’s policies, rules, and regulations, thereby fostering a strong
foundation for their tenure within the organization.

For existing employees, the Group provides extensive on-the-
job training, categorized into several key areas: work safety, fire
safety, occupational health, first aid skills, environmental protection,
operation of equipment, and work procedures. Additionally,
emergency response training is a crucial component, equipping
employees with the ability to respond swiftly and effectively in
the event of safety incidents and other emergencies, such as
fires, collisions, and cargo falling. These training initiatives are
meticulously crafted to enhance employees’ knowledge and
competency, thereby boosting their productivity and effectiveness,
and ultimately elevating their overall workplace performance.

Crew members from the engineering and deck departments
are required to attend recognized maritime courses and in-
service training, covering topics such as onboard maintenance of
machinery and electrical appliances, vessel navigation, and cargo
handling. These qualifications ensure that crew members are well-
equipped to serve in their respective positions on vessels and
meet the stringent service requirements of customers at specific
sites. The Group actively encourages crew members to obtain
relevant engineering and coxswain licenses issued by the Marine
Department, and upon obtaining these licenses, their wages will
be reviewed and adjusted accordingly, reflecting the Group’s
commitment to rewarding professional development.

Furthermore, employees in management positions or above
undergo corporate management training, which is designed
to deepen their understanding of their obligations and legal
responsibilities within the Group. This holistic approach to training
underscores the Group’s dedication to fostering a highly skilled,
knowledgeable, and responsible workforce, capable of driving the
organization’s success in a competitive and dynamic business
environment.
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to upholding the highest ethical standards
in all its operations, and the prohibition of forced or child labour is
a fundamental principle that we strictly adhere to. We firmly believe
that every individual has the right to a safe, fair, and voluntary
working environment, and we are dedicated to ensuring that our
workplace reflects these values.

Strict measures are taken to prevent the employment of child labor.
We have in our policy that all new employees must provide valid
identification documents for age verification. This step is crucial in
ensuring that individuals are legally entitled to work for the Group.
If an individual is found to be underage, an employment contract
will not be entered into. We take this matter very seriously and
have established clear protocols to safeguard against any potential
violations.

The Human Resource Department plays a vital role in this process.
They conduct thorough reference checks for all new employees to
ensure compliance with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57
of the Laws of Hong Kong). This comprehensive approach helps
us maintain a workforce that is not only legally compliant but also
aligned with our ethical standards.

In accordance with the relevant legislation and our policy, all
employees of the Group have signed and agreed to the terms laid
out in their employment contracts. These contracts clearly outline
our expectations and the rights of our employees. We believe that
transparency and mutual understanding are key to fostering a
positive and ethical working environment.

If a violation of the law is discovered, we will take immediate action
to terminate the enrolment. We have zero tolerance for any form
of forced or child labour and are committed to taking swift and
decisive action to address any such issues.

There was no child labour nor forced labour in the Group’s
operations during the Reporting Period. Additionally, no material
non-compliance in relation to the prevention of child and forced
labour was recorded.
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Sustainable supply chain

The Group has established comprehensive policies and systems
to effectively manage qualified suppliers and evaluate potential
suppliers. These policies and systems are designed to ensure that
all suppliers and sub-contractors meet the Group’s high standards
for quality, performance, and compliance.

Supplier selection practice

According to the supplier evaluation system, the Group conducts
a thorough background check of all suppliers and sub-contractors
before entering into and agreeing to contracts. This process
involves a detailed assessment of their financial stability, business
reputation, and ability to meet the Group’s specific requirements.
The approved suppliers are then reviewed annually against their
performance, quality of product and service, price, and product
responsibility. This ongoing evaluation ensures that suppliers
continue to meet the Group’s standards and contribute to our
overall success.

Supply Chain Risk Management

The suppliers and subcontractors are required to provide and
update the vessels with proper licenses and permits. This
requirement is essential to demonstrate compliance with the
relevant environmental protection laws and the requirements set by
the Marine Department. These licenses and permits are inspected
by chartered surveyors to ensure their validity and adherence to
regulations. The Group is committed to promoting environmentally
preferable services when selecting suppliers and subcontractors,
reflecting its dedication to sustainability and environmental
responsibility.
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To further ensure compliance and identify any potential risks or
violations, the Group arranges site visits to observe the operations
of its suppliers. These visits focus on various aspects, including
policies, pollutant emissions, use of resources, employee welfare,
health and safety, and training. These site visits allow the Group to
understand whether its suppliers are complying with the relevant
rules and regulations, thereby minimizing potential negative impacts
on the environment and society.

In addition to these measures, the Group requires its third-party
suppliers to provide vessel inspection reports and employees’
insurance policies before entering into business with them. These
requirements are in place to ensure that all suppliers maintain high
standards of safety and compliance.

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged a total of 263
suppliers, the majority of which were based in Hong Kong.
These suppliers and sub-contractors primarily provided a range
of services, including repair and maintenance services, vessel
chartering services, crews, and shipyards. By working with these
suppliers, the Group is able to maintain its operations efficiently
and effectively, while also upholding its commitment to quality,
compliance, and sustainability.
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Service responsibilities

During the Reporting Period, the Group identified no cases of
material non-compliance concerning health and safety, advertising,
labeling as well as privacy issues related to the products and
services offered, as mandated by relevant laws and regulations.
Relevant laws and regulations include but are not limited to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.486 of the Law of Hong
Kong), and the Trademarks Ordinance (Cap.559 of the Law of
Hong Kong).

The Group has established the Code of Safe Working Practices
to regulate the behavior of its crew members to better serve its
customers. The Group has also regulated its employees on privacy
issues in the Employee Handbook. The Group has not established
written policies relating to intellectual property rights such as
advertising and trademarks.

Committed to delivering high-quality reliable services, the Group
implements strict measures. Chartered surveyors conduct annual
inspections to ensure vessel safety and quality, and operation
licenses are renewed on a regular basis. Moreover, crew members
hold the necessary licenses to satisfy customers’ on-site service
requirements.

Customer Service and Complaint

The Group is wholeheartedly committed to delivering exceptional
customer service experiences. To ensure round-the-clock
assistance, a dedicated 24-hour direct hotline has been
established, providing prompt and efficient support services
specifically for matters related to ship arrangements. Our highly
trained support team is equipped to handle all complaints
and inquiries with diligence and expertise, ensuring that every
customer’s concern is addressed and resolved in a timely manner.
During the Reporting Period, the Group is pleased to report
that not service-related complaint was received, reflecting our
unwavering dedication to maintaining the highest standards of
customer satisfaction and operational excellence. This achievement
underscores our ongoing commitment to delivering a seamless and
exceptional customer experience.
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Confidential information

The Group places a high value on safeguarding confidential
information and rigorously adheres to the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance in its day-to-day business activities. Staff members who
resign are required to sign a confidentiality agreement, thereby
committing to non-disclosure of the Group’s trade secrets and
associated confidential information. The Employee Handbook
explicitly stipulates that employees are strictly prohibited from
disclosing or reproducing any confidential information without the
Group’s authorisation. Should a breach occur, it would be deemed
a serious workplace misconduct, and the employee in question
would be subject to disciplinary action or immediate dismissal.
During the Reporting Period, no complaints regarding this matter
were received.

Intellectual Property(‘IP’] Rights

The Group is committed to managing its IP and rigorously
observing the Copyright Ordinance, Chapter 528 of the Laws of
Hong Kong. As of the Reporting Period, the Group has registered
two trademarks for “Yun Lee,” which are afforded protection under
Section 47(3) of the Trademarks Ordinance, Chapter 559 of the
Laws of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, no instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning IP rights
were observed.

Anti-corruption

The Group has adopted robust policies on anti-bribery and
corruption, which are strictly enforced in line with the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong). These
policies explicitly prohibit employees from soliciting, accepting,
or offering any form of ‘advantage’—including gifts, loans, fees,
rewards, commissions, offices, contracts, services, favors, or the
discharge of any liability—without lawful authority and the express
permission of the employer.
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Employees are required to adhere strictly to the Group’s Conflict
of Interest Policy. Any employee who has a close relationship
with suppliers or customers must declare all relevant interests by
submitting a written form to the Group. This declaration is crucial in
guarding against possible illicit enrichment or conflicts of interest.
The Group takes a proactive approach to addressing such cases,
ensuring that all potential conflicts are managed transparently and
ethically.

In cases of suspected fraud, the Group’s internal department
is required to report the matter to the management level within
two working days and to conduct corresponding investigations.
The Group places great emphasis on protecting the identity of
whistleblowers, ensuring their confidentiality is maintained. The
identity of the Whistleblower will be kept confidential, and the
Whistleblower will be fully informed in advance when there is a
need to disclose his/her identity.

To ensure that employees possess a solid understanding of
anti-corruption and integrity ethics, the Group mandates that its
directors and employees undergo relevant anti-corruption and
ethics training as part of their induction programs. In the financial
year 2024/25, the Group organized 22 hours anti-corruption
training session for 8 directors and employees. This initiative aims
to enhance employees’ familiarity with the concepts of business
ethics and the importance of integrity in the workplace. By providing
these training courses, the Group ensures that its workforce is well-
equipped to uphold ethical standards and maintain a corruption-
free working environment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is pleased to report that
there were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees. Additionally, the
Group did not note any instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations on money laundering or corruption. This record
underscores the Group’s commitment to ethical business practices
and its ongoing efforts to maintain a culture of integrity and
compliance.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited EF /&= £ EiE AR A R

8 THABBEBTARENF B REEK
MIE - IR EAEFETIRREN
BT ARAKBRIEXERFRRFAHRE
ERAERAR AT o TR EREREIY L IR AR
NE@RMEE2BER - NEBBEHRERI
BRI EEE - BIRAERRA T8
e NEEMMAEBEER -

RS RREFT R - NEEAERERF
AEMETERARERERS - WHET
HENHRE - AEESEERRERHRA
WS - BRFESETRE - BMAN
FNHRTRE  EFERBEESNE
SEETEANGEEBA -

RERETIRATHRRBERNERER
g ARERTEERE TRABEIF
VARZHEBENRBEREI - R=-F
T RABREE  ARERSRES
RETHEITT2/NHHREEN - E—
BEEEINRE THRFERB SN
B - WRE THRSPBENEEN - B8
Rt EAEIIRE - AEERREETA
BRIFHERIRE - WA AR —ERRN
THEERIR -

RBEHR - NEBRARE - NEBK
HEBWE Y REMEHIEERNES
A o ptAHN - RNEEW BER TR L
R RETEARMAEPINESR - EXRAT
AEEETRHRBRBEMNNARENESE
FaER R EERN MRS ) -



Community Investment

The Group is deeply committed to the well-being of the community
and actively engages in a wide range of voluntary services.
Although the Group has not yet formulated a formal community
engagement policy, it has consistently demonstrated its dedication
to social responsibility by addressing the needs of the local
community in meaningful and impactful ways. During the Reporting
Period, the Group focused on nurturing manpower and made
significant contributions through both financial and non-financial
means. We are proud of our efforts and remain steadfast in our
commitment to continue devoting our resources and time to the
community in the coming years.

Educational Contributions

The Group is steadfast in its mission to cultivate young talents
for the maritime industry. We believe that investing in education
is the cornerstone of building a sustainable and vibrant future for
our industry and community. During the Reporting Period, we
sponsored 4 scholarships for talented students, providing them
with the financial support they need to pursue their dreams and
develop their skills. In addition to financial assistance, we were also
invited to give lectures at the Maritime Services Training Institute
of the Vocational Training Council. These lectures were designed
to share our industry expertise and inspire the next generation of
maritime professionals. We are committed to fostering a culture of
learning and innovation, and we will continue to explore new ways
to support educational initiatives in the maritime sector.

Donations and Volunteering

The Group has a long-standing tradition of making charitable
donations to various organizations that support the underprivileged
and vulnerable members of our community in Hong Kong. We
understand that financial support is crucial in helping these
organizations carry out their missions and provide essential services
to those in need. During the Reporting Period, we made several
significant donations to charitable organizations, contributing to
their efforts in areas such as healthcare, education, and social
welfare. We are proud to partner with these organizations and
support their impactful work.
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Donations During the Reporting Period
During the Reporting Period, the Group made the following
charitable donations:

FEHRHIE B
IR P« AR U TSR -

Donation made
by the Group

Organisation W EEBEFERR
HONG KONG WATER SPORTS CHARITABLE TRUST &iB/K BB Z(ZEES HKD 75,000
75,000 7T
HONG KONG NEW ARRIVALS BERTRBALIRBEESER HKD 100,000
SERVICES FOUNDATION LIMITED NS
100,000 7T
LIONS CLUBS INTERNATIONAL DISTRICT B4 g R BB R 303 = HKD 24,000
303 HK&MACAO, CHINA
24,000 7T
HEUNG CHARITY FOUNDATION LIMITED ZERTEEESSARATA HKD 30,000
30,00078 7T
MR. & MRS. LEE SHU FOOK CHARITY FEENMBESESERAT HKD 3,000
FOUNDATION LIMITED
3,000/ 7T
THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY BB T KE HKD 30,000
30,0008 7T
OXFAM HONG KONG AR EE HKD 3,000
3,000 7T
MARITIME SERVICES TRAINING INSTITUTE BEIIRERT HKD 20,000
20,0008 7T
LIVE IN HARMONY FUND LIMITED MEESHBRAF HKD 130,000
130,000/ 7T
HONG KONG SEA CADET CORPS BEREEETHE HKD 20,000
20,000 7T

We are proud to support these organizations and their missions,
and we look forward to continuing our partnership with them in the
future. The Group remains committed to its social responsibility
initiatives. We will continue to explore new ways to support the
community, whether through educational programs, charitable
donations, or volunteer activities. We believe that by working
together with our partners and stakeholders, we can create a
brighter and more inclusive future for all. We will also continue to
evaluate and enhance our community engagement efforts, ensuring
that they align with the evolving needs of the community and the
goals of our organization.
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Aspects, General

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERHE

RIR - HERERBRERESIAETERSI

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report
BHE- - —REER BN EFRE
BRENIER Haut HERERBRE
A. Environmental
A.RIE
Aspect A1: Emissions
E AT : BERRY)
General Disclosure Information on: This Report — A.
(@  the policies; and Environmental,
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that page 51-52

— R

KPI'A1.1

RS AR WURIR AT

KPI'A1.2

RS AR IRIRAL.2

KPI'A1.3

BREBIEIZEALS

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.

BRERNOAZEREEIA - KR HMOE5  BF

NEZEZRMNEEEH

(a) B &

(b) BTHETAGEAXENHBAEZZLALNE
o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BERmRE R AR R B o

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.

B (BE) RgREZ(SBE2)REREEEME (M
MEETE) R (WER)BE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.

PREXEEREEYES (AEAE) R(NER)EE -

REFE —A RS
512528

This Report — A.
Environmental,
page 52-54

RIRE—ARE
EH2E 548

This Report — A.
Environmental,
page 54

REE—ARIE -
E£548

This Report — A.
Environmental,
page 57

ERE—ARIE
E578H
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Aspects, General

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report
BE- - —REER —ECNEFRE
BERERER Rt HERERBRE
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) This Report — A.
and,where appropriate, intensity. Environmental,
page 57
BB RIEIRA1.4 FEAREEEYASE (UEAE) R(ER)EE - 1F®RE-ARSE-
E57H
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to  This Report — A.
achieve them. Environmental,
page 55-57
BB RIEIR A5 RIMFEI I MBEME B R RREIZZFERMENRYN THRE-ARE
HER e EB5E57TH
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous This Report — A.
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction Environmental,
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. page 58
RABEAEUIEIRA1.6 MR EENBEFEEMN A MEMMEIZH RNmE-ARE
WEEE RN REDZEBZAERIA TR F58H
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2 : EREMA
General Disclosures Policies on the efficient use of resources, including This Report — A.
energy, water and other raw materials. Environmental,
page 58
— MR ER BRERER(BEER  KEEMRMEBEE - KA|E—ARE -
E58 8
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in  This Report — A.
total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity. Environmental,
page 59
RSB RUIEIR A2.1 RENESNEELR JHEERREAEE(UTETRE FKEE-ARE-
Rrat &) REE - E£598H
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RIR - HERERHE

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report
—RIFEER RN RHERE
BRERER Rt HERERBRE
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. This Report — A.
Environmental,
page 60
RARAERUEIRA2.2 BREKEREE - RI|E—ARE
$60EH
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and This Report — A.
steps taken to achieve them. Environmental,
page 60
BREBIERA2.3 RIRFREI 2B REA MR B ERREIZERE RN TRE-ARE
ERENEY R o £608
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing This Report — A.
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set Environmental,
and steps taken to achieve them. page 60
BB IEIRA2.4 R SKEGE RKR LRl BERIME - ARPAEISZEOA  RNmE-ARE
KB E B IR R REDZE B RAEREA P8R - F60H
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products This Report — A.
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit Environmental,
produced. page 61
BBLE IR A2.5 A mTABEMHNESE (ABFAE) R(NER)E ARE-ARE -
HEBMLE o £618
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
[BE A3 - BIERRKAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on  This Report — A.
the environment and natural resources. Environmental,
page 62
— B EE WERBITAHBRRRRAABERENERNTZENER o  TAWME-ARE
£628H
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on  This Report — A.
the environment and natural resources and the actions Environmental,
taken to manage them. page 62

BB AE IR AL

WAXFRHHRBERRAERNERTE LB RN
ERERTENTY -

REE—ARE

¥£628H
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Aspects, General

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report
—RIEEKR —ECNEFRE

BERERER Rt HERERBRE

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BHE A4 - IR

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant  This Report — A.
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those Environmental,
which may impact, the issuer. page 63

—MREE BRIREHERRAEGHBETAELEZENEARR TRE-ARE
IR EEHBR © £ 638

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues This Report — A.
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the Environmental,
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. page 64-69

RABZAE RUIEIR Ad A MBS NI S HETAELEZENERAREER THE-ARE
BH REHTH - £64E69H

B. Social

B.4®

Employment and Labour Practices

EBREBIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EmmB1 : &%

General Disclosure Information on: This Report - B.

— R EE

(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

EHETHEEE BEREA  THERH-
M- FE#E 2t REBUAKEAMFS
Y :
(@)

(b)

KRB R
BREF

B R
CEITET
£ o

ANEEXRZENRBEERERAPNE

Social, page 70-72
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RIR - HERERHE

EEEEE
Aspects, General

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report

BEH- - —REER BN HERE -

BRERER Rt HERERBRE

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for This Report — B.
example, full- or part-time), age group and geographical Social, page 73
region.

BB B e 1R B1.1 IR BEER(M2BEGER)  Fieldh e A|RE-B.HLE
ElomEERE - E738H

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and This Report — B.
geographical region. Social, page 74

RABRAEUIEIRB1.2 IR - FiER L& S S EE MK o RifE—-B. g

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[BHEB2 : @FELZ P
General Disclosure Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

—RRIRFE EHARHZE2TEFRERREEEMABENLES
Hy :
(a) B &
(b) BEBFHBEITABEAXENHEEERELRIINE
o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in
each of the past three years including the reporting year.
BSEAERUIER B2.1 BEZF(EEBREFE)SFRITHNHAB KL E -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
FRERIERB2.2 ETBEARAIERS -
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
RASEAE IEIR B2.3 R P ER ANV B R 2 R B 22 46 7 - LA ITT 2

ERITE -

748

This Report — B.
Social, page 75-76

ViN —-B.#t=E -

5876 8B

8
~ Off

This Report — B.
Social, page 78

AL —B A -
ET78H

This Report - B.
Social, page 78

RRE-—B g -
E78H

This Report — B.
Social, page 77

s —B. g
E778H
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RIE - HEREARE

Aspects, General

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report
BEH- - —REER BN HERE -
BERERER Rt HERERBRE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BT B3 : R &IE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills  This Report — B.

— R EE

KPI B3.1

PR AR AR IE 15 B3.1

KPI B3.2

FAR AR 1515 B3.2

for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities
FRRTEEBITLIEBENMBLENBR -
MIEFIE S

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g., senior management, middle
management).

RIUERINEERN(MSHREEE  hREERE)E D
WEXIMEEBDL -

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

IR REBLRRIE D - BREB TR TR

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

B B4 : & T %8|

General Disclosure

— R EE

KPI B4.1

FASRAR AN IE 1R B4

KPI B4.2

FASR AR RIE15 B4.2

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BB IEET K&l 55 THY -

() BXE: &

(o) BTHETAGEAXZNEBAEERANE
®} o

Description of measures to review employment

practices to avoid child and forced labour.

it ig s BB EEARRET KRGS T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.
HAE B TE RIF AR ER A ISP SRR 28R -

Social, page 80

ARE—B A -
£808H

This Report - B.
Social, page 78-79

RifE—-B. g
EBTI8ETI9E

This Report — B.
Social, page 78-79

AfE—B A -
ET8ETIE

This Report - B.
Social, page 81

iRE-B g
F81H
This Report — B.

Social, page 81
s —-B. g -
F81H
This Report — B.
Social, page 81
ARE—B A -
%818
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RIR - HERERHE

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report
BE - - —BEER TECINMHFRE
BRERER Rt HERERBRE
Operating Practices

ZIEE D

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EHBS - fERER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of = This Report — B.

— R R

KPI B5.1

FAS AR AR IE 15 B5.1

KPI B5.2

FASR AR R 1515 B5.2

KPI B5.3

R4 RIS B5.3

KPI B5.4

FASR AR IR 1R B5.4

the supply chain.
BRI IRE It g RRBOR -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR e DM EREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

WA AREREEENED  MENTEBEMNRHE

EEEE - URBBRMITRERTE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they

are implemented and monitored.

1t A R A8 Rl B 8 5 EBR BT O BRIR ik @ R rO 18

71 - ANAERRRIT REERTTE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HEREHREESREZARRER KRBNE

1 ARAERAEIT R EEERTTIA o

Social, page 82
ABE—B.ALE -
E82H
This Report — B.
Social, page 83
RifE—-B. g
838
This Report — B.
Social, page 82

RifE—-B. g -
£828H

This Report — B.
Social, page 83

A& —BAE -
%838

This Report — B.
Social, page 82

A|E-BAE
$82H
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Aspects, General

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report
—RIEEKR RN HFRER

BERERER Rt HERERBRE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[ B6 : EmAT

General Disclosure Information on: This Report — B.

— R EE

KPI B6.1
RS AE BUIETR B6.1
KPI B6.2
RS AE MIE1R B6.2
KPI B6.3
BABAEIEIEB6.3

KPI B6.4

FABAIEIRB6.4
KPI B6.5

FAR AR IR1R B6.5

(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on

the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.

BRMMRRERMBRENREERZS  BS R8N

FLEREEARBR T AR -

(a) B &

(b) BFHBEITABEAXENHEBEZERELRIINE
o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEHCEXEmEHT R BERERMAR YK

B Dt

Number of products and services related complaints

received and how they are dealt with.

EREANERLRGHIRFEE AR EETE -

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

e R R ARIEABERBRNED -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

T '%?E*Aiﬂ%i&%uu@”&$£ﬁ

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
S B EERMRERLBER - LWREERITRE
BIE e

Social, page 84-85

N/A

NaEm

This Report - B.
Social, page 84

ABE—B.ALE -
£848

This Report — B.
Social, page 85

ARE-B. g -
F858

N/A

TiE

This Report — B.
Social, page 85

ARE—B A -
£85H
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EEEEEEE
Aspects, General

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report
BE- - —REER BN EFRE
BRERER Rt HERERBRE

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

EmB7 : RE)S

General Disclosure Information on: This Report — B.

(@  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
— MR ER BRED IERR - BR - MFFROERER -
(@) X Kk
(b) EBTHETABERZENEBEZLRINE
e
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt

practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RBERRNEEITASIHEBEEREVEEENE T
NERMHEE RFDRER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

A A5 b R WAZ T - AT RER A -

RAR AR IR 1R BT 1

KPI B7.2

RABEAEIEIR BT .2
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

B4R RIS B7.3 it mES R E TIRHENREISE -

Social, page 85-86

RBE-BAE
#£85E86 8
This Report - B.

Social, page 86

AL —B AL -
86 H

This Report - B.
Social, page 86

RifE—-B. g -
£868H

This Report — B.
Social, page 86

AL —B A -
%286 H
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Aspects, General

disclosures and KPI Description 2024/25 ESG Report
BE - - —-REER —ECNHFERE -
BERERER Rt HERERBRE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EH B8 : HmIRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the This Report — B.

— R ER

KPI B8.1

A 5 45 WUIE 1R BS. 1

KPI B8.2

FA4E AN1515 B8 .2

needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BN RBERTHEEMETREZMBERAE
%EEeE Rt & FRmABUR

Focus areas of contribution.

HX BRI

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EEIBREMHHER(NSEXER)

Social, page 87

RRE-B. g -
£878H

This Report - B.
Social, page 87

s —B g -
£87H

This Report — B.
Social, page 88

AL —BALE -
#8888

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited JEF/§ =& B2k ER AR



The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2025.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

In preparation for the Listing, the Group underwent the
reorganisation, details of the reorganisation are set out in the
Company’s prospectus dated 4 March 2019 (the “Prospectus”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with effect from 18 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s subsidiaries are principally involved in provision of (i)
vessel chartering and related services; (i) ship management; and (jii)
marine construction services.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 and the
financial positions of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 121
to 235 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2025 (2024: HK 1.0 cent).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2025, comprising the discussion of business prospects, is set out
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 17
of this annual report and the cross-referenced part of the annual
report forms part of the directors’ report. The Group committed
to enhancing governance, promoting employee benefits and
development, protecting the environment and giving back to
society in order to fulfill social responsibility and achieve sustainable
growth.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFTHRE

EFREMAREAFREAAKTERS
“ECAFZA=tHLEFENERE
TR A M BHE

RAEH

REERELET AEEETEMR EHEF
BFEIRARRARR T —NF=A
MAENERER(BRER]) °

ARARBORBRXMERLT - BZF
—NE=A+N\BEER-

EFEXEK
ARRZEBXBR/EER - NAT]
ZHBARZERERENMMEER

HERERTS  ()MMEE  K(i)/FEE%E
BR7% ©

24E &HQ«.’\
AEEHE_ZT_AF=A=+—HIt

FEMNEL \&$ ARAREERE AW
FBAN > MNAFRE121E2368
MR A Bk o

BEEeBrEEMEE T -_HF=
BA=+— EI I FERMNAPREERRE
BB ZZE=—mF - 1.0810) -

EXE
AEEBEE-_TE-_AF=-A=+—HIE
FEZEBOB(BREHEHI SO
%@ﬁ%$¢ﬁ%@&fﬁﬂ%ﬁ@ﬂ
WESNT ] MERNEAELBOIDE
REESHREN—HD - AEEB R
FER REEEBEAEER RER
BEREEHE  #MBETHEEETTE
WAl HFEER -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE COMPANY

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The following are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties
which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

There are certain risks involved in the Group’s business operations,
many of which are beyond the Group’s control, these risks may
limit the Group’s ability to execute its strategies successfully. The
Directors believe that the following are some major risks that may
have a material adverse impact on the Group, namely (i) most of
the Group’s revenue is derived from non-recurring contracts, failure
to obtain new contracts may affect the Group’s sustainability and
financial performance; (i) failure to retain qualified personnel to
operate the Group’s vessel fleet may adversely affect the Group’s
business operations and financial performance; (iii) the Group or the
owners of the Group’s chartered vessels may not be able to renew
or maintain the Operating Licences of the Group’s vessel fleet; and
(iv) the Group’s ability to compete for vessel chartering contracts
largely depends on the availability of vessels and there is no
guarantee that the Group will be able to renew the charterparties
with the owners of the Group’s chartered vessels. The Group’s
liquidity position may be adversely affected if the progress payment
or the retention money is not paid or released to the Group on
time or in full; or the construction project cash flows are fluctuated.
To monitor the pressure of financial liquidity, the Group reviews
aging analysis on regular basis and closely communicates with
management of the customers so as to get a better understanding
of their solvency status.

Financial Risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in note
33(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the cross-
referenced part of the annual report forms part of the directors’
report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICY

The Group has strong commitment towards environmental
protection and is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations. During the year
ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group did not incur any significant cost in relation to environmental
protection or have any material environmental-related incident,
and the Group had not been penalised by competent government
authority for environmental-related violations.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the
cornerstone of a business and attaches considerable importance to
it. To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year ended 31
March 2025 and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has
complied with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group. Further, any
changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units from
time to time.

RELATIONS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises that our employees are valuable assets
contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group provides
competitive remuneration package to attract, motivate and retain
our employees. The Board also regularly reviews the remuneration
package of our employees and makes necessary adjustments
to conform to the prevailing market practices. The Board also
treasures that maintaining good relationship with our customers
and suppliers is vital to achieve the Group’s long-term goals. During
the year, there was no significant dispute between the Group
companies and our business partners.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and equity
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
the published audited consolidated financial statements, is set
out on page 236. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year ended 31
March 2025 amounted to HK$435,000 (2024: HK$318,000).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2025, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the applicable laws of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association, amounted to
HK$17,069,000 (2024: HK$29,739,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 125 of this
annual report and note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 235 of this annual report, respectively.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy (chairman and chief executive officer)
Ms. Chan Sau Ling Amy

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Chan Hei Ting

Ms. Hong Ting

Mr. Ng Simon

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association, all
the Directors, namely, Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy, Ms. Chan Sau Ling
Amy, Ms. Chan Hei Ting, Ms. Hong Ting and Mr. Ng Simon will
offer himself/herself for re-election as an executive/independent
non-executive Director (as the case may be).

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent nonexecutive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company, and each of the independent non-
executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with the
Company, for a term of three years commencing from 18 March
2025. The letters of appointment are subject to termination in
accordance with their respective terms.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company RAEQABRGBZITFE
|
Number of  Percentage of
shares shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest interested interest
FrEsERR EERER
EEpA EEME igip 4= | Aotk
Wen Tsz Kit Bondy Interest in controlled corporation and 560,010,750 56.00%
interest of spouse (Notes 1 and 2)
mFEE Ry EEE R REEER (1 R2)
Chan Sau Ling Amy Interest in controlled corporation and 560,010,750 56.00%

interest of spouse (Notes 1 and 2)

BRFE

R LE s M EEs (1 k2)
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Notes:

(1) These 560,010,750 Shares are held by Kitling (BVI) of 558,858,750 Shares
and held by Chan Sau Ling Amy of 1,152,000 Shares. The entire issued share
capital of Kitling (BVI) is owned by Mr. Wen Tsz Kit Bondy (“Mr. Wen”) and
by Ms. Chan Sau Ling Amy (“Ms. Chan”) as to 70% and 30% respectively.
Each of Mr. Wen and Ms. Chan will therefore be deemed interested in the
558,858,750 shares held by Kitling (BVI) as interest in controlled corporation.

2 Since Mr. Wen and Ms. Chan are married to each other, Mr. Wen will be
deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Chan is deemed interested in as
interest of spouse, and vice versa.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, there were no
other interests or short positions of the Directors of the Company
in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) or pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, required to be
recorded in the register or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2025, the following persons/entities (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company were
as follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company

RAEQXTRBZIEFR

Number of  Percentage of
shares shareholding

Name Nature of interest interested interest
FsEER R ER
HEEB EEME RH#E B
Kitling Investments Beneficial owner 560,010,750 56.00%
(BVI) Limited EnAA
Wen Tsz Kit Bondy Interest in controlled corporation and 560,010,750 56.00%
interest of spouse (Note 1)
o Ry EE S LA B (1)
Chan Sau Ling Amy Interest in controlled corporation and 560,010,750 56.00%
interest of spouse (Note 1)
BRFBI Ry EE S RS ER (1)
Notes: PEE -

(1) The share capital of Kitling (BVI) is beneficially owned by Mr. Wen and Ms.
Chan as to 70% and 30%, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, the Company has
not been notified by any persons/entities (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) who held an interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2025 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) on 20 September 2018. The Share
Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the Eligible
Participants (as defined below) have had or may have made to
the Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following objectives: (i)
motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attracting and
retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going business relationships
with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may, at their
absolute discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for the
shares subject to such conditions (including, without limitation, any
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised and/or any performance targets which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised) as they may think fit, to the
following persons (the “Eligible Participants”): (a) any full-time or
part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company; (b) any
director (including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (c)
any advisers, consultants, service providers, customers and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (d) such other
persons who, in the sole opinion of the Directors, will contribute or
have contributed to the Group. An option shall have been accepted
by an Eligible Participant within 21 days from the date of the offer
of grant of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company) to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
100,000,000 shares, being 10% of the shares in issue as at the
Listing Date. No share options had been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme up to the date of this report.
Therefore, the number of shares available for issue is 100,000,000
shares, being approximately 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of this report. The total number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being. Any
further grant of options in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject
to shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less
than the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer for the grant, which must be a Business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five Business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

Unless there is an early termination of the Share Option Scheme
pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the
date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the
Directors in their absolute discretion, save that no option shall be
exercised later than 10 years from the date of grant.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, there were no equity-linked agreements entered
into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 March
2025.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

None of the related party transactions set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements constitutes “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Group’s related party transactions
as connected transactions were exempt from all disclosure
requirements, annual review and independent shareholder’s
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with him/her
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 March 2025 or at any time during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2025.

COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this
report, none of the Directors or the controlling shareholders of the
Company (has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules and, in the context of the Company, means collectively Mr.
Wen Tsz Kit Bondy, Ms. Chan Sau Ling Amy and Kitling Investment
(BVI) Limited) and their respective close associates had any
interests in any business, apart from the business of the Group,
which competes or likely to compete (either directly or indirectly)
with the business of the Group.
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Non-Competition Undertaking by Controlling Shareholders

The controlling shareholders of the Company had entered into a
deed of non-competition in favour of the Company (for itself and as
trustee for each of its subsidiaries, Eastlink Marine Services Limited
and Scenic Shipping Company Limited) on 20 September 2018
(the “Deed of Non-Competition”), details of which are set out
in section headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders
— Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus. The controlling
shareholders of the Company have confirmed to the Company of
their compliance with all the undertakings provided to the Company
under the Deed of Non-Competition.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets or profits of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company since the Listing Date.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emolument of the Directors
are reviewed and recommended by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to eligible persons, details are set out under the heading “Share
Option Scheme” in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where
the Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief of taxation available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, (i) the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for approximately
24.4% and 69.5%, respectively, of the Group’s total revenue; and
(i) the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 4.6% and 14.3%, respectively, of the Group’s
total cost of sales (not including purchases of items which are of a
capital nature).

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital had any interest in the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 March 2025.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has been in compliance
with code provisions set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2025 and up
to the date of this report.

Details of corporate governance report are set out on pages 23 to
39 of this annual report.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 18 March 2019. Net proceeds from the
Listing (after deducting underwriting fee and relevant expenses
payable by the Group in connection with the Listing) amounted
to approximately HK$65.6 million. As at 31 March 2025, a total
amount of HK$43.6 million out of the net proceeds had been used
by the Group according to the allocation set out in the Company’s
announcement of offer price and allotment results dated 15 March
2019. As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s planned application and
actual utilisation of the net proceeds is set out below:

LHAEREFERR
ARRERZZ-NF=A+/\BEHRZ
PREMRMRIN LT o EMAISSURFERE (1
BEIHER R AEE L BT REMHER
X&) HR65.6BBET - M _E_hF
—A=1t—8 XEERBEARRBHS
“E-NFZATHENBEERREE
RAEMH 2R EREHAEH436B8
BITHMBFIRFE -R_T-_hF=A
=t+—R8  AEBEZAERIEFERETER
w R BRI

Utilisation of Remaining Expected
net proceeds balance of timetable
during the Utilised the net of full
Planned vyear ended net proceeds proceeds utilisation
use of 31 March as at 31 as at 31 of the
net proceeds 2025 March 2025 March 2025 balance
8=
—E-hHEF
=Z=A=+—H R=F=-HF R=-T=-HF
Lt¥E =ZA=+—H =ZA=+—H BREEEH
RS RIEFH BAME CBAMSE RS RE BAN
BERR IR FIERE FERE FEHREX
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 Year
THET THT THET TET FE
Acquiring vessels 43,625 — 43,625 — -
W AR A
Setting up a shipyard in Hong Kong
(Note) 22,000 - — 22,000 ZEZAF
REEZRIMIE (K1aE)
65,625 - 43,625 22,000

Hit: BEAKEZHNEERRARRABRAE-F
—NFE=ZANBEMNBEREER(ERER])
PR BRI MG FIRMEERTE - YR
T N\F+ZAERBEEMBEMRIS TR
REBE EAEEREBFRHENE
BRELHANED - AEBBEBEGS
KEEHESB LR IMIE - EEHEF
PSSR MN T RNERHUD
e

Note:  Although the Group has endeavoured to adhere to the implementation plan
for the use of proceeds as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 4 March 2019 (the “Prospectus”) by submitting tenders to rent two
parcels of lands for shipyard sites in late December 2018, the Group was
not awarded any tenancy from the Government for the tendered parcel of
land. The Group would continue to exploit opportunities to rent a suitable
site for a shipyard. The Directors expect the remaining net proceeds will be
fully utilised in 2026.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 21 August 2025 to 26
August 2025, both days inclusive. During this period, no transfer
of shares will be registered. Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 26 August 2025
are entitled to attend the forthcoming annual general meeting
scheduled on 26 August 2025. In order to qualify for the right to
vote for and/or attend the forthcoming annual general meeting, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 20 August 2025.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the passing of an ordinary
resolution by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members will be closed for one day on
3 September 2025, during that day no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 2 September 2025.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wen Tsz Kit Bondy

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited
Chairrman

Hong Kong
26 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF YUN LEE MARINE GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED
EASEREZRERATF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yun
Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 121 to 235, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) as issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FAREFTEE

RIEHFINEXHE  BREFFER
BB ARGV BRRTRERN
FH ZEFFHRITRBMEAHERES
B R NN E R ETTRE
BRMTERLEFFTHERBERESR -

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

We identified impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter
due to the significance of trade receivables and
contract assets to the Group’s consolidated financial
position and the involvement of subjective judgement
and management estimates in evaluating the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets amounting to HK$75,337,000
and HK$58,586,000, respectively, which represented
approximately 17.1% and 13.3% of the total assets
of the Group and out of these trade receivables of
approximately HK$43,051,000 were past due. As
explained in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, HK$2,555,000 allowance of credit loss
was recognised.

As disclosed in Notes 4, 21, 22 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, trade receivables
and contract assets are assessed individually for
significant trade and contract asset debtors and
collectively for remaining trade and contract asset
debtors for impairment allowance based on the
historical credit losses experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and the forward-
looking information at the end of each reporting
period.

Details of the ECL are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of trade receivables and contract assets included:

e  Understanding how the management estimates
ECL allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets;

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management for impairment assessment;

e Challenging management’s basis and
judgement in determining credit loss allowance
on trade receivables and contract assets as at
31 March 2025, including the reasonableness
of management’s assessment on the internal
credit rating of the trade and contract asset
debtors and the basis of estimated loss rate
and forward-looking rate information; and

e Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets in Notes 4, 21, 22 and 34
to the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yeung Pik Fung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 June 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SREREMEERNGR

.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-Z-_AF=-A=+—HILEFE

NOTES 2025 2024
Ff =E —EC-ERE —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Revenue & 5 373,187 334,604
Cost of revenue I ER A AR (274,623) (245,194)
Gross profit EF 98,564 89,410
Other income E A 6 3,983 2,667
Other gains and losses, net H s R BT R 7 1,771 11,203
Impairment loss (recognised) FEHEEBEERIET
reversed under ECL model, net (R LR RAEEEFE 8 (848) 311
Administrative expenses TR (68,782) (68,413)
Finance costs BhE B AR 9 (708) (824)
Share of result of an associate oME—REEE AR EE (107) 277
Profit before taxation B A5 A A 33,873 34,631
Income tax expenses FiSRiR 2 10 (1,368) (5,095)
Profit for the year FEm A 11 32,505 29,536
Profit (loss) for the year AT AT FE & (EE):
attributable to:
— owners of the Company . VNEIEZ 2PN 19,807 31,584
— non-controlling interests — FEIERRAE 12,698 (2,048)
32,505 29,536
Earnings per share - Basic BREFR —EXK
(HK cents) (L) 14 1.98 3.16
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FEESREMEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

NOTES 2025 2024
Bt A —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Profit for the year FERN 32,505 29,536
Other comprehensive (expense) NEEEMEE(FAL) WS
income for the year
ltems that may be HigngeEsote
reclassified to profit or loss EEEMIER ¢
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on BMEBINETEFTE -
the translation of 2 FEH ZRE
foreign operations (1) 1
Total comprehensive income AFEEEEK =L
for the year 32,504 29,537
Total comprehensive income INTATEEREE
(expense) for the year EHERE (A )85
attributable to:
— owners of the Company . VNEIEZ 2PN 19,806 31,585
— non-controlling interests — FEIERRAE 12,698 (2,048)
32,504 29,537

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited JEF/§ =& B2k AR AR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2025

RZZE-_AF=A=+—H

NOTES 2025 2024
{hEE —E-FHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B MR 15 119,186 126,707
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 8,387 11,518
Interests in associates NNz £y 17 3,327 3,434
Other non-current asset HEmIEREEE 18 3,100 3,100
Goodwill GRS 19 16,986 25,400
Intangible asset EmREEAE 20 5,661 8,491
Financial asset at fair EAFEFABRE(RAF
value through profit or loss Bt ABR B EREE
(“FVTPL) 20 — 2,628
Rental deposits HEZe 21 459 457
Deferred tax assets FEIERR T E 23 1,129 1,320
158,235 183,055
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWFRIE 21 84,297 71,380
Contract assets EHEE 22 58,586 52,192
Amount due from an associate JE Uy — PTG 2 8 &) 5K I8 27 7 10
Tax recoverable Al Yo B 7518 1,659 1,534
Financial asset at fair value B EFAEBRN
through profit or loss TREE 20 12,611 —
Time deposits TEHTF R 24 51,538 58,134
Cash and cash equivalents B MIRSFEY 24 73,572 76,577
282,270 259,827
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables Z 5 R E MR FRIA 25 54,341 56,102
Promissory note payable JE - H R 26 - 12,422
Amounts due to non-controlling JEAH B B A &) SEHE AR IR 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries FOE 27 42,961 42,088
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 28 7,385 8,296
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 4,943 5,256
Tax payables FERTHRIR 4,847 7,358
114,477 131,522
Net current assets REBEEFE 167,793 128,305
Total assets less current liabilities #ZEERTEE & 326,028 311,360
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’ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FENBRAR

At 31 March 2025
RZE-AF=A=1+—H

|
NOTES 2025 2024
M = —E-ERE —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FBT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank and other borrowings HRIT R HABAERK 28 - 199
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 3,764 6,504
Deferred tax liabilities EETIEBE 23 14,436 15,413
18,200 22,116
Net assets EEFE 307,828 289,244
Capital and reserves BEAXRFHE
Share capital &N 30 10,000 10,000
Reserves B 264,779 254,973
Equity attributable to owners RAEEA AL
of the Company 274,779 264,973
Non-controlling interests IEVERR T 33,049 24,271
Total equity DB 307,828 289,244

The consolidated financial statements on pages 121 to 235 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
June 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

F121 E235 E 4R E
RAEANA-t+ABESESHERKE
T2 WA NIATRREFSHRE

MBHRER_-F

Wen Tsz Kit Bondy
DIRECTOR

Chan Sau Ling Amy
DIRECTOR

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited JEF/§ =& B2k AR AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-Z-_AF=-A=+—HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLATEEARE
Non-
Share Share  Merger Other ~ Capital Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reseve  reserve  reseve  reserve  profis Total  interests equity
Bx  REGE SR BEE  EAEE  ASRE  REEA 85 FeREE  RROE
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000
Tén T TR TAr  TEn  TEr  TRn T TEr TEn
(Notea) ~ (Noteb)  (Notec)
(Wia)  (Wb) (K
A1 Apr 2023 N-E-=%#MA-H 1000 133728 (63406) 9830 17134 - M2 B B 8420
Proft and otal other comprehensie. ~ EEERIREMZANELE
income for the year - - - - - 1 308 358 (2048 29537
Dividends paic (Note 13 BfREIE 1) - - - - - - (18000) (18000 - (18000)
Dhidends peid to AR ERRS
non-controling inferests - - - - - - - - (490 (900

Acquiston of subsidares Note 2]~ MEEHBAE (B 20) - - - - - - - -0 (1600

Investment in a subsiciary R-ENBARNRE - - - - - - _ - 5 5

A3 March 204 and 1 Aprl 2024 H=E-BE=A=1+-AR

“E-mERA-A 10000 133728 (63,406) 9830 17134 1 157686 2649738 24211 280044

Proftand otal other comprehensie. ~ EERFIREM2ANGAE

income for the year - - - - - () 19807 19806 12698 32,504
Diidends paid (Note 13) BARE(HE13) - - - - - - (10000)  (10,000) - (10000
Dhidends peid to BfiERERRS

non-controling inferests = = = = = = = = (3920 (3920

At 31 March 2025 NB-RFZA=+-R 10000 133728  (63406) 9830 17134 - 67498 24719 33040 307,828

Notes: BiEE -

(@  Merger reserve mainly represents the difference between the total equity of (a) AHREEBEXZEREEZE_Z—NLF=A
Yun Lee Marine Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Yun Lee (BVI)”) acquired and the =+t HLFENEEMBEBANESEER
nominal value of share capital of the entities pursuant to the reorganisation (RBAERRES)ERAFNEN(EBELE
during the year ended 31 March 2019. MRS NERAERZSEENRAN

HEZENZESE -

()  Amounts represent (i) the difference between the changes in share of net asset b) SFEEOHRBEFE  FIEBRBRES(H—H
of a subsidiary by the non-controlling shareholders and the capital injection by M8 A R A & BEFE 2 B) B3I IR AR R A L
non-controlling shareholders upon completion of share allotment in prior year; BERMTEREEE 2R ¢ (i) BRI (E
(iiy the difference between the par value of the allotted shares of Yun Lee (BVI) BHEBARE ) CREROVEELEREEE
and the fair value of equity interest in Eastlink Marine Services Limited (“Eastlink —E-AFZAZT—BHUEFENEMALRE
Marine”), an associate of the Group, pursuant to the reorganisation during LN R RMEERBAER R A REME
the year ended 31 March 2019 and (iii) the difference between the amount by FBRAERQTFEEOERE R (i) A4
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the consideration paid REIROR=ZZE—NF=A+TN\AREEH
arising from acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries by the Group ARGHERARERLEM(T EMDE - JE
when shares of the Company had been listed on the Main Board of The Stock ERERARSBEAEERKEREAR
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 18 March 2019 (the “Listing’). EIMERFTEERARE MERE -

() Amounts represent (i) the portion of issue cost in relation to the Listing borne (c) £ RERD (i) FB Kitling Investments (BVI) Limited

by Kitling Investments (BVI) Limited (“Kitling (BVI)”) and (i) the waiver of an
amount of HK$12,500,000 advanced from Kitling (BVI) upon completion of the
Listing.

([Kitling (BVI))&IEH B LAY
55 Re(i) £ SRR B FA SR 2R 8 Kitling(BVI) A&
212,500,000 B TTEI K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=-A=+—HILLFE

2025 2024
—E-RF —ENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT FET
Operating activities REES
Profit before taxation B 58 AT 4 33,873 34,631
Adjustments for: BATZIBELAE -
Depreciation of property, Y - BENREBETE
plant and equipment 12,085 11,691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 5,654 5,424
Amortisation charge of intangible asset M EEEHER 2,830 2,830
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEKR
plant and equipment R EEE = 21
Loss on lease modification HEERTEE 23 —
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill MEEERAREEE 8,414 —
Impairment loss recognised (reversed) TEHEEBEERNIET
under ECL model, net TR (B E) R RE
BB R 848 (311)
Interest income from banks RITH B ULA (2,211) (1,870)
Share of results of associates SaK(S): /NS EF 107 277)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 708 824
Gain on deemed disposal of equity RAEH & — A& Q7]
interest of an associate (note 20) Az B Y as (M9 5T 20) - (11,900)
Fair value change of financial asset/liability 22 F(EFF AEZ
at FVTPL MmemEEBEN
NEEEF (9,908) 406
Exchange (gain) loss EH (W) B8 3) 272
Operating cash flows before movements LEECFHHLKERERE
in working capital 52,420 41,741
Increase in contract assets BHEEEN (6,500) (12,293)
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 & E A WA
other receivables (3 h0) (13,767) 3,562
Decrease in trade and B 5 R H AR
other payables Vo (1,761) (20,660)
Decrease (increase) in amount JE Wy — FaT B & 8 &) SR IER
due from an associate (#0) 3 (10)
Decrease in amounts due to associates BB & A B R R - (316)
Cash generated from operations KESHES 30,395 12,024
Income tax paid BEFER (4,790) (1,414)
Net cash from operating activities KRETHRBRETE 25,605 10,610

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited JEF/& = £ EERER A A



For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

2025 2024
—EC-RE —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FExT
Investing activities RETH
Withdrawal of time deposits IREVEBIF K 59,349 43,706
Placement of time deposits BFATEBGFR (52,750) (26,410)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB Y% - K& & &RE (4,564) (2,748)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BB MERE
plant and equipment FriS 538 — 17
Dividends received from an associate B E N FIIRE - 840
Interest received from banks BUERTTH B 2,211 1,870
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B R B A A - 814
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENBRRMIEE = 5
Net cash from RETEHMERESFEE
investing activities 4,246 18,094
Financing activities BEEE
Dividends paid BERE (10,000) (18,000)
Dividends paid to EIEERE RS
non-controlling interests (3,920) (4,900)
Repayment for lease liabilities HMEBEEN (5,494) (4,807)
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BIEIRTT REMER (1,110) (1,027)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHEEAENE (411) (502)
Interest paid on bank and other borrowing 2 #R1T & E A fE 3R 2 (297) (322)
Settlement of promissory note payables B AR RIE (11,900) —
Interest paid on promissory note payables  FhIER#H ZEE L& (597) —
Advance from non-controlling P A B FEIE AR AR SR B K
shareholders of subsidiaries 873 9,717
Net cash used in financing activities BMETEBMARESTFE (32,856) (19,841)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and HeERRESEEY
cash equivalents (R ) B hnF5E (3,005) 8,863
Cash and cash equivalents at FOESRESEEY
beginning of the year 76,577 67,714
Cash and cash equivalents FERRERESEEY -
at end of the year,
represented by cash and cash equivalents 2% A28 4 MIESHED 73,572 76,577
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HEz—-T

—RF=A=t+—BLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate and ultimate holding company
is Kitling (BVI). The ultimate controlling shareholders of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are Mr. Wen Tsz
Kit Bondy (“Mr. Wen”) and Ms. Chan Sau Ling Amy (“Ms.
Chan”), the spouse of Mr. Wen (collectively as “the Controlling
Shareholders”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is 89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman,
KY1-9009, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of
the Company is Flat D, 31/F., Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 36.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited EF/8 &£ BB AR A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2024 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and
related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5

(2020)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

ERAMITREBITEEMBER

e R

=T

RAFEHE  AEED BRER
THEBgM RS (BB
RERMORETEBMBERE
SR YR AEER-_ZF M
F0U A — B A 605 = HIE o8 il A
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MR EET

BESEN  HAEZEM
F1R(BTA)  ERDARE
BFEETEN  HEERERHE
BTRRES

BB RS ER
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continuea)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or noncurrent, which:

e gspecify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.

e  clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer
of cash, goods or services, or the entity’s own equity
instruments to the counterparty. If a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own equity
instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the
option separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited B8 =& &R AR A A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continuea)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that
only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or
before the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date, even if compliance with the covenant is
assessed only after the reporting date. The 2022 Amendments
also specify that covenants with which an entity must comply
after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect
the classification of a liability as current or non-current at the
reporting date. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement
of a liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants
within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity
discloses information that enables users of financial statements
to understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable
within twelve months after the reporting period. This would
include information about the covenants, the carrying amount
of related liabilities and facts and circumstances, if any, that
indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with the
covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy to the classification
of liability as current or non-current retrospectively. The
application of the amendments in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continuea)

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are

not yet effective:
Amendments to HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS

Accounting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 21

HKFRS 18

Amendments to
the Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments?®

Contracts Referencing
Nature-dependent
Electricity®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture'

Annual Improvements
to HKFRS Accounting
Standards - Volume 118

Lack of Exchangeability?

Presentation and Disclosure
in Financial Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

Except for the new HKFRS Accounting Standards mentioned
below, the Directors anticipate that the application of all other
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continuea)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new HKFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements
to present specified categories and defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes
to the financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the financial
statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been
moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation of
the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the future
financial statements. The Group is in the process of assessing
the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
issued by HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong companies ordinance.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation
(i)  The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

® has power over the investee;

® is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its investment with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continuead)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
palance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
the related processes or they significantly contribute
to the ability to continue producing outputs and are
considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) except
for transactions and events within the scope of HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
(“HKAS 37”) or HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies (“HK(IFRIC)-Int
217, in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)
- Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify
the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are measured in accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”)) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition
date, except for leases for (a) which the lease term
ends within 12 months of the acquisition date; or
(b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MEGSHBHRZEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KETBER#Z)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units (‘CGUs”) (or groups
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment. A
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. REGAHNBHERZBERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KEFBRE)
Investments in associates (Continued) RBELGZRE(E)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

* the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
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e the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MEUGSHBHBRZEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KEFBER#Z)

142

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

Contract assets on construction contracts represent
the Group’s right to consideration for work completed
and not billed as the rights are conditional on the
Group’s future performance in satisfying the respective
performance obligations. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument (‘HKFRS
9”). In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

Contract liabilities on construction contracts represent the
Group’s obligation to transfer project works to customers
for which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customers.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MUGSHBHRZEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KETBER#Z)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation (Continued)

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value of the Group’s performance completed to date,
the Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the
Group has the right to invoice.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (variation
order of construction contract), the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using
either (a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the provision of services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception of the contract. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability; and

* any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modlifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

* the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

* the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”). Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MUGSHBHRZEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KETBER#Z)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial assets, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “other income” line item.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss earned on the financial asset
is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, rental deposits,
amount due from an associate, time deposits and cash
and cash equivalents) and contract assets which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12 month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within twelve months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
ET-AF=A=1+—RLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating; and

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

V)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterpart is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets are considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration past due information and
relevant credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

* Past-due status;

* Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management

to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. RBZAMBHRRZEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KEFABE#E)
Financial instruments (Continued) AT HEE)
Financial assets (Continued) SRMEEE)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross

carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
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profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end
of each reporting period.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the “Other gains and losses, net” line item (Note 7) as
part of the net foreign exchange gain (loss).
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
ET-AF=A=1+—RLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains
and losses are determined based on the amortised cost
of the instruments. These foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the “Other gains and losses, net”
line item in profit or loss (Note 7) as part of net foreign
exchange gains (loss) for financial liabilities.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the account of the obligation. The amount recognised
as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. WWhen a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Onerous contracts present obligations arising under
onerous contracts are recognised and measured
as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to
exist where the Group has a contract under which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received from the contract. The unavoidable costs under
a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the
contract, which is the lower of the net cost of fulfilling it
and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to
fulfil it. When assessing whether a contract is onerous or
loss-making, the Group includes costs that relate directly
to the contract, consisting of both the incremental costs
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfiling contracts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MUGSHBHRZEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KETBER#Z)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGU to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

WE - BERRXE ZEEE
ERZELEERE

REREHR - NEERTHE
W%~ BB iR R A B
BENEREE UEEELE

BE - mBEEAZFTKR A
SRFHEBEEN KL
B NAEEREEBR(WAE)N
BE -

ME - BENZE EREE
BN E T & B A W O R IR
BB ET o fis A 8 Bl {4 51 AT I
&5 AAEEEETZE
EfBRcELSMNA KD
TH

RARBREEEEMANRE
B REIEEEANEYAE
E—HOrEERK{OREE
HERSELEN  THKHE
shEs/IWReELENE
Bl AR AE R e DR
HEit o M BRAREE
FFEMREELEUNBSE
EEMERNETE  WERARR
TELABNRRSELENE
RIEVERE B EETTLE -

AU Bl 2 B8 TY A FE R B K
REFHEETFHNESE - &
AHEE B EER - AEHRKR
TRECARATMIRKRYBRE
HBE  ZHRERRYEE
i EHEE R E AT 5 R
KRS REMAREABNE
EFRCELEML)MBAN
B

Annual Report 2025

161



162

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGU,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGU, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGU. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGU. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGU. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MUGSHBHRZEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KETBER#Z)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU or a group
of CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or the CGU or a group of
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Retirernent benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS Accounting Standards requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

Shares options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measure at fair value
of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based payments reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payments
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MEGSHBHRZEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KETBER#Z)

Share-based payments (Continued)

URGBERZ 5 (E)

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions DERAEE2URDAERZ
(Continued) RS (&)
Share options granted to non-employees [RIFFIE B 121 fE AR #E

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
that the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the entity
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets).

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that are
subject to regulatory restrictions that result in such
balances no longer meeting the definition of cash;
and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as define above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
ET-AF=A=1+—RLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current
and deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MUGSHBHRZEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) KETBER#Z)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with interests in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interest are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
the relevant assets and related liabilities are assessed on
a net basis. Excess of depreciation on the relevant assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Judgement in identifying whether provide vessel chartering and related
services contract includes a lease

The Group enters contract with customers in providing
vessel chartering and related services. In determining if the
contract is, or contains, a lease, management considers all
vessels together. The directors of the Company assess all the
facts and circumstances if the Group has practical ability to
substitute alternative vessels throughout the period of use and
would benefit economically from the exercise of its right to
substitute of the vessels.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Judgement in identifying whether provide vessel chartering and related
services contract includes a lease (Continued)

The directors of the Company have established that the Group
can use the vessels for other purposes during the course of
the contract to provide services to other customers. Therefore,
customers do not have rights to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from the use of vessels and related
services. As a result, the directors of the Company concluded
that customers have not contracted for substantially all of the
capacity of vessels, including related services, and therefore
the contract does not contain a lease.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The directors of the Company calculate ECL for the trade
receivables and contract assets, which is assessed individually
for significant trade debtors and contract assets and
collectively for remaining trade debtors and contract assets.
The provision rates applied are estimated using the historical
observed default rates of the debtors taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonably and supportably
available without undue costs or effort. At the end of the
reporting period, these historical loss rates are reassessed
and updated if required after considering the forward-looking
information. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets are disclosed in Notes
21, 22 and 34. The net carrying amount of trade receivables
and contract assets at 31 March 2025 for the Group are
HK$75,337,000 and HK$58,586,000 (2024: HK$61,346,000
and HK$52,192,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the assets belong. Changing the key inputs and assumptions,
including the budgeted sales, gross profit margin, annual
and terminal growth rates and discount rate applied in the
cash flow projection, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts. As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of
goodwill is HK$16,986,000 (2024: HK$25,400,000) (net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$8,414,000 (2024: nil)).
Details of the impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed
in Note 19.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s financial asset amounting
to HK$12,611,000 (2024: HK$2,628,000) is measured
at fair value with fair value being determined based on
significant unobservable inputs using valuation techniques.
Judgement and estimation are required in establishing the
relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could result
in adjustments to the fair value of the asset. Notes 20 and 34
provide detailed information about the valuation technique,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of the asset.

4,

For the year ended 31 March 2025
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

EE

—ECRFZA=+-HIEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents revenue arising from provision of vessel
chartering and related services and ship management
Services.

Information reported to the executive director of the
Company, Mr. Wen, being the chief operating decision maker
(the “CODM”) of the Group, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of service provided. The Group’s operating segments
are previously classified as (i) vessel chartering and related
services; (ii) ship management services. and (iii) marine
construction services. The details of the Group’s operating
segments are as follows:

(i) Vessel chartering The Group provides vessel chartering
and services mainly to contractors for
related services:  construction projects in Hong Kong,

including time chartering representing
the hiring of vessel and crew for a
specific period of time and voyage
chartering representing the hiring of
vessel and crew for a specific voyage
between two designated locations.

(i) Ship management
services:

The Group provides ship management
services for two vessels which
transport the dewatered sludge
from Stonecutters Island and other
designated sites to the sludge
treatment facilities located at Nim Wan,
Tuen Mun. The Group is responsible
for the provision of crew members
for daily operation and the repair and
maintenance services.

(i) Marine construction The Group provides marine construction
services: and engineering services and mainly
to contractors for marine construction

projects in Hong Kong.

These operating segments also represent the Group’s
reportable segments. No operating segments identified by
the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

Segment revenues and results

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating are reportable segments:

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

AR S EBER (&)
D EBURA R 4R

BUA KRBT -

Year ended 31 March 2025 B2 _E_HF=A=1+—HIFE
Vessel
chartering Ship Marine
and related management construction
services services services  Eliminations Total
MHEER BE
HERE MEEERK BER® #8H st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THER THER TER THERT
SEGMENT REVENUE DEEA
External revenue EIN: T ON 130,933 26,718 215,536 = 373,187
Inter-segment revenue 2 EBFE 2 A 17,172 - 1,958 (19,130) -
Total B 148,105 26,718 217,494 (19,130) 373,187
Segment profit pak=yiawil 56,502 11,458 29,756 - 97,716
Other income He A 3,983
Other gains and losses, net Hih e RSB FE 1,771
Administrative expenses THAX (68,782)
Finance cost B A
inance costs BEK (708)
Share of result of an associate Pax il kNI (107)
Profit before taxation BB A& F 33,873
Vear ended 31 March 2024 BE_E_NF=F=+—HIFE
|
Vessel
chartering Ship Marine
and related management construction
services services services  Eliminations Total
mHEER BE
HERYE MHESERE BER® Eag | st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FTiER TR FTiER FTHER
SEGMENT REVENUE DEBBA
External revenue SNEBIA 145,475 26,379 162,750 - 334,604
Inter-segment revenue 2 EbE WA 13,413 - 1,448 (14,861) -
Total B 158,888 26,379 164,198 (14,861) 334,604
Segment profit D EEF 63,221 12,084 14,416 — 89,721
Other income Hptb e A 2,667
Other gains and losses, net Hiples M E1EFEE 11,203
Administrative expenses TR (68,413)
Fv t B > v
inance costs ELENEN &24)
Share of result of an associate D E— T E AR EE 277
Profit before taxation BR AR A 34,631
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment profit represents the profit before taxation earned
by each segment without allocation of share of result of an
associate, other income, other gains and losses, administrative
expenses and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the CODM of the Group for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Except as disclosed above, no other amounts are regularly
provided to the CODM of the Group and therefore, no further
analysis is presented.

No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the CODM
of the Group on making decision for resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

(@) Vessel chartering and related services

The Group provides vessel chartering services mainly
to contractors for construction projects in Hong Kong,
including time chartering representing the hiring of
vessel and crew for a specific period of time and voyage
chartering representing the hiring of vessel and crew for
a specific voyage between two designated locations. The
Group recognises the fee received or receivable as its
revenue over time in the period in which the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as services are
performed by the Group. Revenue is recognised for these
vessel chartering and related services based on the stage
of completion of the contract using output method.
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5.

AR S EBE R (&)

Ea ) BV S AT BOCR B FE S At
AEENEGHBERMAR - 2 86 A
&0 ERENEBR B AT E A - M
EoRS G —HBERRES  H
WA - Bt s K B8 - 1T
S RBERA o LTI E IR D B K
RAFEMERTFTAEBETEZLE
RRENEERN -

R EXFTEEEN  WEEMEH
EHRETASEIELERR
E o MAEEINE— BT o

TEZIDAHAEELDHBEED
i R E L EHREE T A
SEIBELERREURERD A
K RBFHEVEHIRIE ©

AEB B NI EBHREE WA

() MfAtEE RABREIRTE

AEBETEREBEEIEAB K
ERRfEMREERYE 21
M (AIE-BREERHA
EAMMEME) RARE M
(Blgh 5 e b 2 2 P A R 5E
iEEAMRAEME) - ARNA
SECORERS  AEERE
FREWEMERAEBERETT
B A9 B2 1 B9 A 25 5 B s 1
FER T U sk IR E A B UA -
% % M AR AR B R A B AR 7% B Wk
SIRIE A #) e R PE B E A &
RHER. ©



5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

(b)

Ship management services

The Group provides ship management services for two
vessels which transport the dewatered sludge from
Stonecutters Island and other designated sites to the
sludge treatment facilities located at Nim Wan, Tuen Mun.
The Group recognises the fee received or receivable as
its revenue over time in the period in which the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as services are
performed by the Group. Revenue is recognised for
these ship management services based on the stage of
completion of the contract using output method.

Marine construction services

The Group provides marine construction and engineering
services mainly to contractors for marine construction
projects in Hong Kong. The Group recognises the fee
received or receivable as its revenue as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for
these marine construction services based on the value of
marine construction work using output method.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(©)

Marine construction services (Continued)

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the
same contract, is recognised over the period in which
the construction services are performed representing the
Group’s right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s
future performance in achieving specified milestones or
the value of construction work has to be agreed with
the customers. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional.
The Group typically transfers the contract assets to
trade receivables when the Group issued invoice to
the customers based on the value of work certified by
independent qualified surveyors.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges
from one year from the date of the practical completion
of the construction. The relevant amount of contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables when the defect
liability period expires. The defect liability period serves as
an assurance that the construction services performed
comply with agreed upon specifications and such
assurance cannot be purchased separately.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited B8 =& &R AR A A
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

(d) Sales of machineries and equipment related to marine
and construction industries

The Group sells machineries and equipment related to
marine and construction directly to customers, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has been
transferred, being at the point the customer purchases
the goods at the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction
price is due immediately at the point the customer
purchases the goods.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

For marine construction contracts, the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2025 amounting to
HK$177,940,000 (2024: HK$349,427,000). Management
expects that all the remaining performance obligations will be
recognised as revenue over the next two (2024: three) years
from the end of the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
major Services:

AR S EBE R (&)

DEBB AR (F)

AT RRAANEEEEIRBE WA
DT

|

2025 2024

—E-RE —E-MmE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FExT

Vessel chartering and related services — MFATE & N 878 AR5 130,745 145,475

Ship management services MM E IR AR 26,718 26,379

Marine construction services BERERS 215,536 162,750

Sales of machineries and equipment BB ERBREITHE

related to marine and FERER RS R E

construction industries 188 —

373,187 334,604

For contracts for vessel chartering and related services and
ship management services, the Group bills for each period of
service provided.

Payment of the transaction price is generally due within 30 to
90 days. All unsatisfied vessel chartering and related services
and ship management services contracts are for periods
of less than one year. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

Geographical information

As all the Group’s revenue is derived from customers located
in Hong Kong and all the Group’s identifiable non-current
assets are principally located in Hong Kong, no geographical
segment information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue are as follows:

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

AR S EBER (&)
BEHRXEEFNEH
RIBEFEE AR EBRAER10%
HEPRAIT

2025 2024
—EREF —ENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Customer A’ BRI 91,193 77,012
Customer B BET 80,276 67,020
! Revenue from marine construction services segment. ! KEGEREREDEBEAUNA -
OTHER INCOME Hbg A

2025 2024

i T S —E-MmE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FExT

Interest income from banks IRITHIBUA 2,211 1,870
Management fee income EEERAKA 672 360
Insurance refund RERE 1,063 394
Others HAh 37 43
3,983 2,667
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i‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE I IR MG
For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE-Z-_RAF=A=+T—HLFE
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7. HitWERBIERE
2025 2024
“ERF “EZMF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment REEE - 1)
Loss on lease modification MEERTEHE (23) —
Fair value changes of financial BRAFEFABENCREE
asset/liability at FVTPL (Note 20) SBENAFEE
(Mf3E20) 9,908 (406)
Impairment loss recognised on MEBRERNRESE
goodwill (Note 19) (BFEE19) (8,414) -
Gain on deemed disposal of equity BIEH & — & QR
interest of an associate (Note 20) It E Y as (i 5E 20) - 11,900
Gain on disposal of scrapped materials &R & U z5 297 —
Exchange gain (loss) P H Wz (E518) 3 272)
Others HAh - 2
1,771 11,203
8. IMPAIRMENT LOSS RECOGNISED (REVERSED) UNDER ECLMODEL, 8. FEEAEEEBERIE TSI (%
NET ) BRI ESR R
2025 2024
—EBC-RE —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx
Impairment losses recognised (reversed) B R (#[El) ~
on trade receivables and g 5 WA K&
contract assets BHEERBEEE 848 (311)
Details on impairment assessment are set out in Note 34. ERRERN L 2 FFIEE NI EE34 ©
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BERAK
2025 2024
ALl —EoE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx
Interest on bank and other borrowings 877 & E 4th & 2 F1| & 297 322
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 411 502
708 824
180 Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited 87155 234 R 2 7



10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FAiSHMAX
|
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH
— Current year —RFE 3,531 4,415
— Overprovision in prior years (Note) — A FE R E (M) (1,377) -
2,154 4,415
Deferred tax (Note 23): EEFIA (M7 23) ¢
Current year REE (786) 680
1,368 5,095

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Note: The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (Tax Concessions for Certain

Shipping-related Activities) Ordinance 2022 provides profits tax
concessions for certain ship agents, ship managers and ship brokers
(collectively “shipping commercial principals”). The tax concession
applies to sums received or accrued on or after 1 April 2022. Subject
to certain conditions, the profits derived by a qualifying shipping
commercial principal from carrying out a qualifying activity in Hong
Kong will be subject to profits tax rate at 8.25%. During the year,
the management considered one of its subsidiaries is qualified for
the profits tax concessions and elected to enjoy relevant profits tax
concession in the profits tax filing for the years of assessment 2023/24
and 2022/23. Amount of HK$999,000 was over provided by the Group
during prior years.

RENGHMAS  AEREEE
BEF2HE BT ARG M A
K 38.25%  MBE2ABETAH
RBE MR ER16.5% « THFE
METRRSEREEE RGNS
HerB1216.5% 2 B — T REULBIA -

Mz (ST —FHBE)(EMEL
MR SEEN B R (6B ) B E T
MAMRER - MMEERMAEL
BEBMEERETEADIRH
FERER - HEERERRNE-T
ZFMNA—BRZEREKRER
I - EETIHRERRT - &EBM
BEERNETBARESERESERE
BEFHFEHIRAGRHHE8.25%
B RAFE BEERRBEHEAF
—MENBARFEFESHERERIL
BER-_T-= /—HNER-T=Z
S FARFENNEHEARES
EERSHERER - AEERNBE
FEE B 999,0008 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

10.

The income tax expenses for year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FrisHiB (&)
FANAEHAXEEEER RE
tb 2 T W & 2% O R A BTD& A 3 AR 0
™

E— ]
2025 2024
—E-hHEF —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Profit before taxation B & A 4 A 33,873 34,631
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEHBEE16.5%
rate of 16.5% STEABIEA 5,589 5,714
Tax effect of share of result of h—FEEE R RIEERN
an associate M2 18 (46)
Tax effect of income not taxable TR A N S 2
for tax purposes (2,319) (2,318)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R0k 32
for tax purposes 2,517 2,623
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR HERTIBE B FRIETE 421 280
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AL AERNIEEBE
recognised (2,813) (881)
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBEREG (1,377) —
Income tax at concessionary rate BEERETENER (497) —
One-off tax deduction of profits tax MG BH— X EFF B
by Inland Revenue Department (6) (12)
Tax effect of two-tiered profits A5 H50 i A% ol B0 ot 755 s 22
tax rate regime (165) (165)
Income tax expenses it 1,368 5,095

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited JEF/§ =& B2k AR AR



1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1. FREFREZEKSHAE

2025 2024
—z-n [EEELE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt FiB

Profit and total comprehensive income & A% Al & & U 55 48 58 5

for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

BMBRIATRIBRGH

Staff costs, including directors’ BIXRK(BEEENE)

remuneration (Note 12) (FzE12)

— Salaries and other allowances —¥e R HEAER 118,997 102,637

— Retirement benefit scheme —RIREFIFT BB

contributions (Note 31) (Ft5E31) 3,278 2,930

Total staff costs @8 TR 122,275 105,567
Amortisation of an intangible asset | & E 2,830 2,830
Depreciation of property, M - WEMEBETE

plant and equipment 12,085 11,691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CHREEENE 5,654 5,424
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN £ 1,100 1,500
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i‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

184

FE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors and the chief executive
Details of the emoluments paid or payable by the entities
comprising the Group to the directors and the chief
executive of the Group during the year are as follows:

12. EE - TETHAERESHE

(a)

EERIETHAR
£ P4 A 4 B 10 B 1 A AR
BEERIBTRABCMNS
FEf BN S I T

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonus contributions Total
FER RIKER
e  HtpRl - BETA EHR #ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TR TR THER TR
For the year ended BE-Z-n%
31 March 2025 =R=+-H
LFEE
Executive directors: HOIES:
Mr. Wen (Note a) BEAE(METa) 4,320 282 1,715 18 6,335
Ms. Chan (Note a) Bt (Hista) 3,840 282 1,715 18 5,855
Independent non-executive BV IFHITES
directors:
Ms. Chan Hei Ting RAEELT 240 - - - 240
Ms. Hong Ting BERt 240 - - - 240
Mr.Ng Simon (Noteb) ~ fRttH&8 % £ (Fiztb) 240 - - - 240
8,880 564 3,430 36 12,910
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS ~ 12. % * FETHRAERESHE

(Continued) (%)
(a) Directors and the chief executive (Continued) @ EERIFBFTBARE)
I |
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonus contributions Total
FER RINER
e Hi#Rt  BERA EEX #ct

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TERT FET FET FER

For the year ended BE-Z-m#F
31 March 2024 =ZA=+-8
tEE
Executive directors: HIES:
Mr. Wen (Note a) BEE(HEa) 3,780 283 1,245 8 5,316
Ms. Chan (Note a) Bt (ffTa) 3,360 283 1,245 8 4,896
Independent non-executive B FFHITES
directors:
Ms. Chan Hei Ting BAHEELL 240 - - — 240
Ms. Hong Ting Bgrt 240 - - - 240
Mr.Ng Simon (Noteb) ~ fRitt& %4 (FfsEb) 213 - - - 213
7,833 566 2,490 16 10,905
Notes: MsE -
(@  Mr. Wen and Ms. Chan are entitled to bonus payments which are (a) BEE R Z LA EREE
determined based on the Group’s performance for the year. AL R IBBEREEFRN
ZRBEFE °
()  Mr. Ng Simon was appointed as the independent non-executive (b) MR EEEZTAEARRE
directors of the Company with effect from 12 May 2023. VHEBTESF BT -=F

BRA+TZHEEK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS ~ 12. % * FETHRAERESHE

(Continueq)

(a) Directors and the chief executive (Continued)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group during the year.
Mr. Wen is also the chief executive of the Company and
the Group, and his emoluments disclosed above included
those for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director of the
Company or the chief executive of the Group waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during both years.

(b) Employees
The five highest paid employees of the Group included 2
directors (2024 2 directors) of the Company during the
year, whose emoluments are included in the disclosure
above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the
remaining 3 (2024: 3) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are

(%)

(a)

(b)

EEREFETBRARE)
EXRTRHMITESHNIE o5
HERFERATEARARB RAKE
SHEREM R M - BT
EMBARBNAEBEN TR
TTHAER  MER EXHEDN
e s REERERITRAER
PrER A BRTS o

£ XFTRE IR E F A B
EOREERRNAREEREMHR
B AR T S A e

BRI RVACSCIRAN/N
RAESHAAEREEETERITHRAR
MELRERETMNE N T
BE -

EE

FA-AEBENRERS H
BEBEARAMBER(ZF
“FMERESR)  HMEH
REXHBEER - BRI =5R(=
T_F  ZR)FARARESR
FEBITBRABN & H MR

as follows: BT :
|
2025 2024
i T —E-MmE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHBT
Salaries and other allowances e M EAEEL 4,609 5,432
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR ATE FIzT 24t 5% 80 75
4,689 5,507
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS ~ 12. % * FETHRAERESHE

(Continued) (%)

(b) Employees (Continued) ) EEE)
The emoluments of these employees were within the ZEREENMENTUATE
following bands: :

Number of employees

EEHE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&

1,500,000 %8 7T 1 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /&7L2

2,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001t

2,500,000 7T = 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FA - AEBTWEMARRE
to the directors of the Company or the chief executive of ERXAEEETETHABRA
the Group or the five highest paid individuals of the Group SERAE&E AL B
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as SERRSIBEEMAREE K
compensation for loss of office. IR &2 (B 05 /Y 3 B ok VE A

BifE o
13. DIVIDENDS 13. B8

2025 2024
—E-RE —E-ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of ~ FRER A DK ARG LB

the Company recognised as IRARERAR B, :
distribution during the year:
2024 Final - HK1.0 cent “E-FER—1.08(
(2023 Final: HK1.8 cents) (ZEZ=FRH : 1.8%81M) 10,000 18,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

13. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2025 of HK1.0 cent
(2024: HK$1.0 cent) per ordinary share, in an aggregate
amount of HK$10,000,000 (2024: HK$10,000,000), has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13. RE(#)

14.

RBEHRE ARARIESDRE
REBEE-_T-_RF=-A=+—A8L
FERNABBRESR LT A0
B ZZEZmF - 1.0810L) - &
#£10,000,000 7% jo(= & = /0 4 :
10,000,000 7T ) + I 78 £F B B/ 7
FEIERE R A S EHLAER - HEEE -

BRAEF
ARBVEEARBIEEREREFNT)
RIBA TN BURRT S -

2025 2024
—E-EHF —E-E

Earnings: AR
Profit for the year attributable to owners A BEEREARBNME
of the Company for purpose of basic KAFRHBEANEEFEE
earnings per share (HK$’000) wm A (FHETT) 19,807 31,584
Number of shares: RMmHEE -
Weighted average number of ordinary M BEEREARBNME
shares for the purpose of basic TR N 8
earnings per share (in thousand) (Fi%) 1,000,000 1,000,000

No diluted earnings per share is presented for both years as
there was no potential ordinary share in issue.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited JEF/§ =& B2k AR AR

O B TR A - MO
SAREFE 25 SREERT) -



15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

15. Y% MERRME

Machinery Furniture
Leasehold and and Motor
Vessels improvement  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
i HEXE  HERRG  HERXE AE h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE AR TR TER  TER  TAR
COST A
At 1 April 2023 RZE-Z%#NA-R 149,372 1,228 3,070 1,208 5,500 160,378
Additions AE - 2,748 - - - 2,748
Acquired on acquisttion of WENBARREA
subsidfaries (Note 20) (FitzE20) - 3 9,695 8 98 10,745
Disposals & - - - - (146) (146)
At 31 March 2024 \—E-ME=A=1-H 149,372 4015 12,765 1,291 6,282 173,725
Aditions AE 4,380 107 37 - 40 4,564
At 31 March 2025 RZBZRF=A=t1-H 153,752 4122 12,802 1,291 6,322 178,289
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 April 2023 e R 28240 1,221 1,997 1,02 2,946 35,435
Provided for the year EREE 7510 47 2628 72 1,004 11,691
Eliminated on disposals hERHE - - - - (108) (108)
At 31 March 2024 \—E-ME=A=1-H 35,810 1,044 4,625 1,097 3,842 47,018
Provided for the year EmiE 7,700 881 2,633 66 805 12,085
At 31 March 2025 RZBZRF=A=t-H 43510 2525 7,258 1,163 4,647 59,103
CARRYING VALUES KafE
At 31 March 2025 R-EZREZA=1-A 110,242 1,597 5,544 128 1,675 119,186
At 31 March 2024 RZE-mF=R=1-H 113,562 2,371 8,140 194 2,440 126,707
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i‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025

"HE-

ZoRF=ZR=t—HLHFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, taking into account their estimated residual
values, on a straight-line basis and at the following rates per

16.

15. Y% - MENRKMBEE)

EatmE - BE R

RIBEB KL

BHS 0GR EERBERE
52T 5 G R R I

annum:
Vessels 5% b 5%
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the term of MERE REEFH(E
lease, or 20% ERGHR) -
%1% 20%
Machinery and equipment ~ 20% MW R EE 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% EREEE  20%
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. ERHESE
Leased Motor
properties Carpark vehicles Total
HEWE ZE5 RE #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
At 31 March 2024 iU
=A=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 6,481 38 4,999 11,518
At 31 March 2025 R-ZE_RHEF
—A=1+—H
Carrying amount IRTEE 4,722 — 3,665 8,387
For the year ended (EZFNF=H
31 March 2024 =t+—HLFE
Depreciation charge & E A 3,420 37 1,967 5,424
For the year ended (2T -_HF=A
31 March 2025 =t+—HLFE
Depreciation charge ~ TEE A 3,458 38 2,158 5,654
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. RIGHT-0F-USE ASSETS (Continued)

17.

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

16. EAEEE®)

2025 2024

—E-REF —E-mE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Expenses relating to short-term leases  E25E BT E A M X 63 344
Total cash outflow for leases HERemLAE 5,968 5,653
Additions to right-of-use assets ANEFREEE 2,507 6,791
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B R B A A — 6,154

The above items of right-of-use assets depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the following period:

Leased properties 1-5years
Carpark 1-2years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years

For both years, the Group leases various leased properties,
carpark and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of one to five years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

PlfEREEERBIREREELE
R THIERRIH R

HEME 1E5%F
FEG 1E2%F
B AE55F

RMEFE ARESEEZHE
ZEREYE  FHEHRIE-H
EANA/—ERhFEEHES - HE
R T A B TR - B 5
ERARHERR AR -

17. REtEQTNES

2025
—_E_RE
HK$’000
FHET

2024
—EC-OF

HK$’000
THET

Unlisted investments: ELMIRE -
Cost of investments & & KA 1,710 1,710
Share of post-acquisition profits, DR WEE 1 T
net of dividends received (MBREWRE) 1,617 1,724
Group’s share of net REBE D (REEE QA
assets of associates FEEFE 3,327 3,434
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z_RF=FA=+—HIFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continuea) 17.

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

REE QTR (2)
RBEHR  ARBEEHERFN
FHEWT

Place of Proportion of ownership
establishment/ interest and voting rights
Name of entities operation held by the Group Principal activities

AEEFREENELEES
BERAE FR 3L b B R RRELL A EFEEK

Scenic Shipping Company Hong Kong N/A 20% Inactive

Limited (“Scenic Shipping”) (Note (i)
A AR AR 0 EA EREY 37

([EABME D) (PR (i)
Eastlink Marine Hong Kong 40.0% 40.0% Provision of vessel chartering

and related services

RinEE i RAEMAEE RAEERS
Note: 5T

(i) Scenic Shipping was deregistered in April 2024.

Summarised financial information of the associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

192 Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited & F1i5% £ B AR AT

() BABMBER_T_OFHAFEHEER -

GEQTANMBEERSE
AEENBEARNYHERME
NI TX%&?'JH’JEM‘“%%HE%
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11.

18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Summarised financial information of the associate (Continued)
Eastlink Marine

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RF=A=+—HIFE

17. REFEDQTRIRERS (&)

BEADNHBENBE ()
FHEE

2025 2024

—E-REF —E-MF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Revenue WA 343 860
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive  F & (E518 )@ Fll &

(expense) income for the year 2H(AX)We=BE (267) 694

Dividends received from F U R & A )
the associate during the year = 840

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in Eastlink Marine
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

A B AR B N AR A B SR
%ﬁ&;:ﬂ‘]%ﬁmi% % o B E E A #

2025 2024

—EEHF —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Net assets of Eastlink Marine R ENEEFE 8,318 8,585
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBREMEER

interest in Eastlink Marine W RERE = L 1D 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEEREMEED

interest in Eastlink Marine EmRmE 3,327 3,434

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET
The Group own a club membership amounted to
HK$3,100,000 (2024: HK$3,100,000).

18. HiWIERBIEE
AEBHE — Eﬁﬁmmmo
BITHELTSE( T _IF
3,100,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

19. GOODWILL 19. BE
HK’000
THExT
COST X X
At 1 April 2023 R-ZEBE-_=FMAH—H —
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary e E B AR 25,400
At 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025 R-ZE-WF=A=+—H
F—E-—RF=A=+—H 25,400
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 R-ZE-_=FWMH—H
F—ZE-NE=A=+—H —
Impairment loss recognised in the year RERNERHREERER 8,414
At 31 March 2025 RZE_RAF=A=+—H 8,414
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 March 2025 R-ZE-_RF=-A=+—H 16,986
At 31 March 2024 RZEZWNF=A=+—H 25,400

The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and in the
financial year in which the acquisition takes place.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value in use calculation. The key inputs for the value
in use calculation included budgeted sales, gross profit
margin, growth rates, discount rate applied to the valuation.
Management estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate of
15.6% (2024: 15.8%) that reflect current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the CGU.
The Group prepares cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budget approved by the management for the
next five years. The cashflows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3.0%. Based on the result
of the assessment, the management determined that the
recoverable amount of the CGU was lower than the carrying
amount, impairment loss recognised on goodwill amount of
HK$8,414,000 (2024: nil) is identified for the year ended 31
March 2025.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited EF/8 &£ BB AR A

AEEFFRNETEEZ M BF
EETEEREH

WEEFEN 2 AIRESFTIERE
)ﬂ{ﬁfﬁzu HRERETE - HHEBES

BEFRFrZR ABBeEnEMmER
ZHEHHEER  EME  BREXINU
KEEBRE - EIREFNA15.6% (=F
ZVH4F £ 15.8%) Z BRI R (R E
AT EEEREEENRREESE
BRI E AR 2 5T ) AETRE IR E o
REBEREEEERARKAFIAE
Zﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬁf’ggzﬁgfﬁi/mifﬁ
//\J ﬁE'EHHJ//(J:/ZEEiUIL%RFHSO%
ZIBREETHR - BN LA
EEEETReELSEN AW ES
HENREE  BE-_T_1F=H
ST —RIEFEERAHEERN
B 1B &5 18.8,414,00078 (= F = IY
Fom) o



20. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 13 January 2023, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire additional 34% of equity
interest from two shareholders of YLTK (the “Vendors”) at
a total consideration of HK$23,800,000 (the “Acquisition”).
The Group is required to pay to the Vendors a total amount
of HK$11,900,000 in cash up to the completion date and
the remaining balance of HK$11,900,000 was settled by
promissory note. The promissory note had an interest of
5% per annum with a maturity date of 12 months from the
completion date. During the year ended 31 March 2025, the
promissory note payable of HK$12,497,000 was fully settled.

According to the sales and purchase agreement, each of the
Vendors severally guarantees that the aggregate audited net
profits attributable to the owners of YLTK for the financial years
ending 31 March 2024, 2025, and 2026 shall not be less than
HK$70,000,000. In the event of shortfall, each of the Vendors
severally undertakes to pay 17% of each shortfall within 30
days after the issuance of the audited financial statements for
the financial year ending 2026.

Prior to the Acquisition, the Group holds 17% equity interests
in YLTK and was classified as an associate of the Group at
31 March 2023. On 2 May 2023 (the “Date of acquisition”),
the Acquisition was completed and the Group holds 51%
equity interest in YLTK and YLTK has become a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. The Group has
elected to measure the non-controlling interest in YLTK at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of YLTK's
identifiable net assets. The consolidated financial statements
include the results of YLTK and its subsidiary (“YLTK Group”)
since the acquisition date.

20.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

EBRESH

R—ZE-_=ZF—HA+=H' X
EEITVEEHE UWRKE
23,800,000 7 7T 45 & B FI A 52 'R
BB ([E )N 34% M B i ([ Uk
BEE|) EEEKBAH A5E
ARE 7 X IR & #%8 11,900,000
7 70 0 T & %811,900,0007% 7T #%
NEAHRZEEE - A EHRNER
L hE5% FHHAATKBHED
EAARN - BE-_ZT_AFE=A
=+—HIEFE 12,497,000 T
MENAR BB 2HES -

BIEEEHZE  SEADREHR
EENF - ZFERFRF
—REZAZT+—BLUBFER
BRBAMARCHEAE ANKEEZFEF
A 5 MER 70,000,000 7T © i
HEHBRER FEADREBRE
ET_RFIEMBEELEZN
EREREM B I0ORAL [ FIEE R
H17% °

RREEER - RZT=-_=F=A8
=+—8  AEERBRNRZHE
1T7%REL D ERAEERZE D
Al RZFEZ=FHRA-RA(KE
BHE))  WESEZTK  AEER
TFREC A 51% IHE - BEAA
REKBARAFFE2EWNBAA -
WHEEBEEFERAKREEAR K&
BB R EBRIETERE B EAR
RAHENEEFELEFEN BT
NEEHIEIER R o SR e TR
BREBAAG REK BB EF
WREE]) B E AR RS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

EE

—ECRFZA=+-HIEFE

20. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

As at the date of acquisition, the fair value of contingent
consideration is HK$2,297,000, which is presented as financial
asset at FVTPL in the consolidated statement of financial
position. For the year ended 31 March 2025, fair value gain of
HK$9,983,000 (2024: HK$331,000) is recognised in the profit
or loss.

The fair value of contingent consideration is measured
based on the scenario-based analysis. The key inputs and
assumptions applied relate to the estimation of expected net
profits in 2024-2026 discount rate applied to the valuation. The
valuation is conducted by the valuer engaged by the Company
and the chief financial officer of the Group works closely with
the valuer to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs. Such estimation was based on
the management’s expectations on market development,
and probability-weighted according to an assessment of the
likelihood of each scenario.

The Group has been actively seeking new business
opportunities from time to time in order to diversify and expand
its business while focusing on the continuous development
of maritime related services and construction business. The
Company’s development plan of its existing maritime services
business includes establishing strong partnerships with other
companies in the maritime-related services and construction
industry to strengthen the Company business’s position in the
market and conducting regular performance reviews to identify
opportunities and areas for improvement.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited BF/EE £ EERAR A

20. ¥Ebt#E)

RKBEBEES AARERFE
2,297,000 BTN ER G BT IS AR AR A
2 ABEAFEFABENEHE
E o &§_2_£¢:H:+—E
IEFE - A F{E U 9,983,000

rc<f7 Z P4 2 331,000 ) 2
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SARERFHELRBEBER DA
E-EATEHABELKREE
fMEMEAz_T_NFE_F
TORFEHFEANERR R 2 A5
B o HESRARRRE ZEER
1T B 5 [ B 745 4 B B A (B B 2
eI RBEBEEHET X
KRB ABIE - G DEREE
BoHmSER 2 AHUALERER
R A REME R R ETTRE R H0HE -

AREE—BETREGRS I B
B UZTERBEREER - [E
HEEIRNBEEEREMEEEKH
FERR ARFBEANEBEREE
B %R E 81 RS EEERS
MREZEZFNEMARELADNE
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20. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continuea)

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

20. &b &)

HK’000
FExT
Plant and equipment 5 K 10,745
Right-of-use assets EHAREE 6,154
Deferred tax assets BEHIBEE 1,346
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUGRIA « e RTER IR 19,679
Amounts due from a related company JE U — eI B B &) 3008 7,969
Loan to a non-controlling interest shareholder m— A IEERR R BHRERK 3,070
Contract assets BHEE 39,893
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEY 6,764
Trade and other payables B 5 N E A e IR (44,567)
Amount due to a related company FET—FREI B A =) 5k I8 (65)
Amount due to non-controlling interest JE A — BT 8 A R SE1E AR AR SR K18
shareholder of a subsidiary (30,541)
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e —E R RHI B A R KB (3,618)
Tax payables FET R IE (4,811)
Lease liabilities HEaE (5,761)
Bank borrowings RITHER (9,522)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value BRAFEFEZAIBNFRERRE (3,265)
Non-controlling interests FEERRHE = 1,600
Fair value of previously held 17% ARG AT B H17% IRER
equity interests of YLTK (Note) NFEKTEE) (11,900)
Financial asset at FVTPL BEAVEFABSHNESREE 2,297
Intangible asset mEAE 11,321
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAR B (1,868)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 19) I E AR EE(HFE19) 25,400
Total consideration BB 23,585
Note:  On the date of acquisition, the Directors have assessed that fair Bit: RWREBH EECTHBARG

value of the 17% equity interests in YLTK to be measured at its
proportionate share in the fair value of the consideration, resulting in
gain on deemed disposal of HK$11,900,000 for the year ended 31

March 2024.

17% MM ATE - SURERREA
TEMLGIHESE  BE-T-m
FZAZ+—ALFEEERELE

1755 11,900,000 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

20. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

20. ¥Ebt#E)

HK’000
FET
Analysis of cash flows on the Acquisition: WEFREL B2 oW -
Cash acquired with the subsidiaries FANENBARIREMNIRE
during the year (6,764)
Cash paid during the year FASNRE 5,950
Net cash inflow on the Acquisition FRRBESHEEEA 2B RAFE
during the year (814)
Deposit for acquisition of additional equity SR TR EE — R A A
interests in an associate previously paid BINRIENIZ S 5,950
Promissory note payable issued (Note 26) BEITREMN AR ZiR(HiE26) 11,685
Total net cash outflow on the Acquisition W EIHEL 2 BIRS ML FE 16,821
Transaction cost of the Acquisition included in =~ 5t AKEEHFIBR S RER
cash flows from operating activities W B IR H AR 947
17,768

Goodwill of HK$25,400,000 and intangible asset of
HK$11,321,000, deferred tax of HK$1,868,000 were
recognised on the acquisition of YLTK at the date of
acquisition.

The intangible asset represents customer relationship which
are amortised over the remaining contract periods. For the
year ended 31 March 2025, amount of HK$2,830,000 (2024:
HK$2,830,000) is recognised in the profit or loss.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited B8 =& &R AR A A

RUWERAHRKE B AT EER
7 225,400,000 T & ® &
11,321,000 st & & % 1A
1,868,000 7 7T,

BREERCRFISE H I # i
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

21. ESREMEBIRE

2025 2024
—E-RE —ENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHBT
Trade receivables g 5 e IE 77,580 62,847
Less: Allowance of credit loss B EEBERE (2,243) (1,501)
75,337 61,346
Other receivables H b B W GRIR
- Prepayments —JE IR 6,440 7,684
— Deposits — e 1,441 1,579
— Rental deposits —HE%e 1,187 1,090
— Others —EAft 351 138
Sub-total NEF 84,756 71,837
Less: Rental deposits shown under B RIFRBEER IR
non-current asset HEZS (459) (457)
Amounts shown under current assets R ENEEIE Ny RE S5 84,297 71,380

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 90 days (2024: 30 to
90 days) to its trade customers.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customers. Credit limits attributed to customers and credit
term granted to customers are reviewed regularly.

At 1 April 2023, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$45,287,000.

At 31 March 2025, included in the Group’s trade receivables
is related companies with carrying amount of HK$6,467,000
(2024: HK$6,898,000) due from Pyromagic Multi-media
Production Limited, Kwong Sang Engineering Company
Limited and B. C. Construction Limited which have common
directors with the subsidiaries of the Company.

REBRFEESEFPNEEHN
F30FEIOA(ZZE — M FE:30F
90K) °

REWTAFRESH  FEEET
EEERENEEERRETES
MEEE - FEBRNESTRE
WIEEERET RIS -

RZE_=FINAH—H  kKEF
ABHME S EWFIE A 45,287,000
HBIT °

RZE_RAF=A=+—HB ' &
SEMNEZRERRNEREREE
76,467,000 (= T = 4 F :
6,898,000 % JT ) #) & Y 4 Bt & )
EZHBERIEERAA - BAEMKS
% A BR A Al & B.C. Construction
Limited (B2 A R BRI B A 7] B X[
BEE)ZHIE -
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\ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuea)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

21.

ESRHEMEWRIEE)
RREBABRIBRZAH2IHE
SREWRBEBHNREEBSBEE)D
BRECDITIAT -

2025 2024

i T —EMEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEx

Within 30 days B0 RLAR 33,146 32,044
31 to 60 days 31E60K 9,121 10,068
61 to 90 days 61ZE 90K 8,436 5,446
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 7,745 5,039
Over 120 days FBiE 120Kk 16,889 8,749
75,337 61,346

As at 31 March 2025, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$43,051,000 (2024: HK$36,121,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$16,889,000 (2024: HK$8,749,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
based on good repayment records for these customers and
continuous business with the Group. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECL for trade receivables. Trade receivables are assessed
individually for significant trade debtors and collectively for
remaining trade debtors for impairment allowance based on
the historical credit losses experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and the forward-looking information
at the end of each reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 34.

200 Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited EF /&= £ EER AR A A

RZEZRF=ZRA=+—0" K&
EnESEERBLEHKEEERR
4 {8 /43,051,000 T(ZZT =Y
# :36,121,0007% 7T ) &) fE W AR
FoRBEBHE B - BEHE
# > 16,889,000 L(—ZZF — 1
% : 8,749,000 7T ) £ 8 B 90 K 5k
NE - EERBEEFHRTEN
R REREEBEETESMT
CTWRABEN - AEEVENEH
EREETREER -

AEERABLTERE S RBER
HiHERRMEEEE - BHREK
AREBEEEEIRERBER
4% B2 K M SRR 1 B B T A B %
RN EUGRIEERFIRHE - LIRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. CONTRACT ASSETS

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

AHNEE

2025 2024
i T —E-MmEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx
Analysed as current: IR :
Unbilled revenue of marine BERESHNRAR NS
construction contracts (note a) (Fizxa) 51,047 46,128
Retention receivables (note b) FEWIRES (H5EDb) 7,851 6,270
Less: Allowance of credit loss B EEBERE (312) (206)
7,539 6,064
58,586 52,192
As at 1 April 2023, there are no contracts assets. RIEBE-_=FWNA—H  BEMLM
BHEE -

(@ Unbilled revenue primarily relates to the Group’s right (a) ARAZEWETZHAEERRE
to consideration for work completed but not yet billed. TELEAAEIZKRREDN
Contract asserts arise when the Group has right to ENEHE - AEBEREEBS
consideration for the work completed under relevant HERKBREZIIERER
contracts and their right is conditioned on factors 2R A HUR A B 8 O 3 DA MY
other than passage of time. The contract asserts are HhEER  aNEEESE -
transferred to trade receivable upon the Group obtains AEERGEFPHETIES
the certification of the completed marine construction BETENRER  aNEE
work from the customers. EREE S EIKNGIE -

() Retention receivables primarily relate to the Group’s b) FURREETZHAEERE

right to consideration for work performed and not yet
billed. Retention receivables are transferred to the trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional, Typical
due dates of the retention receivables is normally one year
upon completion. For retention receivables in respect of
marine construction contracts, the due dates are usually
one to two years after the completion of the marine
construction work. Included in the Group’s retention is a
related company with carrying amount of HK$1,004,000
(2024: HK$1,081,000) due from B. C. Contractors Limited
which has common director with the subsidiary of the
Company.

TIEAMENTREKRERAE
MENBERE EZSEINKA
ERGE BRARBeERE
BEH5EWFE - REEMIES
A REARKE—F-F
BAEEEREAVNELRRES
MEHEHBERBEERETRE
I —Z2MEF - AEBERE
© B 1E R E (B & 1,004,000 %
JTT(ZZF Y4 : 1,081,000/%8
T ) B FE UK BE B N B 4 B RR
PR A A (BN R B A Rl A £
REE)ZKIE -
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\ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE I IR MG
For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE
22. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 22. BHEE#E)
The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets AEBEBZEGNEEDEAMRE
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal BE RAARASEEFENELE
operating cycle which is within 12 months after the end of the B EER(RERBREREI12E
reporting date. AR BZEEERE -
Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note 34. BEFEFEBEETRKIESS -
23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. BEEFIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement MEEaMBRAKEIME - & T
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities BEEMBEERBELEEE - XA
have been off-set. The following is the analysis of the deferred TARMB®RE M ELERIALLH
tax balances for financial reporting purpose: DT
2025 2024
—E-EREF —E-_ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT
Deferred tax assets EIERIAE B 1,129 1,320
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE (14,436) (15,413)
(13,307) (14,003)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) NTRAEEEHRNEEZETR
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the BHREEE)RERAFERAR
current and prior years are as follows: FERNNES :
Accelerated
tax Tax ECL Intangible
depreciation losses provision asset Total
BHGEE
IERBIEFTE BIEEE BERE BIEE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FTExT FERT FTExT FTERT
At 1 April 2023 R-E-=fmA—A 13,779 (888) - — 12,891
Avrise from acquisition of REWEHE QA
subsidiaries 1,948 (3,192) (102) 1,868 522
Charge (credit) for the year FRHER(ER) (FTE10)
(Note 10) 476 682 (11) (467) 680
At 31 March 2024 and RZTZWFE=A=+—H
1 April 2024 E-E-mEMA—A 16,203 (3,398) (113) 1,401 14,003
Credit (charge) for the year FRERR) (HEE10)
(Note 10) (805) 620 (134) (467) (786)
At 31 March 2025 RZE-ZAF=R=+—H 15,398 (2,778) (247) 934 13,307
202 Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited JEF/§ =& B2k AR AR



23.

24,

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continuea)

At 31 March 2025, the Group has unused tax loss of
HK$45,176,000 (2024: HK$34,437,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$16,836,000 (2024:
HK$20,594,000) of such losses. The loss may be carried
forward indefinitely.

TIME DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits
for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short term cash
commitments, which carry interest at prevailing market
banking deposit rates range from 0.25% to 0.375% (2024:
0.75% to 0.875%).

Time deposits carried interest at fixed-rate which ranges from
2.40% to 3.91% (2024: 2.50% to 4.54%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 34.

23.

24,

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

IEAERIE (7)
R-ZE-_RAF=ZA=+—8 " &&
% B K B) B B 1H E5 18 45,176,000
7B L(Z & Z Y F : 34,437,000
TR AREER K EF - AEBEE
W& #8518 16,836,000 L (—Z =
— P94 : 20,594,0007% 7T ) FERIE
ERIBEE o A BB AR B
Al 458 o

EHER HERALEEY
BeMBeESBYRETHER
ENABRTAEEMNEHINES
A BRI MBIRITERF RS
B RENF0.25% £ 0.375% (=
T PO : 0.75% E0.875%) ©

FEBTERIZEEFENENT2.40%
E3091% (= F — 4 F : 250%F
4.54%)FT 8. °

ERHA R IR RN E 34
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)‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i e E e

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z_RF=FA=+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BESREMEMNRE

2025 2024

—EC-RE —E_-MF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade payables B 5 BN RIA 37,464 35,882
Accrued expenses EETF X 16,338 19,156
Deposits received and others Bz e R EAM 539 1,064
Total trade and other payables B 5 RHEMENRIBER 54,341 56,102

The credit period of trade payables is from 30 to 60 days from
the invoice date.

At 31 March 2025, included in the Group’s trade payables is
a related company with carrying amount of HK$300,000 due
to B.C. Contractors Limited (2024: HK$1,129,000 due to TD
YACHTS) which has common director with a subsidiary of the
Company.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on
the invoice date at the end of each reporting period.

BOSRNRENEERLRBEEER
HA#EET30E 60K

RZE-_RAF=ZA=Z+—H ' &
SEESRENARERERTER
300,000 % 7T #) F& 1 B8 B & A &%
BERAERAGAN(ZZFE-_MEF:
1,129,000 7T & FE 1 B B 2 &1 TD
YACHTS) (B2 AR a8 A~ 7l A #
REE)2HKIE -

REREHR  REZZAHZ7
HE RN FIANARE DT o

2025 2024

—E-RE —E-NE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within 30 days 30 KAR 12,830 13,643
31 to 60 days 31 £60X 9,329 12,404
61 to 90 days 61 290K 4,767 1,717
91 to 120 days 91 E 120K 840 197
Over 120 days BB 120K 9,698 7,921
37,464 35,882
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26. PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLE

27.

On 2 May 2023, the Company issued a promissory not
with the principal amount of HK$11,900,000 as part of
the considerations for the Acquisition (Note 20). Under the
agreement of the Acquisition relating to the promissory note,
the promissory note was unsecured, carried interest at 5.0%
pe annum and was payable on the maturity date of 1 May
2024.

At 31 March 2024, the promissory note with the fair value of
amount of HK$12,422,000 remained outstanding and the
effective interest rate in respect of the promissory note was
4.39% per annum.

The promissory note payable of HK$12,497,000 was fully
settled during the current year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO AN ASSOCIATE/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At 31 March 2025, the amount of HK$7,000 (2024:
HK$10,000) due from Eastlink Marine which are trade nature
with an ageing within 30 days, unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable according to the credit term.

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

26. EAERKEER

27.

RZE-ZZ=ZFRA=-H " ARAIE#
1744 /11,900,000 7% TR & 3 2=
B ERWEEIEREN —3 o (K
F120)  IRIEA A H ZHEAOWE
%Em%%*%i%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ
FRERAE50% WAR_ZT_NFAH
—HEEE A -

RZZFEZWF=ZA=+—0 ' 2F
B4 12,422,000 7 7T 8 & 5 4K 18
KEE BAREBENERAEA
HF4.39% °

12,497,000 T 2 JEN A K EEE
RARFERELES -

B EABELT MBLQ
BIFEIERR IR R FKIE
R-ZZE-_RAF=A=+—HEKE
A EAS7008T(ZE N
% : 10,0008 TT ) RIERBE 51t
E BRERTESOR N - AEER - &
MEREEBRER -

FET B A R BEIE IR IR R IR B

FEHHE BmER 2ENAR
ToREE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z_RF=FA=+—HIFE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. SRITREAMhERR

2025 2024
—E-RE —EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

At amortised cost: REESEAA -
Bank loans RITER 7,186 7,973
Other loans H A E R 199 522
7,385 8,495
Analysed as: DR
Secured BHER 199 522
Unsecured R 7,186 7,973
7,385 8,495
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are analysed P EREEEEREGNERAE
based on contractual repayment date as follows: BOITEAT

Bank loans Other loans

BITER Hth &%
2025 2024 2025 2024
etk T [(NF ekl T _[F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T T TET

The carrying amounts of borrowings ~ HB R ER(EBE (FHK
that contain a repayment on demand ~ (AHEBHEE THIR)
clause (shown under current liabilities) ~ {BZ8H A T~ EAFE. 1A

but repayable: BEMERNERE :
Within one year —FR 800 788 199 323
Within a period of more than one year B —F/E 1B 830 800 - 199
but not exceeding two years ME 2 BEA
Within a period of more than two years  RiBMF BT BB 3,637 3,507 - -
but not exceeding five years TF 7 EER
Within a period of more than five years & T4 2 HAR 1,919 2,878 - -
7,186 7,973 199 522
Less: Amounts due on repayable B ORBEETIR (7,186) (7,973) (199) (329)
demand clause shown REREEOHE
under current liabilities
Amounts shown under ERBEE TR - — - 199

non-current liabilities FE]
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28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continuea)

As at 31 March 2025, the bank and other borrowings are
arranged at floating rates with an effective interest rate of
3.39% (2024: 3.40%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s borrowings with
outstanding principal amount of HK$199,000 (2024
HK$522,000) were secured by the pledges of motor vehicles
of a subsidiary of the Company.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amount of the bank borrowings approximate their fair values.

28.

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RF=A=+—HIFE

TREMBERE)
:E_EE A=+—8 " #17
&ﬁfm{ﬁ*hia/¥§bflJ+z+§ B
BRAFF R A3.8390% (ZF IO 4F :
3.40%) °

AZZE_RF=A=+—H K&
B & (838 A £199,0008 T (= &
_m¢ 522,000 7T ) 2 f& sRIA AR
NA—RHMB AR Z /AEEHER
ﬁo

ZIN/N T%%;m?%fﬁfﬂ 2 BREE
BEENFERE

LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEAE
|
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHBT
Within one year —FR 4,943 5,256
Within a period of more than one year i@ —F{ETHE
but not more than two years M F 2 BAfE A 3,764 6,504
8,707 11,760
Less: Amount due for settlement within = & : BB & FNHT/R 1218 A
12 months shown under WNEI B E B FIE
current liabilities (4,943) (5,256)
Amount due for settlement after EmBE ﬁ—l—ﬁﬁﬂ_’\ 12 @ A&
12 months shown under FIEEE K
non-current liabilities 3,764 6,504

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate on the
Group’s lease liabilities was 4.64% during the year ended 31
March 2025 (2024: 3.40%).

HE T _-_AF=A=+—HItHF
E'$%@2ﬁﬁEEWM%¥H
CEERFEEBL464%(ZF M
F 0 3.40%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

"HE-

30.

31.

ZoRF=ZR=t—HLHFE

SHARE CAPITAL

30. IRA

Ordinary shares of BF80.01787T

HK$0.01 each A 5 A
Authorised EE
At 1 April 2023, R-TE-=#mA—8 -

31 March 2024 and :‘E_EEZH:‘F—E&

Number of

shares

R EE

Shown as
2]
HK$°000
TET

31 March 2025 —E-RF=A=+—H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 N/A T~ B
Issued and fully paid E2RTREZE
At 1 April 2023, RZE-_=FPPA—H

31 March 2024 and :’E_EE—H—‘{’—E&

31 March 2025 —_E-_RF=A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000,000 10,000
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 31. BKEFIGFE

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except
for voluntary contribution, no forfeited contribution under the
MPF Scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme of HK$3,278,000 (2024: HK$2,930,000)
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represent contributions paid
or payable to the MPF Scheme by the Group. No forfeited
contribution under the defined contribution retirement benefit
plans is available to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited JEF/§ =& B2k AR AR
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (Continueq)

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the
Group has the obligation to pay Long Service Payment (‘LSP”)
to qualifying employees in Hong Kong upon retirement,
subject to a minimum of 5 years employment period.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the
Group’s mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any
positive/negative returns thereof (collectively, the “Eligible
Offset Amount”), for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable to
an employee (the “Offsetting Arrangement).

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June 2022,
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP.
The Abolition will officially take effect on the Transition Date
(i.e., 1 May 2025). Separately, the Government of the HKSAR
is also expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to assist
employers for a period of 25 years after the Transition Date
on the LSP payable by employers up to a certain amount per
employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s mandatory
MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative returns,
after the Transition Date can continue to be applied to offset
the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but are not eligible
to offset the post-Transition Date LSP obligation. On the
other hand, the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s
voluntary contributions made pre-, on or post-transition can
continue to be used to offset pre- and post-transition LSP.
Furthermore, the LSP obligation before the Transition Date will
be grandfathered and calculated based on the Last monthly
wages immediately preceding the Transition Date and the
years of service up to that date.

The Amendment Ordinance does not have significant impact
on the Group’s LSP liability with respect to employees that
participate in MPF Scheme.

31.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

RIKERIGHEI ()

REBEFSTE(RBIED ) N&EH
BEEHHETBREREBEERAKES
BREFNERARE (R MRS
&) ERFZEBRPATEIR
5% o

S - REBER — AN A FEBACR
B RS EED) - NEE A A
AAEERESHZME THE
FUEENE@MER " BEBREZ
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BXNORMRE S ([HEEZH]) -

BEIEIR T _—_FA+tH
HFE BUBTHERAEEEGI1ERTE
© A R RS R REABR
SRME o ZBUS RS RE B H (AP
“E-RAFRA—RB)ERAER - It
O BEENITHREBATEER
EAHEN _+TREFAKLE —EE
BhErEl LEBEEIN—T&8
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FE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32. FABAHE
In addition to the transactions, balances and commitments BRaEEBEmREMEMMERD
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, R B RAEN  KXEBE2E]
the Group had entered into the following related party AT RS -
transactions:

Name of related
companies Relationship Nature of transactions Year ended/As at 31 March

HE=A=t+-BLEE/
BHARER B REME R=A=+-8
2025 2024
—ECRE —E-E
HK$000 HK$’000
THET THER

Kee Marine Service &  Entity over which one of the key - Management fee income 360 360
Consultant Limited management personnel of
the Group has control
AEBFERBRLE AEEHEP-LIR EERERRA
EEABHZERAEE

Eastlink Marine Associate of the Company Revenue from vessel chartering 37 51
and related services

REE RRABERT AR & SR R AR TS 9 A
Vessels chartering costs 343 860
AR &R

Metro Key Investment  Entity over which Interest expense of lease 11 6

Limited Mr. Wen has control liabilities

EURERRLAT  RELEHZERBEIE HEBBHOFSRX
Repayment of lease liabilities 276 276
HEREEN

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited JEF/§ =& B2k AR AR



32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

32. BBt WEZ)

Name of related
companies

Relationship

L NG R &

Nature of transactions

XaME

Year ended/As at 31 March

BE=A=1+-HiLEE/
R=RA=+-H
2025

2024

Entity over which with common
director of the subsidiary

BfEARERRES ER

Pyromagic Multi-media
Production Limited

BESHBRIE
ARRT

Kwong Sang Engineering Entity over which with common

Company Limited director of the subsidiary
BERBMERAR HNBLARARAZEZ TR
TD YACHTS Entity over which with common

director of the subsidiary

BEfEAREHARES ER

B.C. Contractors
Limited
VBRZERAF

Entity over which with common
director of the subsidiary

SERRERARES ER

Maxwell Shipping
Limited
ERMBEARLT

Entity over which with common
director of the subsidiary

“E-HE —E-_ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT
Revenue from vessel chartering 2,892 5,410
and related services
W AHAE & R AR RS A W
Subcontracting costs - 120
DB
Revenue from provision of repair 260 710
and maintenance services
RIS R BRI
Management fee income 312 -
BRERA
Cost of repair and 661 1,039
maintenance services
H1E R R
Cost of leasehold improvement — 949
HEMERERK
Subcontracting costs 300 -
DA
Lease expense of car license 70 -
AEHBEERARZ
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued) 32. BAEESIREE (&)
Compensation of key management personnel FEEE A S
Key management includes directors and senior management. FTEEREBRRESFRAMER
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other c RANAEFRAEEFEER
members of key management of the Group was as follows: HMKEMNHFMMT
|
2025 2024
—E-RE —EWE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx
Short-term employee benefits HEHEERM 14,753 13,938
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 12 7 80 57
14,833 13,995
33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. EXEMER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associate
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

3. £@MTH

Categories of financial instruments (a) £ETAEHR
E—— ]
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT
Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost HEHAA 203,433 198,874
At FVTPL BRATERT AR 12,611 2,628
Financial liabilities SEas
Amortised cost BIHRR 88,349 87,169
At FVTPL BAFEFAES — 12,422

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental
deposits, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from/to an associate and non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries, time deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
certain trade and other payables and bank and other
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes of consolidated financial
statements. The risks associated with certain of these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(b)

SR E M EIEERREER
AEENTEeMTAGEM
Ere - BEHREAMERK
E RN EN SRR
Ko B8~ B IR PR AR AR R AR
EHMEX RehBeFE
W BETESREMENRIA
ARSRITREMER - ZF &
BITANFRERERGS M

WERMEEMTE - ZF2MIA
B3 T A8 B L B e 7 B R el Ok

L E R RO B R QWWTO
Eﬁaﬁ&ﬁﬂ EAESENH
BREBEENEHREERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Market risk

0]

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is expected to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate time deposits and lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances (see Note 24 for details). The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances. It is
the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate bank balances. The analysis is prepared
assuming that the amount of assets at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. 50 basis point increase or decrease represent
the management’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates of bank deposits.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on the Group’s post-tax profit
for each of the year ended 31 March 2025 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$368,000
(2024: HK$320,000).

Currency risk

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk
as all of the operations of the group entities are
denominated in HK$ which is also the functional
currency of the relevant group entities.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
these assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures over the customers to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has concentration of
credit risk as 36.6% (2024: 19.9%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer.
The Group’s concentration of credit risk on the top five
largest customers accounted for 83.1% (2024: 69.7%).
Management of the Group considered that the credit risk
of amounts due from these customers is insignificant after
considering their historical settlement record and credit
quality.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract assets.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

34, EMITAE)
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As at 31 March 2025, management assessed the
expected loss on trade receivables and contract assets
(which is measured at lifetime ECL) with gross carrying
amount of HK$62,621,000 and HK$53,647,000 (2024:
HK$42,825,000 and HK$47,257,000) individually for
significant trade and contract asset debtors, collectively
for remaining trade and contract asset debtors by
estimation based on historical credit loss experience, and
the forward-looking information at the reporting date.

In addition, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that there has no default occurred for trade
receivables past due 90 days and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable due to long term/on-going
relationship and good repayment record from these
customers. Accordingly, HK$993,000 and HK$145,000
(2024: recognised HK$7,000 and reversed HK$318,000)
loss allowances on ECL are recognised and reversed
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

(b)

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

34, EMITAE)

) £FEEREEBRRBEE)
= B m e R Bl 1E A ()
AR EE A BME B B R AR RS
B TR R -

Internal

credit rating

REBEEFR

Low risk

KRR

Watch list

B
vl
N

Doubtful

Loss

BB

Write-off

i

Description
it

The counterparty has a low risk
of default and does not have any
significant past-due amounts
HFEHBEEDRR - BXEKRE
BT

Debtor frequently repays after due
dates but usually settle in full

EHFACERIHPEREZEERT
AEEN

There have been significant
increases in credit risk since initial
recognition through information
developed internally or external
resources

A A EB P 1S & B AN B R Al
- B RS B R R KR
ill

There is evidence indicating the
asset is credit-impaired
BRBREECEEERE

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Company has no realistic
prospect of recovery

BRETEBAENBREVBRE
B MARRE AT YORIANPE
WA BB

Trade receivables

85 EWRKE

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-
impaired
REFHEHEE
BE-1EEER
B
Lifetime ECL —
not credit-
impaired
BEFHEHEE
EE-TEEE
A
Lifetime ECL —
not credit-
impaired

REFHEHEE
BE-1EEE
B

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

BEFHBEHEE
BiE—EERE

Amount is written off

IR M

Other
financial assets

HitSmEE

12m ECL

12EAFEHEE
18

12m ECL

12EAFEHEE
B8

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-
impaired

REFHEHEE
BE-1EEE
B

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

BREFHESHES
BiE—EERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

EEFHEREER
BE—-(EERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

i‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

34, EMIAE)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers. The
following table provides information about the exposure
to credit risk for trade receivables and contract assets
which are assessed on individual and collective basis
within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). The top five trade
and contract asset debtors of the Group with significant
outstanding balances with gross carrying amount of
HK$116,268,000 (2024: HK$90,082,000) are assessed

individually.

(b)

SREAKREEEERBKR(EZ)
EE R R HEE(E)
EAAEBEEERKBRERN—
o AEBAEEFERNA
HEEFR - TRIEHEBE
SERFERAGHNEERSEE
BERBAER - HEZGETH
EHEEBEBANZRERN RS
EEEFHAEEFERE) -
AEBABEAKREELEHE
BR ™ 42 & /5 116,268,000 7% T
(ZZ Z M 4 : 90,082,000 %
TIZERBGRENEERR
AR @RI VEFEE -

Gross carrying amount BRETAE(E
EEEE——— |
2025 2024
—E-EE —E-NE
Trade Trade
receivables receivables
and and
Average contract Average contract
Internal credit rating loss rate assets loss rate assets
25 E5
Fig  EWFEIE ¥y EWRIA
AR EE TR BELEE REVEE BRFEEINEF k-3
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Individual basis &l Bl B4
— Low risk — KRk 1.08% 67,051 0.38% 73,503
— Watch list —EERRE 2.27% 49,217 3.44% 16,579
116,268 90,082
Collective basis SRAE
— Low risk — KRk 2.30% 4,608 2.18% 9,097
— Watch list —EERAE 3.90% 15,602 4.12% 16,066
Sub-total /NeF 20,210 25,163
Total @t 136,478 115,245
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
recognised HK$884,000 and nil, reversed nil and
HK$142,000 (2024: recognised HK$6,000 and nil,
reversed HK$131,000 and HK$187,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables based on individual
assessment and collective assessment, respectively.
Also, the Group recognised HK$109,000 and nil.
reversed nil and HK$3,000 (2024: recognised HK$1,000
and nil) impairment allowance for contract assets based
on individual assessment and collective assessment,
respectively.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised (reversed) for trade receivables
and contract assets under the simplified approach.

SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RF=A=+—HIFE

34. ST AEE)

(b)

LREAKREEEERBKR(Z)
EE R R HEFE(E)
HE-_ZTZ-_HAF=ZA=+—8
IEFE - AEBERER L
REBTHI R ERE S EK
/TJ\IE/WTET‘%1%884 0007 T &
DRI BB 5 ENGRIER
ﬁﬁ%?&mum%mtq
—PO4F : B 6,000 T RE
# [21131,000 7% 7T & 187,000 7%
7o) o WA - AREBMERERIFE
HRERTHORIERENEE
BB A 109,000 TRE © &
SRR ENEERBERETR
3,000 L(—ZE _MF : R
1,000 8TEE) o

TRETRIEB(CTAERES
JE W

E&é%é?ﬁ?@%@)

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (not credit-

impaired) impaired)

Trade Contract

receivables assets

EEFHES BAETHELG

FEER FEEE

(YEREERE) (LEEERE)
B2 EWNE RNEE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T TR FAR
As at 1 April 2023 R-E-=FMA—H 1,399 - 1,399
Arise on acquisition of subsidiaries B AR mES 414 205 619
Impairment loss recognised ERRREESE 6 1 7
Impairment loss reversed BRERERE (318) - (318)
ma3WMWQW4mMAmmw4#:;:mﬁ_ﬂ‘+ A 1,501 206 1,707

ZEMEMA—H

Impairment loss recognised EﬁE RAEER 884 109 993
Impairment loss reversed ERERESE (142) (3) (145)
As at 31 March 2025 RZZ_RAF=A=1—H 2,243 312 2,555
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

In determining the ECL for other receivables, deposits
and rental deposits (which are measured at 12m
ECL) with gross carrying amount of HK$2,979,000
(2024: HK$2,807,000) in aggregate, the management
of the Group has taken into account the historical
default experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, for example, the Group has considered the
consistently low historical default rate in connection with
payments, and concluded that credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding other receivables and rental deposit
are insignificant with low risk.

Management of the Group considers time deposits
and bank balances (which is measured at 12m ECL)
with gross carrying amount of HK$125,110,000 (2024:
HK$134,711,000) that are deposited with the financial
institutions with high credit rating to be low credit risk
financial assets. The management of the Group considers
time deposits and cash and cash equivalents are short-
term in nature and the probability of default is negligible
on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers, and accordingly,
loss allowance was considered as insignificant with low
risk.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other than the concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with
gross carrying amounting to HK$125,110,000 (2024
HK$134,711,000) as at 31 March 2025 with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

Liguidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the management, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves and borrowing facilities
and continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to

pay.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

34. ST AEE)

EE R R HEFE(E)

BR—_ZE-_AF=A=+—H
Bk T 42 {8 & 125,110,000 7T
LQfmi 134,711,000
) BERRZEeEEFTRN
fETTEﬁ//m@Jféﬁ/E\-ﬁgﬁpm1¥
BRI BREERR S A
REZHFH  WAKEILE
FHEMEREFHEERRE -

HEE LR
NBESR ﬁEﬁTJEH%?IE
REAE  WOBMNEENR

PETERBREEER  UERE
AEEEH PHLREPES
MRBESTNHELK - NEERE
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i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P GABTEmEN

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. EMTHAE#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) h) £FEREEEERBEZ)
Liguidity risk (Continueq) TEBELEE(E)
Liquidity tables mEEEHF

Weighted
average  Ondemand 1 month Total
effective  or less than to 3 months 1-5 Over5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 3 months to 1 year years years  cash flows amount

i 3371 RERS 18R% 3EAZ B
ERAE  HMEA 38R 15 15E5% 5ENE RERBAR Rt
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR Tin T THR T

At 31 March 2025 RZZ-1%
ZA=+-A
Non-derivative financial FieeRmaRE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BAREMER
FB - 13,369 14,096 10,538 - = 38,003 38,003
Amounts due to non-controling ~~ FEATHBAE
shareholders of subsidiaries SERRBRE - 42,961 - - - - 42,961 42,961
Bank and other borrowings ROREBER 3.39 116 233 902 4,104 2,881 8,236 7,385
Lease liabilties HEEE 464 470 940 3,802 3,851 - 9,063 8,707
56,916 15,269 15,242 7,955 2,881 98,263 97,056
At 31 March 2024 i i3
ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial FiEemas
liabilities
Trade and other payables BHRAMER
B - 14,347 14,121 7,674 444 - 36,586 36,586
Amounts due tonon-controling ~ FERTHER R
shareholders of subsidiaries FERBRE - 42,088 - - - - 42,088 42,088
Bank and other borrowings FIREMER 340 119 237 1,067 4,498 3,936 9,857 8,495
Lease liabilties HEEE 340 505 1010 4,359 6,773 - 12,647 11,760
57,069 15,368 13,100 11,715 3,936 101,178 98,929
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

(c)
]

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
Financial asset measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values
of these financial asset is determined (in particular, the

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2025

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

34. M T H (&)

0 EMITANQXTEE

) BAEEMBEELLFHETEY
THEE
REREHR  AE@BL S
MTAUAFEFZ - TRIE
HZECHEEQATEEED
7 = (R R = Fr i A A (A E R i
R AEE) -

R-ZE_RF=A=1+—HH

AFEBR

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—& ER E=, et

Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

M & FET FET F& T F#& T
Financial asset SREE
Contingent HARE

consideration (a) - - 12,611 12,611

- - 12,611 12,611

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2024

RZE-_WNFE=A=+—HHK

RNTEEER
|

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—& -~ B=H st

Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Mt FHET THET FET FET
Financial asset ctMEE
Contingent HARE

consideration (@ — — 2,628 2,628

- — 2,628 2,628
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea) 3. £MTHE (&)
(il Financial asset measured at fair value on a recurring basis () BEEMEELLFEFEYN

(Continueq) THEEE)

(@ The contingent consideration is grouped into (a) KAREBLIBAE=ZHA
level 3 fair value measurement and the fair value FEFE2AEAFEREBL
is determined based on valuation provided by an EEGHEMEHNGHEE
independent professional valuer which is measured E o ZAEERHERAER
using discount cash flow analysis based on A & BE IR =P ARLIRIR
probability-adjusted profits and discount rate. A EMEDNEE - XA
significant increase in probability-adjusted profits BRI A K08 3 0 B B
would result in a significant decrease in fair value of AR E R FER KR
the contingent consideration, and vice versa. Do RZIRN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SFE M EmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea) 34. M T H (&)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued) 0 MITANAFEFEE)
(i) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements il FB=R2FEGTEZHEK
Contingent
consideration
HANE
HK$’000
FERT
Financial asset at FVTPL BRAFESTABRNESREE
At 1 April 2023 R-ZE-=FMA—H —
Additions NE 2,297
Change in fair value recognised RIBRERHN AT EEE)
in profit or loss (note 7) (PF3E7) 331
At 31 March 2024 R_ZE_MFE=A=+—H 2,628
Change in fair value recognised RIBRERHN AT EEE)
in profit or loss (note 7) (PF3E7) 9,983
At 31 March 2025 R-B-HF=ZA=+—H 12,611
The management of the Group considers that AEEERERER  REel
the carrying amounts of financial assets and BHRRREHEKAARS /M
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the BEREHEBENEREOERER
consolidated financial statements approximate their NEEBE -
fair values.
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)‘ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i e E e

For the year ended 31 March 2025
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 35. MERHFIEENEEYHER

ACTIVITIES

The tables below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TERALAEEREETHEENE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- EEH(RIERSRIIRSES) -
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are RETHELENEERRERE
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, MUK ABRREREBR BN ARE
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows MiraReERERIPEARME S
as cash from or used in financing activities: BSSMAREMNEE -

Amounts
due to
Amounts non-controlling Bank
dueto  shareholders Other  Promissory and other Lease

associates  of subsidiaries payables  note payable borrowing liabilities Total
Efle  EGWELE JEff 2R
DARE FERRFRE EHEATE RARE HibfeR HERE it
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiEn TiEn T T T TEn TiEn

A1 April 2023 R-E_=F
MA-A 316 4,900 - - - 4,015 9,231
Avise from acquistion of RREHELAR
subsidiaries (Note 20) EE(Hit20) - 27471 - 12497 952 5,761 55,251
Finance costs recognised (Note §) 2 EERE AU (H29) - - - - 3 502 84
Fair value change LTEZY - - - 7 - - )
New leases entered BEHRE - - - - - 6,791 6,791
Operating cash flows meReng (316) - - - - - (316)
Financing cash flows BERENE - 4817 (18,000) - (1,349) (5.309) (19841)
Dividends recognised as REAREA ENRE
distribution to shareholder - - 18,000 - - - 18,000
Dividends recognised as Bl RmiRER
dtrioution tononcontroling ~ AEARE
interests - 4,900 - - - - 4900
At 31 March 2024 and \ZECEE
1 Aprl 2024 =A=+-Rk
“E-RFRA-H = 42,088 = 12,422 8,495 11,760 74,765
Finance costs recognised (Note 9] & REZABH AL (B3 9) - - - - 207 i1 708
Fairvalue change INREEE) - - - 7 - - 7
New leases entered BHRE [ - - - - - 2,441 2,441
Financing cash flows BERENE - (3,047) (10,000) (12497) (1,407) (5,008) (32,856)
Dividends recognised s BRERRRARARE
distribution to shareholder - - 10,000 - - - 10,000
Dividends recognised as Bl RmERER
dstibutontonon-controling 2 RARE
interests - 3,920 - - - - 3,920
At 31 March 2025 R-Z_0E
ZR=t+-H - 42,961 - - 7,385 8,707 59,053
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=RA=1T—HIEFE

36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. fIBARER
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the end of the KRNBRBERROKBE AR ER
reporting period are as follows: /NI

Place of Issued and Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries incorporation fully paid share interest to the Company Principal activities

Directly Indirectly

BRAR i
KEARER B HRRA 31
2024 2024

k-l 13 k- 13
YunLee (BY) Biitish Virgin Islands USSt 100% 100% = = Investment holding
EN(RBRBRES) ARGARES 17 REER
KMY Marine Works & Hong Kong HK$13,500 = - 100% 100%  Provision of vessel chartering
Supplies Limited and related services
(3 13,500 REHARE
RiBRE
MKK Merine Services Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 = - 100% 100%  Provision of ship
management senvices
Bk 20,0007 RHHERRE
Yun Lee Marine Services Hong Kong HK$120,000 = - 100% 100%  Provision of agency senvices
(Hong Kong) Gompany Limited for vessel chartering
(formerly known as “Yun Les and related services on
Tug Boat Company Limitec!’) behalf of vessel owner
EHNSSRE(FR)BRAR  ER 120,000 REMTRIMARE
(hRIENEBERAR)) RER% REBRS
Universal Marine Senvices Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100% 100%  Investment holoing
THEERBERLA (3 10,000 REER
Yun Lee Marine Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100% 100%  Provision of vessel chartering
Holdings Limited and related services
ENEERRARAA (3 10,000 RUMHEER
i
New Legend Ferry Senices Hong Kong HK$30,000 = - 51% 51%  Provision of vessel chartering
Limited ('New Legend! and related services
nERERREERAT (3 30,0007 Ui S AR
(ee))
Yun Lee Pyromagic and Hong Kong HK$100 = - 51% 51%  Provision of vessel chartering
DG Vessels Limited and related senvices
EMEERERERaM (3 1007 REHARE
BRAT RiBRE
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. fIBRARIER£Z)
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the end of the RARRBEHROMB AR ER
reporting period are as follows: (Continued) LUNNENE-))

Place of Issued and Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries incorporation fully paid share interest to the Company Principal activities

Directly Indirectly

BTk LG T £
KRARER RLARE HERf B# TERK
2024 2024

kSl 13 kSl 13
YunLee (Kwong Sang) Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 51% 5% Provision of repalr and
Marine Engineering Limited maintenance services
Bl (BY) hike i 10000% 7 RIEEERRERH
RBRRAT
YunLee Group Holdings Limited ~Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100% 100%  Project management
ENEEARERAT i 100007 BRER
YLTK Hong Kong HK$100 = - 51% 51%  Provision of marine
construction services
EHAE i 10057 REEERERE
BHEERE (RM) BRRE ThePRC RMB200,000 - - 100% 100%  Provision of repair and
maintenance services
i AEHB2000007C RREBRRERH
Sanlee New Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = NA 51% NA  Tracing of machineries and
(Incorporated on TEE TR equipment related to
24 Qctober 2024) maring and
construction indlustries
ZRARRERAT B 10047 ERERSENFAE
(W=Fzmf BERREES
TAZTmEEMARL)
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

36. fHBARIER &)

HEFREMBARFE

Name of subsidiaries

] PNGR=Y

Place of
incorporation

and principal

Proportion of ownership
interests held by
non-controlling interests

place of
business
LB L
HEHREE
E 3

Accumulated
non-controlling interests

Profit allocated to
non-controlling interests

FERES TR DEEFRRERE
BREESLH B R R R FERER

2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

—EopmE S 2 —EopmE —EB-RE —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THER FTHET THET
New Legend Hong Kong 49% 49% 6,547 6,312 38,580 35,953
e B
YLTK Hong Kong 49% 49% 3,752 551 2,703 (1,049)
AR 5
Individually immaterial
subsidiary with
non-controlling interests (8,234) (10,633)
BAFERERNER
TEARMEAR

TREAEEREB BRI AE
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE-_T-_RAF=A=+—HILFE

36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea) 36.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

MEATER &)
BRABAERGFERERAASEE
ZMBARMBERBEHI
T TIHUBERRBEZREBRAR
RIS HAT SRR °

2025 2024
—E"FRE —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

New Legend HER
Current assets MBEE 32,243 23,972
Non-current assets JEmBNEE 64,838 67,768
Current liabilities nBBE 10,731 10,603
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 7,522 7,652
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A &1 A A JEIHE 40,248 37,532
Non-controlling interests eI AR R A 38,580 35,953
Revenue ON 74,364 68,817
Cost of sales SHE KA (54,169) (49,377)
Expenses F X (4,182) (3,743)
Profit and total comprehensive income FEHM RN BRE

for the year 13,343 13,005
Profit and total comprehensive income RRE A AR RF R

attributable to owners of the Company EHENZBEE 6,796 6,693
Profit and total comprehensive income eI IR AR PR B T

attributable to non-controlling interests FEN AR 6,547 6,312
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 25 1 B2 FFIE A AE %5

of New Legend A% 2. (3,920) (4,900)
Net cash inflow from operating activities SEEBIR SR AFE 13,671 13,670
Net cash outflow used in investing activites & EEFTHE S

T EE (1,299) (%)
Net cash outflow used in financing activities B & EBNFTFAIR &7
HEE (8,000) (10,000)

Net cash inflow BeRAFE 4,372 3,665
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36. B RIER (&)

2025 2024
—E-EREFE —E-_NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
YLTK Group BRRTEER
Current assets MENEE 116,220 95,398
Non-current assets EMEEE 9,787 13,894
Current liabilities nRBBE 125,385 117,345
Non-current liabilities JERBAE 1,201 2,931
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZAQ &1 A A E1LAE S (3,282) (9,935)
Non-controlling interests SRR = 2,703 (1,049)
Revenue N 217,493 164,198
Cost of sales HERKA (187,123) (149,774)
Expenses F (20,397) (20,649)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income £ fE % F| (E518) &
(expense) for the year FEWA (X )45 10,405 (7,719)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income 22 G1HEA A &5 % F
(expense) attributable to owners (B8 RE2EKRA
of the Company (X)) B 6,653 (8,270)
Profit and total comprehensive income FEVE AR A 2 PR A Va2 7
attributable to non-controlling interests EEEWALRRE 3,752 551
Net cash inflow from operating activities K EEIRSMAFRE 15,761 13,561
Net cash outflow used in investing activites R & /ZEFTAR &
R - (8,672)
Net cash (outflow used in) inflow from BEES (AR RL)
financing activities WEMANFEE (3,172) 174
Net cash inflow BERAFRE 12,589 5,063
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

EE

37.

38.

—ECRFZA=+-HIEFE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group entered into
new lease agreements for the use of leased properties and
motor vehicles for 1-2 years. On the lease commencement,
the Group recognised HK$2,507,000 (2024: HK$6,791,000) of
right-of-use assets and HK$2,411,000 (2024: HK$6,683,000)
lease liabilities.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 20 September 2018. The purpose of
the Share Option Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions that the eligible participants have had
or may have made to the Group. The eligible participants
include any employee, directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

The exercise price for any share under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the board of directors
of the Company and shall not be less than the highest of:
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares on the offer date of the relevant
option, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities (a “Trading Day”);
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five Trading
Days immediately preceding the offer date of the relevant
option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the offer date.
For the purpose of calculating the subscription price where the
Company has been listed for less than five Trading Days, the
offer price of the shares shall be used as the closing price of
the shares for any Trading Days falling within the period before
the listing date.

Yun Lee Marine Group Holdings Limited B8 =& &R AR A A

37.

38.

FEFREXRS

HE-_ZEZ-_AF=A=+—H81t
FE - AEBEREREENER
MBI A —EMENFHEER
FoNHERKBE  ~EEEER
# A # & E2,507,000/8 (= Z
— P94 : 6,791,0008 L) R HEE
E2,411,0008 L(Z T = 4 F -
6,683,000 7T) °

URIPBERZARKS
ARalRZE—N\FNLAZ+HE
MR R B ([FERRMERT &) - B
REFENENERTRERBEEE
BLEEDMAEEEL AR
AEEBELEWER - 6 EKRSHE
BREAAFKEERMNBEARHE
MBI -EEH  BEMH - BHREA - #
fERE - BRPRAREA -

B E MR ITEES
REARNREZGETWER BT
BERATEENSESE : ()N
REBEREEER O BB (RSB
AMmEEEFMNAF(IRSA1)E
BXAMEBHRERREE—FAZ
FRAD PR U T & ¢ (i) BB
EEBABREZEORMILERS
BEMZ e R RERARNTH
Wi+ R (i) B R 24 B e mE
B RABEARALETRHEIRNT
BEXZHNREE  RENEESE
FER1E L™ B R ERIR 5 A AR
DEVR T (E -



38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme will expire on 19 September 2028.

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted by the grantee and to have taken effect when the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the
options duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof, is received by the Company within such
time as may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later
than 21 days from the offer date).

The exercise of any option shall be subject to the shareholders’
general meeting approval for any necessary increase in the
authorised share capital of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme established by the Company, if
any, is 100,000,000, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme. The total maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme, if any, shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

No share options have been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_T-_RAF=A=1T—HIEFE

38. UIRIAHBERZARKE (&)

BRESSENR _-_ZF-_N\FNA
TABEIE -

ARRRRBL A EERNRRE (T
ENBHABHES210)RERK
BRALAREBEXNEABRENE
HWXMFER - BRNTARRE.00
BILZRAERRLBRENKE
% BEREAERIEFEREREE
ERAEAREER -

EA B RN ITEY ALRRN K
RARGHE - DUBINARBIEEE
A

RIFERET S R A RARIZRINE
M EMERES (WA ) AR
HHERERENERRMNEE
#$100,000,000 % - #8 & B8 i &
SFEIHE BB AR R B BITRAR
10% © 1T B AR M 51 &8 SR (] E A
EREFE(NE)ETHMAEE R
B FITEBREM A REB1ITH &
=RMDBEEEBARRAEET
IEAE) 10% ©

B RS AR AT 81 DA SK - B R AR
R - 1T RESHERR
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE 39. KR RRAQFHE
COMPANY

2025 2024
—ECEF —F-MEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
THET FET

Non-current assets kRBEE

Investment in a subsidiary R—REMH B ARRRE 63,504 63,504

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE B B8 A B 3k I8 20,980 26,111
84,484 89,615

Current assets REBEE

Other receivables o fE IR 76 79

Cash and cash equivalents Re KRS EY 2,112 2,370

2,188 2,449

Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables E e RIAR 8,863 8,024

Amount due to a subsidiary FES —FREABT B A B 208 46,106 39,667
54,969 47,691

Net current liabilities REBAEFHE (52,781) (45,242)
31,703 44,373

Capital and reserves EARR#E

Share capital N 10,000 10,000

Reserves Fe 21,703 34,373

Total equity SR 31,703 44373
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
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39. MBIRRRRADAREE)

Movement in the Company’s reserves ARTFRENEE
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RiRE - EXFHE -5y st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
At 1 April 2023 MZTEZ=%F
mA—H 133,728 4,634 (81,464) 56,898
Loss and total comprehensive  FE E518 &
expense for the year FHMAS B — — (4,525) (4,525)
Dividends paid EATRR B — - (18,0000  (18,000)
At 31 March 2024 it

—B=+—H8 133728 4,634 (103,989) 34,373
Loss and total comprehensive F[E &8 &
expense for the year FHMAS B — — (2,670) (2,670)
Dividends paid B — — (10,000 (10,000)
At 31 March 2025 i s

=A=+—H 133,728

4,634 (116,659) 21,703
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2" FIVE-VEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBFRE

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of  FEEEAREBHBREENC T KEEX
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the  HEHRXEBTEREMBEE 2 £E R
Prospectus and the published audited financial statements, is set ~ ZE - BERESRMEH IO T o K
out below. This summary does not form part of the audited financial BV TEREEZABHRER 2 —HD -

statements.
RESULTS E4
E— |
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
-kl —ENF —FE--F —E-"F —E--—F
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
FEx FEx FEx FEx FET
Revenue & 373,187 334,604 239,876 364,005 226,194
Gross profit EH 98,564 89,410 85,452 93,310 60,242
Profit for the year attributable to RRRIE=ERFBA
equity holders of the Company JEAE F R F 19,807 31,584 36,011 40,803 25,020
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BE - BFERER
E— |
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
b kM —E_NFE —FBE-_=F —E-__F —FE--—-F
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
FEx TR FExT TR TR
Non-current assets ERBEE 158,235 183,055 143,497 125,370 114,379
Current assets REEE 282,270 259,827 196,555 215,437 164,999
Total assets BEE 440,505 442,882 340,052 340,807 279,378
Current liabilities mEEE 114,477 131,522 38,570 58,943 29,304
Net current assets RBEEFE 167,793 128,305 157,985 156,494 135,695
Total assets less current liabilities ~ AEERMTEHAEZ 326,028 311,360 301,482 281,864 250,074
Net assets BEFE 307,828 289,244 284,202 270,586 241,546
Equity attributable to equity holders N RIHEZR B A
of the Company FEfE R SS 274,779 264,973 251,388 235,377 207,574
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